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CORPORATE PROFILE
1R85

China SCE Group Holdings Limited (“China SCE” or the “Company”),
together with its subsidiaries (collectively, the”Group”), was
established in 1996 and with its shares listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”) in February 2010 (Stock Code: 1966). The Group’s major
businesses include property development, commercial management,
property management and long-term rental apartments business. The
Company is headquartered in Shanghai for its business operations,
while implementing regional focused development strategy in the
Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone, the Bohai Rim Economic Zone,
the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, the West
Taiwan Strait Economic Zone and the Central Western Region.

The Group's property projects are distributed in 56 cities, including
Beijing, Shanghai, Tianjin, Chongging, Chengdu, Suzhou, Hangzhou,
Nanjing, Zhengzhou, Qingdao, Jinan, Xiamen, Nanchang and
Kunming, etc. Its products cover a wide range of properties including
high-rise residential buildings, offices, shopping malls and long-term
rental apartments. The Company upholds “We Build to Inspire”
as its key value proposition, “Creating Smart Living to Help Seize
Happiness” as its mission. The Company was awarded the “2024 TOP
500 of Real Estate Developers”.

As of 31 December 2024, the Group together with its joint ventures
and associates owned a land bank with an aggregate planned
gross floor area (“GFA") of approximately 25.30 million square
metres (“sg.m.”). In the future, China SCE will continue to secure
the regional leading position by implementing more proactive and
prudent development strategies.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Yuanlai (resigned on 24 January 2025)
Mr. Cheng Hiu Lok

Mr. Huang Youquan

Mr. Wong Lun (resigned on 29 August 2024)

Ms. Zhang Haitao (appointed on 29 August 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen
Mr. Dai Yiyi
Mr. Mao Zhenhua

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Li Siu Po

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung
Mr. Li Siu Po

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen (Chairman)
Mr. Dai Yiyi
Mr. Mao Zhenhua

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Dai Yiyi (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

TEER

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung (Chairman)
Mr. Dai Yiyi
Mr. Mao Zhenhua

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

Mr. Huang Youquan (Chairman)
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen
Mr. Mao Zhenhua

AUDITOR

Prism Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

LEGAL ADVISORS AS TO
HONG KONG LAWS

Chiu & Partners

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS AND

HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

SCE Tower

No. 2, Lane 1688, Shenchang Road
Honggiao Business District, Shanghai
China
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Room 2801, Hysan Place
500 Hennessy Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17/F, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Bank of China Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

Ping An Bank Co., Ltd.

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd.

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited
BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited
The Bank of East Asia, Limited
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
BEEH

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Email: ir@sce-re.com
Fax: (852) 2342 6643

STOCK CODE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 1966

COMPANY WEBSITE

Www.sce-re.com
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS HBzmEzxBEE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1t—-HLHEE

2024 2023 Change
—E-mEF —Eo=F 58 B
RMB’000 RMB'000 (%)

AR®TR AR®ETT

Revenue U = 40,770,075 20,960,968 94.5
Gross profit EH 6,235,537 2,630,992 137.0
Loss attributable to owners NARHE AEGERE
of the parent (7,863,349) (7,991,050) (1.6)
Loss per share TEE
— Basic and diluted — BEARNEE RVIB(186.2) cents  RMB(189.2) cents
AR (186.2) 7 AK¥(189.2)% (1.6)
SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL BRSO R 2
POSITION
31 December 31 December
2024 2023 Change
—E-mE —ZE=F
+=—HA=+—H +=—A=+—H g2k
RMB’000 RMB’000 (%)

AR®TR ARBTT

Total assets BEBE 128,285,226 167,889,687 (23.6)
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTFHAE R 4,045,017 6,448,926 (37.3)
Total debts B (35,418,566) (35,907,119) (1.4)
Total liabilities BELE (117,715,353)  (147,407,361) (20.1)
Total equity LSRR 10,569,873 20,482,326 (48.4)
China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2024 07
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In 2024, the real estate market continued its adjustment. The overall
market recovery experienced various challenges. Amidst the severe
operation situation, China SCE persisted in confronting the challenges
with courage and has prioritised “Ensuring Delivery” in its aim of
business operation. The management of the Group and the front-
line operating team collaborated to classify and implement property
projects, planned the project timelines in advance, and allocated
resources efficiently. The delivered property area during the year
amounted to approximately 2.61 million sq.m. Both commercial
operation and long-term rental apartment businesses, as the “Two
Wings” of the development of the Company, demonstrated stronger

Annual Report 2024
— T PUEER

Dear shareholders:

May | present you with the results
and business review of the Group
for the year ended 31 December
2024.
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innovation vitality and development resilience in 2024. Kunshan
Huagiao and Fuzhou SCE Funworld grandly opened as scheduled,
injecting new vitality into the city’s commercial development. For
long-term rental apartments, the Company continued to deeply
cultivate first- and second-tier cities. It has laid a solid foundation for
the Company's sustainable development.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately RMB40.770 billion, representing a
significant year-on-year increase of 94.5%. The Group took a more
prudent attitude in making impairment provisions for property
projects and recognising fair value losses on investment properties
due to the decrease of average selling price of properties, and as a
result, the Group recorded a loss attributable to owners of the parent
of approximately RMB7.863 billion during the year.

CONTRACTED SALES

In 2024, affected by changes in the economic climate, overall sales
in China's real estate market continued to decline. Among them, the
property sales in third- and fourth-tier cities were particularly affected.
The effectiveness of a number of real estate optimisation policies
introduced by the central and local governments during the year
remains to be uncertain currently. In 2024, the Group together with
its joint ventures and associates achieved contracted sales amount
of approximately RMB11.226 billion, including contracted sales area
of approximately 1.23 million sq.m., representing a year-on-year
significant decrease of approximately 59.6% and 46.5%, respectively.

During the year, the Group together with its joint ventures and
associates had an aggregate of over 80 projects for sale in over 50
cities. The four cities with the largest contracted sales are Hangzhou,
Beijing, Nanjing and Suzhou. The contracted sales amount of these
four cities accounted for approximately 40.3% of the total contracted
sales amount of the Group together with its joint ventures and
associates.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFEHE

DEBT MANAGEMENT

The Group has always regarded fulfilling its debt obligations as a top
priority. Since the announcement of overseas debt restructuring last
year, the Group has been evaluating its current capital structure and
liquidity with its financial advisor during the year, and has maintained
an active dialogue with an ad hoc group of certain offshore bond
holders (“AHG") and co-ordination committee in respect of lenders
of certain offshore loans (“CoCom”) and their consultants, to
ensure that their concerns are taken seriously and included in the
consideration of the offshore debt restructuring. On 28 November
2024, the Group reached an agreement in principle with the AHG
on the high-level and key commercial terms of the offshore debt
restructuring. This is a significant milestone for the Group in its pursuit
of a holistic solution to its offshore indebtedness. It is expected that
the Group expects to continue the current negotiation with the AHG
and CoCom on details related to offshore debt restructuring, and look
forward to fulfill and implement an offshore debt restructuring plan
that balances the interests of all stakeholders as soon as possible.

OUTLOOK

Looking forward to 2025, it is believed that China’s real estate
market will continue to bottom out in the long run. The Group must
be prepared in the long run. Based on the current difficulties faced
by China's real estate market and the importance of the real estate
market to the entire economy, it is expected that the central and local
governments will continue to optimise real estate policies in order
to boost citizens’ confidence in the real estate market and foster the
healthy development of real estate market in the long term.

In terms of property development, the Group will comprehensively
implement two levels of work. Firstly, the Group will further adjust its
operational progress, enhance its property project management and
control, ensure the progress of project, assist marketing campaigns,
and completely boost the pre-sales and sales of completed properties.
In addition, the Group will continue to improve and enhance product
quality, and match the demand for improved properties, to ensure the
quality of construction and delivery.
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In terms of “Two Wings” business sector, the Group will further
deepen regional business management of shopping mall operations,
proactively extend its cooperation with the tenants in the region,
break through the market while developing both core brands
and emerging brands, adopt and implement targeted positioning
strategies of each SCE Funworld, and strengthen the assessment of
each SCE Funworld based on key core indicators such as occupancy
rate, efficient operations and quality services, to improve its
operational performance. On the other hand, it is required that the
organising capacity of a regional team shall align with the business
needs of each SCE Funworld. In addition, in terms of long-term rental
apartments, the Group will focus on the operational performance of
the projects, implement and promote front-line business awareness,
thereby enhancing the operational capabilities and precision of each
project. In terms of property management, the Group will persist in
enhancing the sophistication of its business operations, concentrate
on key cities for market expansion, and expedite the upgrading and
improvement of information systems.

In the future, the development of modern urbanisation will continue
to grow, and structural opportunities and demand for quality housing
in specific market segments remain in the long term. The Group
has prioritised “Ensuring Delivery” in its aim of business operation,
committed to achieve outcomes in the residential business operations.
Adhering to the development strategy of "Striving for Excellence",
and strengthening the competitiveness of the “Two Wings" business,
China SCE will embrace a promising future with a more proactive and
optimistic approach.

APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all the staff, shareholders, investors, customers and
partners of the Company.

Wong Chiu Yeung
Chairman

Hong Kong, China
28 March 2025

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHE

RIME|EBIRR - AEBERE— PRIEE
LREENREEKERE BHRERREANRE
BEMAE  REMIZREREET D @EN
e R NSRBI SRR RAL B
THEMNELRE BRELEEX e
ERmERGEERZOEFEINES R
FWHERZ MRS EEERM: 5—HH -
50, T 18 120 B K ) 4L A BE ) ) 2B TR AR I G %
R M EBOR R - I REERAET

—REEER KMREARZEELLERN R
BAE RYEEETE AEEBFER
FEBLERAE EMSHRIEAREE
ST o DR E ARG B R R UCE -

R FAUERAC B R A B 2 30 R4 1E - 4
ERAD TSN EBERE MM E R ER KD
RHFE - AEEFEBRFUTRIM]IRE
BEH - NREEXRBEERLR  FATME
B | B RBRS - WoRIC MBI XK HF N
NEREBMERNZRERERERAETR
KREBEHE -

2l

R& - AAZBRREZFEAARANEEE
T BR -REE FEEARSTAERHE
BUARZHHE |

BH5
FE

FEES
—E-_RAF=RA=-+N\H

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2024
PEREEZERERAT/ S NFEFR



MANAGEMENT

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

S E AR

™

H
i

ol e oy

-




R g
-

L




14

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWN O

MARKET REVIEW

In 2024, the real estate industry in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") continued its adjustment. Both the sales amount and area of
commodity houses continued to decline. Amid weakening demand in
the real estate market, the central and local governments continued
to relax real estate control policies and introduce new policies to
promote stability and recovery in the real estate market. These policies
included removal of purchase restriction, sales restriction, price limit,
etc., and reduction of payment ratio and mortgage interest rate,
hence significantly mitigating the capital pressure of house purchase.
As the impact of the policies are becoming apparent, the real estate
market is expected to bottom out.

In 2024, the sales of newly developed national commodity houses
amounted to approximately RMB9,675.0 billion, representing a
year-on-year decrease of 17.1%, including a 17.6% decrease in
residential housing sales. The sales area of newly developed national
commodity houses amounted to approximately 974 million sq.m.,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 12.9%, including a 14.1%
decrease in residential housing sales area.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Contracted Sales

In 2024, the Group together with its joint ventures and associates
achieved contracted sales amounted to approximately RMB11.226
billion for the year, and contracted sales area of approximately 1.23
million sg.m., representing a year-on-year significant decrease of
approximately 59.6% and 46.5%, respectively. The average property

selling price during the year was RMB9,161 per sq.m.

In 2024, the Group together with its joint ventures and associates had
an aggregate of over 80 projects for sales in over 50 cities, mainly in
second-tier cities and core areas of third- and fourth-tier cities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER W& D

The contracted sales realised by the Group together with its joint  FR - AEBEREAS L QA MBZ QA H
ventures and associates during the year are set out below: BRHEFAFADT :
By City R T E D
Percentage of
Contracted Contracted Contracted
Sales Amount Sales Area Sales Amount
HER
&E & HESHE
City W HESH HEERE Bk
(RMB Million) (sg.m.) (%)
(AREBE&ET) (FFEFK)
Hangzhou AN 2,255 147,625 20.1
Beijing b 1,058 39,030 9.4
Nanjing B2 647 60,024 5.8
Suzhou &N 560 54,668 5.0
Shantou MIIEE] 511 48,821 4.6
Quanzhou R 447 53,056 4.0
Nantong ERE! 380 50,321 3.4
Kunming =25 371 50,423 3.3
Shangrao iak: 365 56,299 3.3
Chongging BE 358 70,398 3.2
Chengdu PP 338 25,996 3.0
Lincang o) 272 30,827 2.4
Tianjin RE 240 16,062 2.1
Pingdingshan IR 235 30,124 2.1
Jieyang B5 226 35,062 2.0
Hefei e 211 9,695 1.9
Zhumadian HEE 194 37,343 1.7
Chizhou AN 186 26,280 1.7
Others H At 2,372 383,390 21.0
Total =X 11,226 1,225,444 100.0

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB W&

By Region RESE S
Percentage of
Contracted Contracted Contracted
Sales Amount Sales Area Sales Amount
HER
&E &= HESHE
Region B HESH HEmE Btk
(RMB Million) (sg.m.) (%)
(AREEHETT) (F75K)
Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone & = A#L % B 4,640 401,960 413
Central Western Region 7 B i e 2,482 382,196 22.1
Bohai Rim Economic Zone IR B 1,847 147,116 16.5
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao BERANER

Greater Bay Area 1,178 147,345 10.5
West Taiwan Strait Economic Zone /& I3 7 72 4% 7% [l 1,079 146,827 9.6
Total =5 11,226 1,225,444 100.0

45 B 8l 5

By City Tier BT AR BB 5
Percentage of
Contracted Contracted Contracted
Sales Amount Sales Area Sales Amount
HER
&R &= HESHE
City Tier 35, 4% Al HESH HEmE Baobk
(RMB Million) (sq.m.) (%)
(AREBHET) (F7K)

First-tier cities — R 1,161 54,807 10.3
Second-tier cities — R 5,285 477,058 471
Third- and fourth-tier cities = - UM 4,780 693,579 42.6
Total =1 11,226 1,225,444 100.0

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

From the perspective of city distribution, contracted sales in Hangzhou
and Beijing have been the most remarkable among the first-tier and
second-tier cities, amounting to approximately RMB2.255 billion and
RMB1.058 billion, respectively, accounting for approximately 20.1%
and 9.4% of the total contracted sales amount. The contracted sales
of the Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone and the Central Western
Region amounted to approximately RMB4.640 billion and RMB2.482
billion, respectively, accounting for approximately 41.3% and 22.1%
of the total contracted sales amount.

Investment Properties

As at 31 December 2024, the Group together with its joint ventures
and associates held 46 investment properties with a total GFA of
approximately 3.60 million sg.m. (attributable GFA of approximately
3.28 million sg.m.), of which 28 investment properties had
commenced operation. The Group together with its joint ventures and
associates have investment properties in 26 cities, including Beijing,
Shanghai, Xiamen, Hangzhou and Suzhou, among others, with its
business covering shopping malls, long-term rental apartments,
offices, commercial streets and shops.

BEER W& D

WM DD > A— ~ = 82350 75 B AR M
RIEFRHWAERBERERARL  DAHA
R#2255@ Tk AR 105818 7T - 1B
AREESTEDRIA20.1% X 9.4% - K= A
KEBERTPASHENSREESED LD
AR®BA46401BTT R AR 248218 7T 15
BAREESTEDRIA41.3% &22.1% °

REW=R

R-ZB-_ME+-_A=+—RH AEEER
HA2RaREE R HEA 46 EREYE -
REEEBR3608 F 7oK (BIEZEEBELD

328&%3@?*) CHP28EREMECHEE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB W&

Recognised Property Sales Income

In 2024, the Group achieved recognised property sales income of
approximately RMB38.843 billion and area of properties delivered
of approximately 2.61 million sq.m., representing a year-on-
year significant increase of approximately 103.4% and increase
of approximately 11.3% respectively. The average selling price of
properties was RMB14,907 per sg.m., representing a year-on-year
significant increase of approximately 82.8%. Details of the Group’s
recognised property sales income are as follows:

BARMEEERA

—ENF AEERAVEHEERADA
R¥388431BL  BERNMMEBELN B
261 BT 5K - Ao BRI AIEE N4 103.4%
RIEMA11.3%  FHMEHEBR AT
FHKAREE14,907 7T 0 A L KR E AT
82.8% - NEBEERMEHEWATFEAT :

By City BT 85

Percentage of
Recognised Recognised Recognised
Property Property Property
Sales Income Sales Area Sales Income
(e ES
LR S Y E SHEW A
City B SHEWA HEmE Btk
(RMB Million) (sq.m.) (%)

(AR¥B&ET) (FEF2K)
Xiamen =F9 13,790 246,154 355
Suzhou ER N 6,419 368,040 16.5
Beijing bR 4,708 218,159 12.1
Quanzhou SN 2,064 292,096 5.3
Shanghai = 1,368 59,499 35
Nantong [Ezg il 1,211 128,721 3.1
Zhangzhou =l 991 119,639 2.6
Taizhou =M 775 59,391 2.0
Meizhou M 686 113,165 1.8
Lincang o) 673 101,024 1.7
Shaoguan Galed 615 106,658 1.6
Jieyang B5 539 71,588 1.4
Chongging sy 536 87,425 1.4
Chizhou AN 455 60,768 1.2
Wenshan prgil 384 75,219 1.0
Others Hth 3,629 498,178 9.3
Total AEF 38,843 2,605,724 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SR =RES S

By Region REHE D
Percentage of
Recognised Recognised Recognised
Property Property Property Sales
Sales Income Sales Area Income
(SRR ES
R mRAWE SHEWA
Region EiF SHEWA HEERE Bakt
(RMB Million) (sg.m.) (%)
(AREB®ST) (FFF7K)

West Taiwan Strait Economic Zone /&I 75 = 45 75 ] 17,036 598,550 43.9
Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone &= A E 10,993 785,916 28.3
Central Western Region 78 R b [ 3,120 547,730 8.0
Bohai Rim Economic Zone IR B A7 5,312 320,699 13.7

Guangdong — Hong Kong — Macao 2788 K & &
Greater Bay Area 2,382 352,829 6.1
Total CEn 38,843 2,605,724 100.0

By City Tier BT AR B & 5
Percentage of
Recognised Recognised Recognised
Property Property Property
Sales Income Sales Area  Sales Income
LR
R LS SHEWA
City Tier 3 i A% Bl HEWA SHEERE Bok
(RMB Million) (sg.m.) (%)
(AR®B&ET) (FF3K)

First-tier cities — AR 6,095 277,658 15.7
Second-tier cities it 3] 21,713 850,960 55.9
Third- and fourth-tier cities = WEET 11,035 1,477,106 28.4
38,843 2,605,724 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB W&

Land Bank

As at 31 December 2024, the Group together with its joint ventures
and associates had a land bank with an aggregate planned GFA
of approximately 25.30 million sq.m. (the aggregate planned
GFA attributable to the Group was approximately 21.20 million
sg.m.), distributing in 56 cities. From the perspective of geographic
distribution, the land bank costs (excluding investment properties)
of the Group together with its joint ventures and associates located
in the Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone, the Bohai Rim Economic
Zone, the West Taiwan Strait Economic Zone, the Guangdong —
Hong Kong — Macao Greater Bay Area and the Central Western
Region accounted for approximately 38.7%, 22.7%, 12.7%, 9.2%
and 16.7% respectively. Considering the tiers of cities, the land bank
costs (excluding investment properties) of the Group together with
its joint ventures and associates located in first-tier cities, second-
tier cities as well as third- and fourth-tier cities accounted for
approximately 12.3%, 55.0% and 32.7% respectively.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue
The Group mainly derives its revenue from sales of properties,

property management fees, rental income, project management
income and land development income.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The annual revenue increased significantly by approximately 94.5%
from approximately RMB20,960,968,000 in 2023 to approximately
RMB40,770,075,000 in 2024, which was mainly attributable to the
significant increase in revenue from sales of properties.

o Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties increased significantly by
approximately 103.4% from approximately RMB19,095,549,000
in 2023 to approximately RMB38,843,471,000 in 2024.
Delivered area increased by approximately 11.3% from
2,341,355 sq.m. in 2023 to 2,605,724 sqg.m. in 2024.
The average unit selling price increased significantly from
approximately RMB8,156 per sq.m. in 2023 to approximately
RMB14,907 per sgq.m. in 2024.

o Property management fees

Property management fees increased by approximately
3.2% from approximately RMB1,164,184,000 in 2023 to
approximately RMB1,201,595,000 in 2024, which was mainly
attributable to the increase in the number and floor area of
properties under management.

. Rental income

Rental income increased by approximately 9.2% from
approximately RMB529,680,000 in 2023 to approximately
RMB578,634,000 in 2024, which was mainly attributable to
the contribution of rental income from newly opened shopping
malls of SCE Funworld during the year.

o Project management income

The project management income decreased significantly by
approximately 39.5% from approximately RMB171,555,000 in
2023 to approximately RMB103,727,000 in 2024, which was
attributable to the decrease in project management service and
other property related service income provided to joint ventures
and associates.

o Land development income

During 2024, the Group recognised land development income
of approximately RMB42,648,000, which was the income from
pre-construction and preparation work provided for certain land
parcels in Nan’an, Quanzhou.

BEER W& D

2EWRNHEB S _=ZFHHARK
20,960,968,000 7T K18 K 4994.5% &
“HEML AR ¥4L0,770,075,0007T °c £ B
EMEHEE WA KRB R -

e WMIREEWA

PMEBEERAR S _ZFHNHARE
19,095,549,000 ST K IEIE K47 103.4% &
_?_mimiﬁ/\ﬁﬂﬁssmmm 000

C REMBERZTZ=9#/2,341,355
¥H#i-73u£ﬁ11 3% E_T-_NFH
2,605, 724F K FHHEEBEEHR =
T =—FHEBFRRKOARKS, 1567
ABEMEZZT_MNFNEFHRLHA
R#14,907 7t °

e YXEHEER

MEEEBH T _—FHNHOARE
1,164,184,000 L K #H32% =2 - &
:mimﬂj/\ﬁﬁm 201,595,0007T * £

EEENYESREREEBTIELAT
g(o

o  HEWA

HEWABRB-_ZE_ZFHHARE
5296800007@#%5’]92‘%%*7*@
FHH ANRES78,634,0000T 0 £=E
FAFHETPREREBYRSENETSE
BRFTER ©

o HEEHEWRA

HEEBWABRZZEZ=FHNHARY
171,555,000 7T A 1@ 5k 2> 4939.5% = =
T -UFER L ARK103,727,000 7T ¢

TR IR TE B EEBRE ME XA
BRISHE SN E KB E QAR AFTE

o IHBIEWA

—ECNF - ARERSH L MAEK
AKIANER#42,648,0007T © Jh =& T &
MR TR A MR R R ERHTIE
B ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB W&

Gross Profit

Gross profit increased significantly by approximately 137.0%
from approximately RMB2,630,992,000 in 2023 to approximately
RMB6,235,537,000 in 2024. Gross profit margin increased from
approximately 12.6% in 2023 to approximately 15.3% in 2024.
The increase in gross profit margin was mainly due to the delivery of
certain projects located in Xiamen, Suzhou and Beijing with higher
gross profit margins during the year.

Changes in Fair Value of Investment Properties, Net

The fair value losses of investment properties increased significantly
by approximately 34.6% from approximately RMB3,754,084,000 in
2023 to approximately RMB5,051,706,000 in 2024. The fair value
losses of investment properties was mainly attributable to the effects
of the decline in demand for commercial properties in the PRC.

Selling and Marketing Expenses

Selling and marketing expenses decreased by approximately 11.8%
from approximately RMB802,420,000 in 2023 to approximately
RMB707,896,000 in 2024. The decrease in selling and marketing
expenses was mainly attributable to the decrease in the number of
projects for sale during the year.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses decreased by approximately 28.7% from
approximately RMB1,710,180,000 in 2023 to approximately
RMB1,219,167,000 in 2024. The decrease in administrative expenses
was mainly attributable to the implementation of stringent cost
control measures.

Other expenses

Other expenses increased significantly by approximately 67.4%
from approximately RMB877,699,000 in 2023 to approximately
RMB1,468,888,000 in 2024. The increase was mainly attributable
to additional impairment losses for investments in joint ventures and
associates and due from related parties.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance Costs

Finance costs increased by approximately 26.9% from approximately
RMB1,492,343,000 in 2023 to approximately RMB1,893,627,000
in 2024. The increase in finance costs was mainly resulted from
higher borrowing costs which have not been capitalised as certain
borrowings were not used for project developments.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense increased significantly by approximately 394.9%
from approximately RMB189,504,000 in 2023 to approximately
RMB937,852,000 in 2024. The increase was mainly attributable to
the combined effect of increase in provision of income tax expense
as a result of the increase in revenue recognised and increase in gross
profit margin and deferred tax credit as a result of fair value losses of
investment properties in 2024.

Loss Attributable to Owners of the Parent

Loss attributable to owners of the parent decreased slightly by
approximately 1.6% from approximately RMB7,991,050,000 in 2023
to approximately RMB7,863,349,000 in 2024. The decrease in loss
attributable to owner of the parent was mainly resulted from the
combined effect of (i) an increase in delivered properties, resulting
in higher gross profit; (i) a decline in the selling price of contracted
properties, leading to additional provision of impairment for property
projects; and (iii) declining demand for commercial properties causing
fair value losses of investment properties, during the year.

BEER W& D

B8 M

MK BRHA _ST_=ZFHHARK
1,492,343,000 7 IN4926.9% £ — T — P04
B4 A R #1,893,627,000 7T © B 75 & PR &Y 1%
MEZREARELZESTARRERRE -
M2 ERMERATREE AL -

BLIEB X

MERXB-_ZEZ=ZFM0ARE
189,504,000 T KM@ IE MM AI394.9% £ = F
T ERH AR 937,852,0007T - EiEANE
BR-CZNFERARAERERENEER
SIBBER S BEENRIEEMERAAEE
BB ECHIBER R MELENGETE -

BRRERARGER

HAREBEAEBEEBEEAE-_ZS_=FHHA
R #7,991,050,000 7T B fURL > £91.6% & =
T ZOFEMLH AR 7,863,349,0007T c &E R
AEEABRBGEERRLSEZEHNFA : ()
R EEIE INBBEFIE N ()& DHE
MEEER LGB Y B TR EIINAR
BREE: RINIEVEFTRTHREZIREY
ENANEBBNRETENN -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB W RO

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Cash Position

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s cash and bank balances
were denominated in different currencies as set out below:

mBEL  MBREXRER
B

RZZ_WE+_A=+—H FrEEHNR
RBITFERERTIAATTIRAEEE -

2024 2023
—E-NE =4
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETT

Renminbi AR 3,975,285 6,405,803
Hong Kong dollars T 17,429 26,673
US dollars ETT 52,303 16,450
Total cash and bank balances Be MIRTTERE S 4,045,017 6,448,926

According to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, certain
property development companies of the Group are required to place
certain amounts of cash and bank deposits into designated bank
accounts to provide guarantees for the development of the relevant
properties. As at 31 December 2024, the amount of restricted cash was
approximately RMB1,124,479,000 (31 December 2023: approximately
RMB1,564,401,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE D

Borrowings and Pledged Assets ERREEEH
The maturity profile of the borrowings of the Group as at 31 R-Z_WF+_-_A=+—8 ZAEEEX
December 2024 was as follows: BERESRAT
2024 2023
—ENE O ZT=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTRT ARETE
Bank and other borrowings: RITREMER :
Within one year or on demand —FERIREK 11,241,555 9,817,976
In the second year FE_F 5,309,860 6,347,705
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E=FRF (RIEEEME) 2,359,307 2,576,084
Beyond fifth year Eﬁéﬁi 893,377 1,351,795
19,804,099 20,093,560
Senior notes and domestic bonds: BEERBIIENES
Within one year or on demand —FAHIRER 12,908,448 13,613,559
In the second year FEF 2,225,300 =
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FZERF (BEEERTE) 480,719 2,200,000
15,614,467 15,813,559
Total borrowings B 35,418,566 35,907,119
The borrowings were denominated in different currencies as set out  ZEEFHTIAN TR EEFE
below:
2024 2023
ZEI@FE T =F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTRT ARETT
Bank and other borrowings: RITREMEZK
Renminbi AR 15,294,518 15,378,120
Hong Kong dollars BT 1,173,585 1,147,471
US dollars ETT 3,335,996 3,567,969
19,804,099 20,093,560
Senior notes and domestic bonds: BEEBIENES
Renminbi AR 2,706,019 3,270,688
US dollars e 12,908,448 12,542,871
15,614,467 15,813,559
Total borrowings B4 35,418,566 35,907,119
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB W RO

Breakdown of the borrowings by categories is as follows: ERAMRERERE ST
2024 2023
—EIMEF —E=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETT
The senior notes of US$500 million ata R=Z—PU4 P/ B E|H]  Secured/Fixed A 3,588,250 3,509,732
coupon rate of 7.375% due in April H58%707.375% 8 interest rate & € | =
2024 ERE
The senior notes of US$450 millionat ~ RZZFTZ_MF N AEHE  Secured/Fixed HHEAE 3,229,425 3,087,553
a coupon rate of 5.95% due in M4.5/83%L5.95% &  interest rate [E] £ F1| ==
September 2024 EER
The senior notes of US$500 millionata R=Z=AF A AF|H  Secured/Fixed A 3,585,290 3,499,267
coupon rate of 7% due in May 2025 BSEETI%EEE interest rate & € | &=
&
The senior notes of US$350 millionata MR=ZF=/"F = AZF|#  Secured/Fixed HHEM 2,505,483 2,446,319
coupon rate of 6% due in February H3.58ETT6% Bk interest rate [E] £ F1| ==
2026 1
The domestic corporate bonds of MR-ZE-RF+AZHE  Unsecured/Fixed EARI - 564,669
RMB564,669,000 at a coupon rate of A R# 564,669,000 interest rate & 7E A =
5.5% due in October 2025 TC55% 5 AR BEH
The domestic corporate bonds of RZZZEFHAEH  Unsecured/Fixed IR 506,019 506,019
RMB506,019,000 at a coupon rate of B A R 506,019,000 interest rate [E] £ F1| ==
4.5% due in July 2027 TLA45% RN R FIES
The medium-term notes of RMB1.5 RZZZR"F—AFHE  Secured/Fixed A 1,500,000 1,500,000
billion at a coupon rate of 4.1% due WARBISETLI% interest rate & 7E A =
in January 2026 HEER
The medium-term notes of RMB700 RZZZRFENAEIE  Secured/fFixed HHEME 700,000 700,000
million at a coupon rate of 4.28% MARM7187428% interest rate [E] £ F1| ==
due in August 2026 mERE
Bank and other borrowings BITREMER Secured/Floating BiE® 14,283,326 15,605,700
interest rates FE)F X
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER Secured/Fixed HHEA 5,520,773 4,487,860
interest rates TE =&
35,418,566 35,907,119
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2024, the following assets of the Group were
pledged to secure certain bank and other borrowings and domestic

BEER W& D

R-E-mET=A=+—0 KRB

TEEER URBSETAKENE TR

bonds granted to the Group: REMEREIRAES
2024 2023
ZEI@FE T =F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETET
Property and equipment MR FAE 469,188 483,629
Investment properties EYHE 17,329,400 18,597,900
Properties under development BRPYE 44,598,089 42,754,679
Completed properties held for sale BIEHEEEKWE 1,041,000 1,743,000
63,437,677 63,579,208

Gearing Ratio =R a3

The net gearing ratio was calculated by dividing the net debt (including
bank and other borrowings, senior notes and domestic bonds after
deduction of cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash) by
total equity. As at 31 December 2024, the net gearing ratio was
approximately 296.8% (31 December 2023: 143.8%).

Exchange Rate Fluctuation Exposures

The Group's businesses are located in the PRC and substantially all
of the Group’s revenue and operating expenses are denominated
in RMB. The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities are
denominated in RMB. As at 31 December 2024, except for certain
bank deposits, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, bank
and other borrowings and senior notes which were denominated in
foreign currencies, exchange rate changes of RMB against foreign
currencies will not have material adverse effect on the results of
operations of the Group.

No foreign currency hedging arrangement was made as at 31
December 2024. The Group will closely monitor its exposure to
fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates.

i‘a*éiéfftt%)}%ﬁi%{ifﬁ(a%fﬁﬁ&ﬁfﬂz%\

CBRE TF&*“WL%?DE%EE%&EEi
—rﬁ%&x@%‘ﬁﬁi)ﬁf%% B
RZZT-_WFE+= H—JrfEivaaﬁLttI
2’72968% —EZ=F+ZHA=+—8":
143.8%) °

RRE R

AEBERFBEETES  AREXEBO W
M LA AAREFE - AEREKRHELD
BERBBHUARESHE R_T_HF
TZA=+—8" BRETUINETENRTT
TR BHAREHEREZEHFARENS
MEE ROKEBERRELRE AR
KHEMIINENEXREH TG HASENL
BREERBEATNZE -

RZTE-_MWE+_A=+—H AEBEITE
EH TN SR 2 HE - RE BB EEZY)
BE SR ONIE TE SRR B R [
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB W RO

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group provided financial guarantees to
the banks in respect of the following items:

BT HER

RZB_WNE+_A=+—H XEEHKIA
TEREMRITREESBER

2024 2023
—BoME —F-Z=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTRT ARETET
Guarantees in respect of mortgage MAEBEETWEERN
facilities provided for certain purchasers RRE SRR HNER
of the Group’s properties 27,020,673 27,163,103

In addition, the Group's share of the joint ventures’ and associates’
own financial guarantees, which are not included in the above, is as
follows:

o AEREEES LR RBERRAY
M SRR (L ARAA LSO T

2024 2023
—EoWE T =F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR%ETET
Guarantees in respect of mortgage AeE AR REER
facilities provided for certain purchasers ETYEERNZRBER
of the joint ventures’ and associates’ R A ER
properties 3,293,445 3,937,472

As at 31 December 2024, the Group provided guarantees to banks in
connection with loan amount of RMB1,451,630,000 (31 December
2023: RMB1,530,500,000) granted to joint ventures and associates.

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2024
PEREEIERERAR / — T NFEFR

MR-_ZE-_WE+-_A=+—8 KEEAHRR
TRTEEAFARBERAIZERESER
AR ¥ 1,451,630,000c (ZE==F+= A
=+—H8: AR#¥1,530,500,000 7T ) 12 HIER -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE D

COMMITMENTS HHE
As at 31 December 2024, the contractual commitments of the Group R-Z-_ME+_-_F=+—H AEEHED
were as follows: BHEENT
2024 2023
ZEINFE T =F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETT
Capital expenditure for properties under FERBIRBEMERF Y
development and construction of REEPRENENE AR
investment properties in Mainland China 17,080,583 17,337,202

In addition, the Group's share of the joint ventures’ and associates’ 4+ AEBEE(REE QA B E QA H

own contractual commitments, which are not included in the above, — HIE %5 49&HE R A A EFTH) 20F ¢
is as follows:
2024 2023
—BoNE —F-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR%ETET
Capital expenditure for joint ventures’ and &N R R E A EIE BKRER
associates’ properties under development ERPMERBERZRRE
and construction of investment properties MEHERERX
in Mainland China 1,096,209 1,367,857
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB W&

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had a total of 6,201 employees (31
December 2023: 6,845 employees). During the year, the total cost of
employees was approximately RMB660,062,000 (2023: approximately
RMB943,489,000). The Company recognises the importance of
gender diversity and recruits employees at all levels based on merits
and regardless of gender. As at 31 December 2024, the Group had
3,950 male employees and 2,251 female employees and the male-to-
female ratio in the workforce, including the senior management, was
approximately 1:0.57, which is regarded by the board (the “Board”)
of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company as satisfactory and in
line with the industry which the Group operates its businesses in. The
Group shall further strengthen the gender diversity in the workforce
in the future where appropriate. The Group provides employees
with competitive remuneration and benefits and has adopted share
option schemes to provide incentives and rewards to, among others,
the employees (please refer to the section headed “Report of the
Directors — Share Option Scheme” of this annual report for further
details of the share option schemes). The Group reviews the employee
remuneration plan at least annually to ensure that it maintains market
competitiveness and allows the employees to receive fair and equal
rewards. The remuneration and promotion decision are also based
on considering the employees’ assessment results, experience, skills
and personal characteristics. In addition, the Group has established
China SCE College to provide employees with three types of training
programs, namely business courses, quality skills and cultural identity.
The Group has launched its management trainee programme since
2011 for positions in selected functional areas in order to build pipeline
for succession.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The remuneration of the senior management of the Group by
band and the respective number of persons for the year ended 31
December 2024 are set out below:

\

& 8 Ko BN EUR

NR-ZZE-_WME+-_A=+—8 KNEBEHRE
6201 B EE (ZE_=F+ZH=1+—
H:6845%) TN EERABEHAR
660,062,000 T (ZE-_=F : H AR
943,489,0007T) > AR Al R # EI M B % ik
MEEHE YREEEEM TR BES
PEIT - HE-_T-_NME+—_A=+—H -
ANEEAF39550B BB ITM2251 B L IEE
T BESHAEEAEERNNE IBMAE+SSH
ZH B4 AE1:057 ARREE([EE)) €
(BB )RBLSAREBLFEAEBEE
EBMENTE -AEEREBEEERBR
TE—H B E TBRAMMERZ Tt - A&
ErfEEREETFE NNEHWEFBERE RN
BREASEESEBREE (EPBE)EES
(EEBRE S NE— P15 BREAF
WRIEEGRE| P [ERETS] &) - K
CESLVEERTEIFINT R UHEEFRE
BEMEHFNIRZETESAERTEN
HE - MHFMEEANRENEREEET
MR R 85 - HEEREBEARSEEDL -
SEoh  AEBEBR T RS A8 TR
HiRi2 - REHEEN UL RRA = EHFINIEER -
BE-Z—— R AEEAETEBEMA
EEEAE - BRENETMRITERS -

EELEREREFH

HEZ-_M&F+-_A=+—HILEFELXSE
EeREEENTINGEE MEEBAZNT

Number of

Persons

Remuneration Bands HNEE A
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 T £ 1,500,000 7% 7T 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7 T & 2,500,000 7% 7T 3

Further details of Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
employees are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group actively fulfils its social responsibilities of protecting the
environment and plays an exemplary role by undertaking the mission
of promoting social environmental protection activities. As we
develop our business, we prioritise environmental considerations. We
comprehensively strengthen the management of water resources,
energy, waste, and greenhouse gas emissions, while also promoting
green construction, and incorporates environmentally friendly practices
into its daily course of business to enhance energy and resource
efficiency. This helps us work towards achieving carbon peak and
carbon neutrality, contributing to the development of sustainable cities
and communities.

Please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of
the Group published by the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s business is mainly operated by its subsidiaries
incorporated or established in the British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong
and the PRC and the Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and is a listed company on the Main Board of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. Therefore, the Group should comply with relevant
laws and regulations of the Cayman Islands, British Virgin Islands, the
PRC and Hong Kong. The Group will seek professional legal opinions
from its Legal Department and legal advisors when necessary to
ensure that the Group’s transactions and business are in conformity
with all applicable laws and regulations.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

China SCE has always insisted on the characteristic management
concept of “Human-Centric” and put it into the construction of
human resources. China SCE understands that protecting the interests
and development of its employees is not only a business necessity,
but a fundamental goal that must be achieved. In order to fulfill its
corporate responsibility, the Group has developed a unique people-
oriented employment mechanism, created a working environment
that respects equal participation and diversity, the Group attached
great importance to protecting the health and safety of workers,
improving welfare benefits and employee care, and building a
harmonious and integrated professional team.

BEER W& D

RIBBR M RE

AEBERBEITERERFENLGEE &
EEEEEILERFADNED  BERAE
BREBOABED MAHRRNERE &2
ENSRKER  BER  BEEY RERBH
MHER HETGERE UHRFETHH
BREMRDP - R BERMEBERMARE -
RAEBRFCEEME DM > BRBERATRF
BRI EIEL TR -

F2HARRTENAEERE HENRE
AWE o

BTHEBARENMIER

AEENEBERERAKE AL MR R
BRZEHS BERTENEB QAT
MARBRFESRHSEMR AL R F BB R
PRERLE™ 8t "EELAETHSH
5 RBREZES TEREBHBNER
FOER - AR B @S KE T EABE MERE
R(ERER)NBEXEIEER  BRAKE
ETORZFNEBNEBRBEVERER ©

BMAEEES FFREEE
0 2R

THRIAKREBERIEARFIE—BRAKERE
MERRESIYKEEFRANERER -
BRRPAHEE TR NBERITMESXEHH
2 - ME-—EALAEEANEABR - RTE
TEEEE AEBUAB/K KT —F
BRAOEABARS  RIEEEFELER
ZHAENITERE  SEERREIEEN
BEELE TERMNGFEMBETHEIE &2
TMGE AR B EEK o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB W&

The Group maintains a solid relationship with its existing and
prospective customers, which plays a vital role in the development and
success of the Group. The Group’s “SCE Club” is established for such
purpose. The Group attaches great importance to customer satisfaction
and has adopted various measures and collected customer feedback
through various channels. The Group conducted a residential customer
satisfaction survey to better understand the feedbacks and expectations
of our customers. In the future, the Group will continue to improve
the quality of its projects and services so as to increase customer
satisfaction and loyalty. As a property project developer, China SCE
attaches great importance to the quality and safety of its projects. The
Group maintains close communication with its suppliers to ensure the
quality of its properties. In addition, the Group also responds properly
to customer complaints, respects intellectual property rights and has the
responsibility to protect customer information and privacy. The Group
is committed to ensuring the quality of its projects, and also attaches
importance to sound customer service management and continuous
attention to customer feedback on its projects. The Group ensures the
quality of its projects and satisfies customers’ needs through different
ways and measures.

The Group also establishes long-term collaboration with international
prominent designers in architecture and landscape and famous
construction contractors, while maximising its efforts to ensure its
adherence to the objective of providing customers with premium
properties. The Group selects qualified construction contractors
through tender process in accordance with applicable laws and
regulations, and conducts thorough due diligence review over such
contractors. Successful tenderers are selected based on a variety of
factors, including costs, construction completion schedule, quality
performance of construction projects, construction planning,
manpower distribution, safety measures and standards, equipment
and facilities and the industrial experience of project managers.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not hold any
other significant investment, or conduct any material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year
ended 31 December 2024.

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT

As at the date of approval of this annual report, the Group did not
have any future plan for material investments or capital assets.
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MAJOR PROPERTIES PROFILE
ERYEEN

Properties
Completed Properties Held Percentage of
Investment Properties under for Future Total  Attributable
Project City Type of Property Properties  Held for Sale Development Development Planned GFA  to the Group
BELE Lk | AERE
B wm ES ki RENx CEANE REPUE #RUE BEER JEfh s
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)

(FAK) (FAK) (FAK) (FA%) (F7%)

Bohai Rim Economic Zone

BHEEER
Beijing CBD SCE Funworld Beijing Commercial 32,443 - - - 32,443 100
3L 7% CBD R 8 55 R [
Royal Terrace Beijing Commercial 22,640 - - - 22,640 100
] ! EE
Sunshine Mansion Beijing Residential - 6,961 - - 6,961 100
mEZE kR %
Cloudview Terrace/Imperial
Terrace Beijing Residential and commercial - 9,086 225,935 - 235,021 100
ERE/FRE IR FEREZ
Beijing West Chang'an
SCE Funworld Beijing Commercial 108,963 - - - 108,963 65
FRARLRERE R ER [
The Cloudland Beijing Residential - 17,152 119,626 30,055 166,833 75
AREH R fiz
Polaris Bay Tianjin Residential - 2,837 - - 2,837 95
RRE R %
Galaxy Tianjin Residential - - 5014 - 5014 43
P R %
Gratifying Bay Tianjin Residential - 6,239 - - 6,239 9
H=E R %
Imperial Palace Tianjin Residential - - 105,727 - 105,727 100
RER R %
Royal Manor Qingdao Residential and commercial - 19,220 - 400,578 419,798 96
ESH 55 EERES
Parkview Palace Qingdao Residential - 10,198 - - 10,198 100
BEH 55 %
Uptown Jinan Commercial - 6,955 - - 6,955 100
w3 - S
Royal Palace Jinan Residential - 1,622 - - 1,622 95
ERR B fi=
Parkview Bay Jinan Residential - 2419 - 185,366 187,785 84
HRE B fi=
Parkview Mount (Zhucheng) ~ Weifang Residential - 2,480 - 121,902 124,382 100
B i fi=
SCE Funworld Weifang Commercial 108,033 - - - 108,033 100
et R i GES
Parkview Mount Weifang Residential - 11,130 120,929 113,548 245,607 97
B i %
Sunshine City Tangshan  Residential and commercial - 21,442 - - 21,442 100
MEmE EIl i) G
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MAJOR PROPERTIES PROFILE

N Sz b
FEYERENT
Properties
Completed Properties Held Percentage of
Investment Properties under for Future Total  Attributable
Project City Type of Property Properties  Held for Sale Development Development Planned GFA  to the Group
BEHE aRa ¥ 1]
BH W mEER RENE CERNE BRTUE HENE BEER i ER
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m) (%)
(E77) (EAK) (FAR) (EAK) (EAK)
The Royal Bay Dezhou Residential - 16,387 - - 16,387 100
ERE = E
Royal Spring City Anshan Residential, commercial and hotel - 6,401 - 1,454,903 1,461,304 70
BSA Il % BERBE
Yanjiao Funlive Yanjiao Commercial 26,043 - - - 26,043 55
b3yl D B3
Imperial Manor Weihai Residential - - 37,982 113,892 151,874 100
B BB f£%
SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount ~ Yantai Residential and commercial - - 66,318 113,867 180,185 100
R Ryl BIE &a TEREE
SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount  Binzhou Residential and commercial - - 176,027 532,785 708,812 100
R Ry BIE EM TEREE
SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount  Rizhao Residential and commercial - - 96,893 - 96,393 100
hEkt R/ B g =K TEREE
Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone
REAKER
SCE Plaza Phase 2 Shanghai Commercial 120,060 23,862 - - 143,922 61
R RS H ] 53
Skyline Tower Shanghai Commercial 52,992 8,035 - - 61,027 100
KBS ] 53
The Paramount Shanghai Commercial - 1,746 - - 1,746 100
S i 53
The Glamour Shanghai Residential 2,491 - - - 2,491 100
Rig s} €
Imperial Manor Shanghai Residential and commercial - 41,013 - - 41,013 100
B i) TEREE
Shanghai Guangfulin Funlive/
Imperial Manor Shanghai  Residential and commercial - 75,244 61,711 - 136,955 100
IEEERIBLE/BE LA TERESE
The Royal Bay Shanghai ~ Residential - 117 - - 117 100
ESE i =E
Parkview Bay Hangzhou  Residential and commercial 46,380 - - - 46,380 100
HEE M TERESE
Hangzhou Woven City/
Dinghu Funlive Hangzhou  Residential and commercial - - 1,207,866 - 1,207,866 100
MANRRER,/ SHH B ol TEREE
Suzhou Project (Kunshan) Suzhou Residential and commercial - 81,761 - 449,883 531,644 78
BMER (R1) B TEREE
Parkview Mount Suzhou Residential and commercial - - 42,928 - 42,928 9%
Bk B FEREE
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MAJOR PROPERTIES PROFILE

N o= S2 b~ /\
FEYER
Properties
Completed Properties Held Percentage of
Investment Properties under for Future Total  Attributable
Project City Type of Property Properties  Held for Sale Development Development Planned GFA  to the Group
BEHE aRa r5H
ER B nERR RENE CERNE  BROUE HFENE BEER L ER
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)

(FAK) (FAK) (FAK) (FA%) (FAK)

Zhangjiagang SCE Funworld Suzhou Commercial 87,152 = = = 87,152 100
R BT R M [
Imperial Manor Suzhou Residential - 29,481 - - 29,481 90
B BM i€
Huagiao SCE Funworld/

Imperial Manor Suzhou Residential and commercial 218,834 - 86,307 - 305,141 100
Al utis Ve v M EEREZ
6 Park Square Nanjing Commercial - 47,398 - 144,110 191,508 64
AR R [
Parkview Bay Nanjing Residential and commercial - 7,425 - - 7,425 50
HRE R EEREZ
Hai'an SCE Funworld/

Parkview Mount Nantong Residential and commercial 105,411 - 179,093 - 284,504 100
RS RS B i EERER
Rudong SCE Funworld/

Imperial Manor Nantong Residential and commercial 107,471 - 73,889 227,016 408,376 100

IRBEE/BUEE BB EEEES

Haimen SCE Funworld/

Imperial Manor Nantong Residential and commercial - - - 172,817 172,817 70
PRt Ry B i TEREE
Parkview Bay Xuzhou Residential and commercial - 4,594 - - 4,59 100
hsE B®M TEREE
Golden Riviera Xuzhou Residential and commercial - 32,499 - - 32,499 70
£ B®M FEREE
Parkview City Xuzhou Residential - 242,594 - - 242,594 100
ESH #®M FE
Lake Manor Xuzhou Residential and commercial - - 228,486 - 228,486 54
AR #®M TEREE
Parkview Mount Taizhou Residential and commercial - - 41,955 - 41,955 98
B ZNM FEREE
SCE Funworld/

Parkview Residence Taizhou Commercial 144,168 - 21,577 - 165,745 100
Rt Ry, B AR ZM RS
SCE Funworld/Imperial Manor - Chizhou Residential and commercial 100,923 6,718 85,056 99,500 292,197 100
ekt R,/ IE Sl TEREE
SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount ~ Hefei Residential and commercial 175,366 - 324,799 - 500,165 100
et R/ BEE &I FEREE
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MAJOR PROPERTIES PROFILE

hY o= S2 b~ /\
FEYEGBN

Properties

Completed Properties Held Percentage of

Investment Properties under for Future Total  Attributable

Project City Type of Property Properties  Held for Sale Development Development Planned GFA  to the Group

LS k| AERE

B Hm bES i RENE CEANE REPUE #RUE BEER EihER

(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)

(FAK) (FAK) (FAK) (FAK) (FA%)

West Taiwan Strait Economic Zone

BT F SR

Imperial Manor Fuzhou Residential and commercial 17,002 - 271,172 - 44,174 100
BR &M TEREE

SCE Funworld/Imperial Manor  Fuzhou Residential and commercial 133,707 4,023 176,753 - 314,483 99
skt R B &l TEREE

SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount ~ Nanchang  Residential and commercial 115,137 491 48,874 - 164,502 99
Tkt R B g ME TEREE

SCE Building Phase 1 Xiamen Office and commercial 10,098 - - - 10,098 100
HSEEAE B B WAEREE

SCE Building Phase 2 Xiamen Office and commercial 36,597 - - - 36,597 100
HREBAE=H Ef WAEREE

The Regent Xiamen Residential - 2,743 - - 2,743 100
AR Ef FE

The Skyland Xiamen Residential - 14,660 - - 14,660 80
X EF %

Nan‘an SCE Funworld Quanzhou  Commercial 72,618 - - - 72,618 100
EpGiE g M A%

Imperial Manor Quanzhou  Residential and commercial - 22,603 - - 22,603 40
ERE M FERESE

The Paramount Quanzhou  Residential, office and commercial 42,975 - - - 42,975 100
PSS M FE - BAEREE

Quanzhou SCE Funworld Quanzhou  Commercial 145,302 - - - 145,302 58
SR AR Bt SR M RS

Fortune Plaza e Imperial Terrace  Quanzhou  Residential, office and commercial - 38 33,027 - 33,065 100
HERL 16 E FM FE WAZREE

Parkview Palace Quanzhou  Residential and commercial - 27,056 - - 27,056 70
ERN £M FEREE

Gold Coast Quanzhou  Residential and commercial 28,547 24,800 18,084 97,239 168,670 45
g FM EEREE

SCE Mall (Shishi) Quanzhou  Office 28,707 - - - 28,707 60
e (R ) M /N

SCE Plaza Quanzhou  Office and commercial 31,805 - - - 31,805 100
hEES M BAZREE

Cloudview Palace Quanzhou  Residential and commercial - 1,574 - - 1,574 0
28R £M TEREE

Imperial Terrace Quanzhou  Residential - 104,482 - - 104,482 100
HER £M e

Shuitou SCE Funworld Quanzhou  Commercial 84,360 - - - 84,360 100
TKEE AR B t SR M A%

Imperial Palace Quanzhou  Residential - 33,181 - - 33,181 70
RER M %

Cloudview Palace Quanzhou  Residential - 71,032 - - 71,032 100
2 M €
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MAJOR PROPERTIES PROFILE

N o= S2 b~ /\
FEYEEBN
Properties
Completed Properties Held Percentage of
Investment Properties under for Future Total  Attributable
Project City Type of Property Properties  Held for Sale Development Development Planned GFA  to the Group
BELE BRE ¥ 1)
BR B nERR RENE CERNE  BROUE HFENE EEER L ER
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)

(FAK) (FAK) (FAK) (FA%) (FAK)

Imperial Terrace Quanzhou  Residential - 25,620 104,914 - 130,534 100
EERN FM =2

Cloudview Palace Zhangzhou  Residential and commercial - 60,685 - - 60,685 43
28R =M TEREE

Parkview Palace Zhangzhou  Residential and commercial - 13,228 - - 13,228 90
=Y EM TEREE

Cloudview Terrace Shangrao Residential and commercial - 11,315 184,961 - 196,276 9
] s EEREE

SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount  Shangrao Residential and commercial 99,783 1,167 218,337 54,242 373,529 100
R Ryl BIE s TEREE

SCE Funworld/Parkview Bay Putian Residential and commercial 82,854 7,062 - - 89,916 90
et R HRE #H TEREE

Imperial Manor Longyan Residential - 67,144 - - 67,144 100
Gilk=y Ea T=x

Guangdong — Hong Kong — Macao Greater Bay Area

BERAAEE

Royal Terrace Foshan Residential and commercial - 1,246 5,676 - 6,922 %8
2B i1 EREE

Parkview Palace Huizhou Residential and commercial - 15,311 81,760 - 97,07 96

i} M FEREZ

The Royal Bay Huizhou Residential and commercial - 3,943 - - 3,943 58
2E M FEREZ

Royal Terrace Huizhou Residential and commercial - 4,346 - - 4,346 9%
RE =M EERES

Cloudview Palace Jieyang Residential - 26,180 61,821 - 88,001 9%

ERI el i€

SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount  Jieyang Residential and commercial 126,166 5223 153,596 287,775 572,760 %8

it R/ R IE &5 ) S

The Royal Bay Meizhou Residential - 22,631 - 98,237 120,868 100

iz M fiz

SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount  Meizhou Residential and commercial 112,969 4279 48,753 403,043 569,044 100

it R/ R E il ) G

SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount ~ Shaoguan ~ Residential and commercial 110,577 4,157 128,319 351,480 594,533 100

Mt R/ R E Eilc | ) S

The Royal Bay Shaoguan  Residential - 8290 59,252 403,317 470,859 100
=E il fiE

SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount ~ Heyuan Residential and commercial 91,568 9,103 269,119 - 369,790 98

et R, B R EERE%

Century Palace Shanwei Residential and commercial - 127 - 239,848 239,975 83

EREH WE EERE%

SCE Funworld/Imperial Manor ~ Shantou Residential and commercial 115,694 145,806 278,130 - 539,630 95

et R SR EERE%
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MAJOR PROPERTIES PROFILE

hY o= S2 b~ /\
FE2YERBT

Properties

Completed Properties Held Percentage of

Investment Properties under for Future Total  Attributable

Project City Type of Property Properties  Held for Sale Development Development Planned GFA  to the Group

LS k| AERE

B Hm bES i RENE CEANE REPUE #RUE BEER JEfh L

(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)

(FAK) (FAK) (FAK) (FAK) (FA%)

Central Western Region

FEPLE

Cloudview Terrace Chongging ~ Residential and commercial - 9,195 - - 9,195 9%
ERE B EERES

The Royal Bay Chongging ~ Residential and commercial - 6,461 - - 6,461 74
ERE BF EEREE

Imperial Terrace Chongging ~ Residential and commercial - 9,782 61,107 - 70,889 47
ERE B EERES

Liberty Mountain Chongging  Residential and commercial - 8477 - - 8477 49
B B EERES

Imperial Manor Chongging  Residential - 23,642 44,424 - 68,066 50
BB B %

SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount ~ Chongging  Residential and commercial 112,478 12,991 100,222 189,956 415,647 100
et Ry, BE Bl i) G

Imperial Manor Zhengzhou  Residential - 12,675 - - 12,675 90
B g %

Cloudview Palace Zhengzhou  Residential - - 85816 62,616 148,432 99
ER g %

Cloud Valley Kunming Residential and commercial - 12,095 171,103 1,134,914 1,318,112 67
EANE B EERE%

Cloudview Terrace Shanggiu  Residential and commercial - 19,178 116,014 - 135,192 76
ERE BE EERE%

SCE Funworld/Imperial Manor ~ Xiangtan Residential and commercial - - 117,597 680,216 797,813 100
et R, B HE EERER

SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount ~ Zhumadian  Residential and commercial 136,829 7,489 204,643 348,713 697,674 98
it R B & BEE EERER

Parkview Mount Xuchang Residential - - 155,826 - 155,826 97
B Fia=] %

Imperial Manor Xuchang Residential - - - 208,250 208,250 97
BE Fia=] %

SCE Funworld/Imperial Manor  Pingdingshan  Residential and commercial 88,996 5983 186,854 - 281,833 9%
et R/ FIEL EERE%

Parkview Manor Pingdingshan Residential - - 427,390 - 427,390 90
= FIEL %

Parkview Mount Zhaotong Residential - - 174,233 - 174,233 100
Bk 2] %

Parkview Mount Lincang Residential and commercial - 7,79 108,241 - 116,035 80
Rig ] EERE%

SCE Funworld/Parkview Mount ~ Tongchuan  Residential and commercial 93,398 - 133,548 484,801 711,747 98
Mt R/ B8 i)l EERE%

Parkview Mount Wenshan ~ Residential and commercial - 9,438 120,891 99,051 229,380 100
5 pll EERER

Parkview Bay Chengdu Residential and commercial 44,751 - 71,987 - 116,738 100
EEEY R EERER
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEAEEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wong Chiu Yeung (ZE8i3), aged 59, is one of the founders of the
Group and the chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of
the Company. Mr. Wong was appointed as an executive Director
on 30 November 2007, as well as the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) and
a member of the remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and is also the director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC, Hong Kong and
the British Virgin Islands. Mr. Wong is responsible for formulating
business development strategies for the Group, commercial property
management and financial investment management. Since his
involvement in the development of the Group's first project in
1996, Mr. Wong has been involved in all of the projects developed
by the Group thereafter, and has about 29 years of experience in
real estate development. Mr. Wong is the vice chairman of Hong
Kong Association for the Promotion of Peaceful Reunification of
China, guest professor of Nanchang University, vice chairman of the
board of directors of Quanzhou Normal University, chairman of the
board of directors of Nan’an Huagiao Middle School, permanent
honourable chairman of HK Federation of Fujian Associations. Mr.
Wong holds an Executive Master of Business Administration degree
from Xiamen University. Mr. Wong is the father of Mr. Wong Lun,
an executive Director of the Company. Mr. Wong is the sole director
and sole shareholder of each of Newup Holdings Limited, East
Waves Investments Limited and Keen Century Investments Limited,
which had interests of approximately 39.31%, 5.45% and 5.45%
respectively in the issued share capital of the Company as at 31
December 2024 that would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.

HITES
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REABEESCERRAQRBNITRER -BEE
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SEHEGERNMAEBEE ZES5EBHAYN
ZTNFEHERBLES JmEAEATEM
Ior—REeRBReaeRr HEAER
EHE - RNMEE2REESEER B
ZEGPEEZSESER  BHERELBEE
ERELEER -BAXEBEBEMAEGR
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Chen Yuanlai (BRJt3K), aged 58, is one of the founders of the Group
and the vice chairman of the Board of the Company. Mr. Chen was
appointed as an executive Director on 12 August 2009 and is also the
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC,
Hong Kong and the British Virgin Islands. Mr. Chen is responsible for
formulating business development strategies for the Group. Since
his involvement in the development of the Group’s first project in
1996, he has been involved in all of the projects developed by the
Group thereafter, and has about 29 years of experience in real estate
development. Mr. Chen also has extensive experience in investment
management and project management through his involvement in
all of the projects developed by the Group. Mr. Chen completed
the Executive Management course in Business Administration of
Commercial Real Estate Development and Funding, a one-year
programme offered by the School of Professional and Continuing
Education of The University of Hong Kong and Fudan University,
Shanghai, in May 2008. Mr. Chen has completed an Executive Master
of Business Administration programme in Xiamen University. Mr.
Chen is the sole director and sole shareholder of Rising Trade Holdings
Limited, which had interests of approximately 5.45% in the issued
share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2024 that would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. Mr. Chen
resigned as an executive Director with effect from 24 January 2025.

Cheng Hiu Lok (EREEL%) aged 60, is one of the founders of the
Group and the vice chairman of the Board of the Company. Mr.
Cheng was appointed as an executive Director on 12 August 2009
and is also the director of certain subsidiaries of the Company
established in the PRC, Hong Kong and the British Virgin Islands.
Mr. Cheng is responsible for formulating business development
strategies for the Group. Since his involvement in the development
of the Group's first project in 1996, he has been involved in all of
the projects developed by the Group thereafter. Mr. Cheng has
about 29 years of experience in real estate development. Mr. Cheng
also has extensive experience in investment management, project
management and construction management through his involvement
in the projects developed by the Group. Mr. Cheng completed his
college education at Fujian Normal University in 1987. Mr. Cheng
is the sole director and sole shareholder of Wealthy Gate Holdings
Limited, which had interests of approximately 5.45% in the issued
share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2024 that would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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Huang Youquan (E{{#), aged 56, is an executive Director and
an executive president of the Company. Mr. Huang was appointed
as an executive Director on 1 May 2011 and was appointed as the
chairman of the corporate governance committee (the “Corporate
Governance Committee”) with effect from 1 January 2017. He is also
the director of certain subsidiaries of the Company established in
the PRC and Hong Kong. Mr. Huang is responsible for the financial
and treasury management of the Group. Before joining the Group
in 2003, Mr. Huang was the audit manager and assistant to the
head of the Xiamen office of Fujian Hongshen Accounting Firm. Mr.
Huang graduated from the Department of Mathematics of Xiamen
University with a Bachelor’s degree in Science in 1991. Mr. Huang
is @ member of Fujian Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Huang has completed an Executive Master of Business Administration
programme in Xiamen University. From January 2021 to August
2024, Mr. Huang served as a non-executive director of SCE Intelligent
Commercial Management Holdings Limited (0606) (“SCE CM"),
which is a subsidiary of the Company and the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Wong Lun (Zf&), aged 37, is an executive Director and a vice
president of the Company. Mr. Wong was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company with effect from 1 March 2017. He is
also the director of certain subsidiaries of the Company established
in the PRC, Hong Kong, the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin
Islands. Mr. Wong is responsible for investor relations and commercial
management of the Group. Mr. Wong is currently the chairman of
the board and an executive director of SCE CM, which is a subsidiary
of the Company and the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong joined the
Group in September 2010. Mr. Wong graduated from the School
of Engineering of University of Warwick with a Bachelor’s degree of
Science in Engineering and Business Studies in 2010. Mr. Wong holds
an Executive Master of Business Administration Degree from China
Europe International Business School. Mr. Wong Lun is the son of Mr.
Wong Chiu Yeung, an executive Director and chairman of the Board
of the Company. Mr. Wong resigned as an executive Director with
effect from 29 August 2024.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Zhang Haitao (58 &&), aged 56, is an executive Director and a
general manager of the Audit and Compliance Department of the
Company. Ms. Zhang was appointed as an executive Director on 29
August 2024. Ms. Zhang is responsible for the internal audit and
compliance of the Group. Before joining the Group in January 2007,
Ms. Zhang was the senior manager of Xiamen Tianjian Huatian
Accounting Firm. Ms. Zhang graduated from the Department
of Accounting of Xiamen University with a Bachelor’s degree in
Economics in 1990. Ms. Zhang is a member of Fujian Institute of
Certified Public Accountants with extensive auditing experience. Ms.
Zhang has completed an Executive Master of Business Administration
programme in Xiamen University. Ms. Zhang has obtained the legal
advice referred on in Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules on 28 August
2024. She has confirmed that she understood her obligations as a
Director of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ting Leung Huel Stephen (T R#§), aged 71, MH, FCCA, FCPA
(Practising), CTA (HK), ACA, FHKIloD, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 6 January 2010 and is also
the chairman of the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”), and a member of each of the Remuneration Committee
and the Corporate Governance Committee. Mr. Ting is a professional
accountant and has more than 40 years of experience in accounting,
auditing and management. Mr. Ting is a non-executive director of
Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited (0116), a company
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, and an independent non-
executive director of four other companies listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange, namely Tongda Group Holdings Limited (0698), New
Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited (0472), Computer And Technologies
Holdings Limited (0046), and Dongyue Group Limited (0189). From
November 2004 to May 2023, Mr. Ting served as an independent
non-executive director of Texhong International Group Limited (2678),
which is listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. From October 2004
to June 2024, Mr. Ting served as an independent non-executive director
of Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co., Ltd. (1666), which is listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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Dai Yiyi (Bi7°—), aged 57, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 6 January 2010 and is also the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each of
the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Dai is a
full-time professor of the Executive Master of Business Administration
programme and a PhD. supervisor of the School of Management of
Xiamen University and the chairman of the board of the Jin Yuan
Research Institute of Xiamen University. Mr. Dai also serves as an
adjunct professor for real estate CEO programmes hosted by Tsinghua
University and Peking University. Mr. Dai is the vice dean of the School
of Management of Xiamen University between January 2008 and
December 2015. Mr. Dai is an independent non-executive director
of Cosmo Lady (China) Holdings Company Limited (2298) and C&D
International Investment Group Limited (1908), which are listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange, and an independent director of Xiamen
ITG Corp., Ltd. (600755) and Xiamen Bank Co., Ltd. (601187) which
are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. From March 2021 to April
2023, Mr. Dai served as an independent non-executive director of
Guangdong-Hong Kong Greater Bay Area Holdings Limited (1396),
which is listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. From July 2016 to
July 2022, Mr. Dai was an independent director of Fujian Septwolves
Industry Co., Ltd. (002029) which is listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange. From May 2016 to May 2022, Mr. Dai was an independent
director of Xiamen C&D Inc. (600153), which is listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. Mr. Dai graduated from Xiamen University with a
Bachelor’s degree in Economics in 1989, and received a Doctoral
degree in Economics from Xiamen University in 1999. Mr. Dai was
awarded a certificate as a PRC Certified Property Valuer in 1997.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Mao Zhenhua (E#x%), aged 61, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 30 May 2023 and is
also a member of each of the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee. Mr. Mao
is currently the chairman of China Chengxin Credit Management
Co., Ltd. (“China Chengxin”), a professor at the Renmin University
of China, the chairman of the Institute of Economic Research of the
Renmin University of China, a professor of Wuhan University and
Dean of Dong Fureng Economic & Social Development School of
Wuhan University. He has been a professor at the Business School
of the University of Hong Kong since 2022. Mr. Mao founded China
Chengxin in 1992. Since then, he has acted as its general manager
and chairman, and later on he has further acted as its chief executive
officer. He was the major shareholder and controller of China Cheng
Xin International Credit Rating Co., Ltd. Mr. Mao is a non-executive
director of Meilleure Health International Industry Group Limited
(2327), a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, and
an independent non-executive director of China Infrastructure &
Logistics Group Ltd. (1719), a company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. From June 2016 to January 2025, Mr. Mao served
as an independent non-executive director of China Bohai Bank Co.,
Ltd. (9668) which is listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr.
Mao graduated from Wuhan University with a doctoral degree in
Economics.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Tang Xiaojuan (Bf&%8), aged 52, is a vice president of the
Company. She is responsible for information technology management
of the Group. Prior to joining the Group in August 2002, Ms. Tang
served as the office manager of Xiamen Yong Hong Ji Real Estate
Development Company Limited. Ms. Tang graduated from the
Department of International Trade and Economics in Jiangxi University
of Finance and Economics with a Bachelor’s degree in Economics
in 1994. Ms. Tang has completed an Executive Master of Business
Administration programme in Xiamen University.
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Peng Fei (&), aged 42, was appointed as an executive president
of the Company on 16 December 2024. He is responsible for the
marketing management, land acquisition and management of the
Southeast Region of the Group. Prior to joining the Group in October
2007, Mr. Peng served as a marketing manager of Xiamen Strategic
Property Agency Limited. Mr. Peng graduated from Beijing Institute
of Technology in Business Administration in 2016. Mr. Peng has
completed an Executive Master of Business Administration programme
in Xiamen University.

Wang Yue (E ), aged 49, was appointed as an assistant
president of the Company on 1 July 2020. He is responsible for
cost management, purchasing management and construction
management of the Group. Before joining the Group in May 2002,
Mr. Wang was a project manager in China Construction Second
Engineering Bureau Ltd. Mr. Wang graduated from the Department
of Civil Engineering of Tongji University with a Bachelor's degree in
Engineering in 2007. Mr. Wang has completed an Executive Master of
Business Administration programme in Xiamen University.

Li Siu Po (Z4K), aged 56, is the financial controller and company
secretary of the Company. He is responsible for the financial
reporting, equity and debt financing and company secretarial work
of the Group. Before joining the Group in January 2008, Mr. Li was
a manager of one of the international CPA firms. Mr. Li graduated
from the Department of Accounting in the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a Bachelor’s degree in Accountancy in 1994. Mr. Li is
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Li has extensive experience in financial management and auditing.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Li Siu Po (Z4), a member of senior management of the Group, is
the financial controller and company secretary of the Company. The
biography of Mr. Li is set forth above.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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The Company has been committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance so as to enhance the operational efficiency
of the Company. The Company believes that such commitment
is beneficial to safeguard the interests of the Company and its
shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company and the
Board had been in compliance with the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code"”) contained in Part 2 of
Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules, save as disclosed in the paragraphs
headed “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” below.

DIRECTORS" SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “"Model Code”) set out in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for securities
transactions by the Directors.

The Company has made specific enquiries of all the Directors and all
the Directors have confirmed that they have strictly complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code during the year under
review.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

The members of the Board of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2024 are set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Yuanlai (resigned on 24 January 2025)
Mr. Cheng Hiu Lok

Mr. Huang Youquan

Mr. Wong Lun (resigned on 29 August 2024)

Ms. Zhang Haitao (appointed on 29 August 2024)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen

Mr. Dai Yiyi

Mr. Mao Zhenhua
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Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out in the section headed “Biography of Directors
and Senior Management” in this annual report. Mr. Wong Chiu
Yeung is the father of Mr. Wong Lun, both of whom are executive
Directors. Save as disclosed above, there is no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationships between Board
members.

Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen, one of the independent non-executive
Directors, has considerable experience in accounting and financial
management, which is in line with the requirement of Rule 3.10(2) of
the Listing Rules which states that “at least one of the independent
non-executive directors must have appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise”.

In accordance with the provision C.1.8 of the CG Code, the Company
has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the Directors in respect
of any possible legal action against them.

In accordance with Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, the Nomination
Committee shall have a policy concerning diversity of Board members.
In formulating its nomination policy, the Company has created
measurable targets in the following areas, including expertise,
experience, knowledge, professional skills, education background,
independence, age, etc. In doing so, the Company can ensure its
Directors reach the eligible level in terms of their expertise, industrial
experience, education background, independence, age and other
factors, which enable them to make corresponding contributions to
the Board whenever necessary and practicable. The Company and the
Nomination Committee periodically review the nomination policy and
are open to adopt further measurable objectives in the future based
on the business needs of the Company and to keep pace with the
prevailing regulatory requirements and good corporate governance
practice. Please refer to the paragraph headed “Nomination
Committee” of this corporate governance report regarding details
of the board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) adopted
by the Board and progress on achieving the measurable objectives to
implement the Board Diversity Policy.

/\\ '/\-h-\\ =+
1FE E/ﬁ#&%

AEEEERSREREREAFBEHNAF
BIEZEhSREEABRE|F -®HBE
EREREENRXE MAER/HTES -
BRIALBEIN EFZEREBEZEMEN -
£ RBIEMEKX FERENBARE -

BYFATEZTTREEEAGHENES
EHBERER 6 LWARAE310Q2) K
FREEL —BBIUFATEFVARBEE
MEXER  XAEGEENSHEBTH
EEER|ZRTE -

RIBETRIFECIBIHERTE  ARAERBTESH
EEERYNARTE  FHEENRERZH -

RIE EHRAN13.921%  REZESEZHRN
ERESEEKEZTILBE - EFEARR A
MIREBRE ARBEEREE &R A
#HOBF HEER BUM FHREIEAE
HERIGTERRE  NERSLUESERRE
TEER HEER BUM FRERE
EEREKRT  EEEVAMBIRERE
ESELBEEER - ARAFARREEEEE
s ERABRLERN AR BARKEBF
ZRMRAA T E BT - A RRENEE
ERFRENERERRTERL - FRAES
ERMANEZTSZTEBRR(EFSZ T
R MHBARERNEESZ TEEEKN
AETERROER  F2HAEEE RS
FREZEg] K-

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2024
REREBIERERAR / — T _MFFR

47



48

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

_I/J'_\‘ ’Hr #&m

In accordance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, for each financial
year, the company secretary of an issuer must take no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training. During the year, the Company
confirmed that the company secretary of the Company, Mr. Li Siu
Po, had participated in proper training programmes for not less than
15 hours to ensure his expertise is in line with all the requirements as
applicable to him.

In accordance with the provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. During the year, all
the Directors have complied with the requirement of the CG Code
through attending trainings and/or reading materials relevant to the
Company’s business or to director’s duties and responsibilities.

Name of Directors
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Trainings on Corporate
Governance, Regulatory
Development and
Other Relevant Topics

% E/l:l Eﬁmﬁgﬁ
EEnE H 4th 46 B = RE T A
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung Ei S v
Mr. Chen Yuanlai (resigned on 24 January 2025) BRTHRELE (R -_T-R4E
— A=+ BEEHE) v
Mr. Cheng Hiu Lok B R £ 5 A v
Mr. Huang Youquan =LA v
Mr. Wong Lun (resigned on 29 August 2024) EREE(RZT_MF
NAZ+ N BEME) v
Ms. Zhang Haitao (appointed on wEBEL T (RZTZMF
29 August 2024) NAZT+NWBEZE) v
Independent non-executive Directors BYHHITESE
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen TREBLEAE v
Mr. Dai Yiyi B — %4 v
Mr. Mao Zhenhua ERERE 4
The Board’s Responsibilities EEZENER
The Board is responsible to all shareholders for supervising and %% HEURRER 2EHEEREER
overseeing all major matters of the Company, including the RABABEEBERHT  SEHEMILEREE

formulation and approval of overall management and operation
strategies, reviewing the internal control and risk management
systems, reviewing financial performance, considering dividend policy
and monitoring the performance of the senior management, so as
to achieve high efficiency in relevant business of the Company. The
senior management is responsible for the daily management and
specific operation of the Group.
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Directors’ Attendance Record at Meetings

Pursuant to the provision C.5.1 of the CG Code, the board of issuers
should meet regularly and board meetings should be held at least four
times a year. For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company
has held five Board meetings, and passed one written resolution.
It is considered that the Directors were well acknowledged to the
operation of the Group for the year under review. The attendance
of each Director for the Board meetings and general meeting of the
Company is contained in the following table:

TEERRE

ESHFESRTE

RBTRIFCSIGRRTE  BITANEFTSRE
THIRE EF2e2REFARELTR -
BE_T_MFE+-_A= —I— BIEFE &

ﬂﬂ/\mﬁﬁﬂu\ﬁ%/\ —RUAERFEAB
BRER  BMERESS TLLé%ﬁ‘Tﬁ%.E’:‘@

BEANELARHANAE SEZHNRER
HEARRZEEEEARBERAGHERER
THIRE

Number of Number of
Attendances/ Attendance/
Number of Written  Total Number of
Board Meetings Resolutions General Meetings
BER#/ HERE
EEZ228AH EERBE ETN-F8
Executive Directors: HITESE
Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung =G LA 5/5 11 0/1
Mr. Chen Yuanlai BR 7T 2K 5% A4
(resigned on (R=—Z=-_R%F
24 January 2025) —AZTHABE) 4/4 11 01
Mr. Cheng Hiu Lok B P 4 2f A 4/4 1/1 01
Mr. Huang Youquan mWELE 4/4 1/1 0/1
Mr. Wong Lun :ﬂﬁ%f‘iﬁz
(resigned on (R=Z=mF
29 August 2024) NAZ+ N BEE) 3/3 11 11
Ms. Zhang Haitao wAEEL T
(appointed on (R=Z=mF
29 August 2024) NAZ+THLBEZE) 1/1 0/0 0/0
Independent non-executive B HEHITESE :
Directors:
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen T R4 5/5 11 11
Mr. Dai Yiyi BN —EAE 5/5 11 0/1
Mr. Mao Zhenhua EREXLE 3/5 11 0/1

l Except for chairman of the Company, Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung, all executive
Directors were exempted from attending the Board meeting held on
29 August 2024 in which the composition, duties and responsibilities of the

executive Directors were discussed.

| R-E-MENA-TARBRMNESSLH
EE BB RITE S S AR R G E S
B BAARIEESB AN HpHTE
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ERERRE

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the chairman
and the chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. During the year under review, Mr.
Wong Chiu Yeung performed his duties as both the chairman and
the chief executive officer of the Company. The Board believes that
the same individual serving as chairman and chief executive officer is
beneficial to the consistency and efficiency in execution of business
plans and decision-making of the Company.

COMPLIANCE OF NON-COMPETITION DEED

The Company entered into a non-competition deed (the “Non-
competition Deed”) with Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung on 6 January
2010 pursuant to which Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung has undertaken to
the Company not to compete with any business of the Group and
shall use his best endeavors to procure his affiliates not to engage
in, assist or support a third party in the operation of, or participate
or be interested in any property development business in the PRC.
Furthermore, Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung has undertaken to the Company
(for itself and for the benefit of the Group) that during the term of
the Non-competition Deed to procure any investment or commercial
opportunity relating to property development business in the PRC that
he or any of his affiliates identifies or proposes or that is offered or
presented to them by a third party to first refer such opportunity to
the Company in accordance with terms of the Non-competition Deed.

The Company has received a confirmation from Mr. Wong Chiu
Yeung for his compliance with the terms of the Non-competition
Deed during the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date
of this report. All the independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the matters relating to enforcement of the Non-competition
Deed and consider that the terms of the Non-competition Deed have
been complied with by Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors have been instrumental in
ensuring independent views and input are available to the Board.
The Board has received the written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors, confirming that he has met the
independence requirements set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board considers that all the independent non-executive Directors
are independent under these independence requirements.
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The independent non-executive Directors play an important role in
applying their independent analysis and professional judgments to
provide a professional and fair view to the decisions of the Board.
This is not only beneficial to the warranty of the scientific element
of the decision, but also enhancing the protection of interests of the
Company and its shareholders.

Please refer to the paragraph headed “Directors’ Service Contracts”
in the “Report of the Directors” of this annual report for the term of
appointment of independent non-executive Directors.

As at 31 December 2024, two long-serving independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen and Mr.
Dai Yiyi, have served the Board for more than nine years. Save for
their roles as independent non-executive Directors, they do not hold
any executive or management role and are not involved in the daily
management of the Company and the Group, nor do they have any
relationship, nor are there any circumstances which would interfere
with the exercise of their independent judgement. The Board is
satisfied that they meet the independence requirements of the Listing
Rules notwithstanding the length of their service with the Company.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the provisions of the CG Code, the Company established
its Remuneration Committee on 6 January 2010. Under Rule 3.25 of
the Listing Rules, the remuneration committee of issuers must appoint
an independent non-executive director as the chairman, and the
majority of the members shall be independent non-executive directors.
With effect from 1 April 2012, the Remuneration Committee,
comprising of Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung (an executive Director) and Mr.
Ting Leung Huel Stephen (an independent non-executive Director), is
chaired by Mr. Dai Yiyi (@an independent non-executive Director).

The prime duties of the Remuneration Committee are:

o to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

o to assess performance of executive Directors and approve the
terms of the service contracts of the executive Directors;
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TEERRE

o to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management;

° to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors; and

o to review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee held two
meeting to discuss the 2023 management bonus and 2024 salary
under the service contracts for executive Directors, and the salary under
the service contract for Ms. Zhang Haitao. Details of the attendance by
members of the Remuneration Committee are set out as below:

s REZSEBENATEZLSD
AEBHFH TS

REE

o HIFMITERNFMMESSRELESR:
K

e WBELMRAE17EFREN Sht/gH
B E AR ER -

BIEFENA - Mlé,\aéjﬁ'ﬁTﬁiu\@E”ET
uﬁ#ﬂTT§$—7—_¢EI§ TE4L - —m
iﬁﬁﬁ%élﬁ%ﬁ%\&ﬁ%%ﬁi%ﬁiﬂ’ﬂﬁ&ﬁ‘%é\
BEHM - SKERFHEZESSZNER L
FIERIAT :

Number of Attendance/
Total Number of Meeting

HERE ERAH
Mr. Dai Yiyi BN — A& 2/2
Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung =G LA 2/2
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen TREEE 2/2

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

According to the provisions of the CG Code, the Company established
the Nomination Committee on 6 January 2010. Under Rule 3.27A of
the Listing Rules, the majority of the nomination committee of issuers
must be independent non-executive directors, and the chairman of the
board or an independent non-executive director must be appointed
as the chairman of this committee. With effect from 30 May 2023,
the Nomination Committee, comprising independent non-executive
Directors Mr. Dai Yiyi and Mr. Mao Zhenhua, is chaired by Mr. Wong
Chiu Yeung, chairman of the Board and an executive Director.

The prime duties of the Nomination Committee are:

. to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;
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o to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board based on, amongst others, the Board Diversity
Policy and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

o to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors; and

o to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors,
succession planning for Directors in particular the chairman and
chief executive officer and the policy concerning the diversity of
Board members.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee held two
meeting to discuss the composition of the Board and the terms of
reference, the diversity policies for the Board, and other issues. Details
of the attendance by members of the Nomination Committee are set
out as below:

TEERRE

s YVEARAEERIETEFNAL:
YWEREFSZ T EBERREME RN
BREABATHEEFTIRUARES

2. 418 =
SRHE

o  FIEBMIFMTEFRNBUM K
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HEERIT

Number of
Attendance/Total
Number of Meeting

HERE SBAH

=HGRE
B —tE
ERESLE

Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung
Mr. Dai Yiyi
Mr. Mao Zhenhua

The Company and the Nomination Committee periodically review
the nomination policy and monitor the progress on achieving the
following measurable objectives (the “Measurable Objectives”) which
have been set for implementing diversity on the composition of Board.
For the year ended 31 December 2024, under the Board Diversity
Policy, the Board has adopted and the Company has fully achieved
the following Measurable Objectives:

(@) To ensure at least two members of the Board shall have
obtained accounting or other professional qualification;

(b) To ensure at least 35% of the members of the Board have more
than 10 years of experience in real estate development;

2/2
2/2
172
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W

() To ensure the appropriate proportion of the independent
non-executive Directors to the executive Directors in order to
maintain the independence of the Board. In particular, at least
35% of the members of the Board shall be independent non-
executive Directors;

(d) To ensure at least 60% of the members of the Board shall have
attained Bachelor’s degree or higher level of education;

(e) To ensure the age distribution of the members of the Board
is such that the Board comprised people from at least three
decades; and

(f)  To ensure at least one member of the Board shall be female.

The Board is a mixed-gender board with female representation
brought by Ms. Zhang Haitao, an executive Director. At present, the
Nomination Committee and the Board consider that an appropriate
balance of gender diversity of the Board is maintained. The
Nomination Committee will monitor the Group’s business needs and
consider further appointment of female directors as appropriate. The
Nomination Committee and the Board shall continue to take initiatives
to identify suitable female candidates for board succession planning
and enhancement of gender diversity in the Board. The Company
recognises the importance of gender diversity and recruits employees
at all levels based on merits and regardless of gender in order to
ensure there is a pipeline of male and female potential successors to
the Board and the senior management.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

According to the provisions of the CG Code, the Company
established the Audit Committee on 6 January 2010. Under Rule 3.21
of the Listing Rules, the audit committee of issuers must comprise all
non-executive directors. With effect from 30 May 2023, the Audit
Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
with Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen as the chairman, Mr. Dai Yiyi and
Mr. Mao Zhenhua as members.

The prime duties of the Audit Committee are:

o responsible for making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, and to approve the remuneration and other terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal;
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o to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

o to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, interim report and to review
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them; and

o oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems and review the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two
meetings to review the 2023 annual report and the 2024 interim
report. Details of the attendance by members of the Audit Committee
are set out as below:
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RE BREH

Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen T REEA
Mr. Dai Yiyi B — %4
Mr. Mao Zhenhua ERERE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the Company
established the Corporate Governance Committee on 1 April 2012 to
better implement and review the policies and practices on corporate
governance. With effect from 30 May 2023, Mr. Huang Youquan,
an executive Director, was appointed as chairman of the Corporate
Governance Committee and Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen and Mr.
Mao Zhenhua, both independent non-executive Directors, were
appointed as members of the Corporate Governance Committee.

2/2
2/2
2/2
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The prime duties of the Corporate Governance Committee are:

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and to make recommendations to the
Board;

to review and approve the annual corporate governance report
and related disclosures in the annual and interim reports of the
Company and monitor and ensure compliance with relevant
requirements under the Listing Rules or the rules of any
other stock exchange in respect of which the securities of the
Company are listed or quoted, or other laws, regulations, rules
and codes as may be applicable to the Company;

to make sure that appropriate monitoring systems are in place
to ensure compliance against the relevant internal controls
systems, processes and policies, and in particular to monitor
the implementation of the Company’s plans to maintain high
compliance with its own risk management standards;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code from
time to time adopted by the Company and the disclosure in the
corporate governance report to be contained in the Company’s
annual reports.

During the year under review, the Corporate Governance Committee

met once to discuss the adoption of the CG Code. Details of the

attendance by members of the Corporate Governance Committee are

set out as below:
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Mr. Huang Youquan =IWELE S
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen TRELEA
Mr. Mao Zhenhua ERERE
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year under review, the fees paid to the auditor of the
Company, Prism Hong Kong Limited (“Prism”), in respect of the audit
services and non-audit services provided to the Group amounted
to approximately RMB4,700,000 and approximately RMB800,000,
respectively. Non-audit services mainly represent the review of the
Group's interim results announcement and interim report for the six
months ended 30 June 2024.

The Audit Committee is responsible to recommend to the Board on
matters related to the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
the auditor. The Audit Committee recommended the re-appointment
of Prism as the external auditor of the Group for the year ending 31
December 2025, subject to the approval of the shareholders at the
annual general meeting of the Company.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024, and
confirm that the financial statements give a true view of the financial
position and results of the Group as at the date and for the year
of the date ended, and are prepared in accordance with HKFRS
Accounting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. The statement of the external auditor of the
Company, Prism, about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 90 to 99 of this annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is fully responsible for maintaining proper and effective
internal controls and for regularly reviewing the operational efficiency
of the financial, operational, compliance, risk controls, human
resources and other aspects of the system in order to safeguard the
independence of the respective duties and powers of the Group
which in turn can protect the investment of shareholders and the
assets of the Company.

The Internal Audit and Compliance Department of the Company,
being the Company’s internal audit function, is responsible for regular
review and audit of the finance and operation of the Company and
its subsidiaries for the purpose of ensuring the internal controls are
in place and functioning properly as intended. For weaknesses of
internal controls and accounting procedures of the Group which the
external auditor have identified and reported to the Company, the
Company would pay full attention to the recommendations made by
the external auditor and make appropriate improvements.

During the year under review, the Board has conducted a review
of the risk management and internal control systems of the Group
and their effectiveness from time to time and concluded that the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group were
adequate and effective during the year.

The Company has the procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information. In practice,
employees of the Group who become aware of any events and/
or matters which he/she considers potentially inside information,
will report to the designated personnel of the Company who, if
considered appropriate, will pass such information to the Board
for the purpose of considering and deciding whether or not such
information constitutes inside information and disclosure of which
shall be made immediately.

The aforementioned risk management and internal control systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

There is no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2024.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS'
COMMUNICATION POLICY

Establishing a good relationship with investors plays a vital role
in enhancing the operational efficiency of the Company and in
protecting interests of the shareholders. The Company insists a
transparent, honest and timely disclosure of related information on
the business development of the Company through various channels
to ensure that the shareholders and investors have an adequate
understanding of the operations of the Company.

The Company’s website at www.sce-re.com provides information such
as e-mail address, correspondence address, telephone numbers, etc.
for making inquiries to the Company in order to maintain effective
communication with its shareholders and investors. In addition,
interim and annual reports, circulars and notices of the Company will
be issued to shareholders in compliance with the Listing Rules and the
same will also be published on the website of the Company and that
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

The Company’s annual general meeting of shareholders is a
good opportunity for communication between the Board and
shareholders of the Company. Notice of annual general meeting
and related documents will be sent to the shareholders pursuant to
the requirements of the Listing Rules, and will be published on the
website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and that of the Company.

The Board has reviewed the implementation of the shareholders’
communications policy and is satisfied that it is effective for the Board
to understand the views and opinion of the shareholders through the
available channels.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

1. Procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting

1.1

The following procedures for shareholders (the

“Shareholders”, each a “Shareholder”) of the Company

to convene an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM")

of the Company are prepared in accordance with Article

58 of the articles of association of the Company:

)

One or more Shareholders (the “Requisitionist(s)”)
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall have the right, by
written requisition (the “Requisition”), to require an
EGM to be called by the Directors for the transaction
of any business specified therein.

Such Requisition shall be made in writing to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company
via email at the email address of the Company at
ir@sce-re.com.

The EGM shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such Requisition.

If the Board fail to proceed to convene such meeting
within twenty-one (21) days of the deposit of such
Requisition, the Requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
the Requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Procedures for raising enquiries

2.1 Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings, share transfer, registration and payment
of dividend to the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar,
details of which are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Information” of this annual report.

2.2 Shareholders may at any time raise any enquiry in respect
of the Company via email at the email address of the
Company at ir@sce-re.com.

2.3 Shareholders are reminded to lodge their questions
together with their detailed contact information for
the prompt response from the Company if it deems
appropriate.

Procedures and contact details for putting
forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

3.1 To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the
Company, a Shareholder should lodge a written notice
of his/her/its proposal (the “Proposal”) with his/her/its
detailed contact information via email at the email address
of the Company at ir@sce-re.com.

3.2 The identity of the Shareholder and his/her/its request will
be verified with the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar
and upon confirmation by the branch share registrar that
the request is made by a Shareholder and such request is
proper and in order, the Board will determine in its sole
discretion whether the Proposal may be included in the
agenda for the general meeting to be set out in the notice
of meeting.
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3.3 The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the Shareholder
concerned at the general meeting varies according to the
nature of the Proposal as follows:

(1)  Notice of not less than 21 clear days and not less
than 20 clear business days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval in an annual general meeting;

(2)  Notice of not less than 21 clear days and not less
than 10 clear business days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval by way of a special resolution in

an EGM;

(3) Notice of not less than 14 clear days and not less
than 10 clear business days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval in an EGM other than by way of a
special resolution of the Company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged in property development, commercial
management, property management and long-term rental apartments
business in the PRC during the year. Details of the principal activities
of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Please refer to the subsections headed “Market Review"”, “Business
Review”, “Financial Review” ,”Environmental Policies and
Performance”, “Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations”
and “Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers” in
the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” and the
section headed “Chairman’s Statement — Outlook” of this annual
report , which form part of the contents of the business review of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 as contained in this
Report of the Directors.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2024 and the
Group's financial position at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 100 to 262.

The Board has resolved not to declare any final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2024.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Any declaration of dividends will depend upon a number of
factors including our earnings and financial condition, operating
requirements, capital requirements and any other conditions that our
Directors may deem relevant and will be subject to the approval of
our shareholders. There is no assurance that dividends of any amount
will be declared or distributed in any given year.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited financial statements and restated as
appropriate, is set out on pages 263 to 264. This summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property and equipment and investment
properties of the Group during the year are set out in notes 14 and
15 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Details of the properties under development of the Group during the
year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Details of the completed properties held for sale of the Group
during the year are set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year
are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company did not hold any treasury shares as at 31 December
2024.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to the
existing shareholders.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, redeem or sell any
of the Company’s listed securities (including sale of treasury shares)
during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2024, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders of the Company amounted to
approximately RMB439,896,000.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
approximately RMB31,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2024, combined sales to the Group'’s
five largest customers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s
total revenue for the year. Combined purchases from the Group's five
largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases for the year.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the number of issued shares of the Company) had any
beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung
Mr. Chen Yuanlai (resigned on 24 January 2025)
Mr. Cheng Hiu Lok
Mr. Huang Youquan
Mr. Wong Lun (resigned on 29 August 2024)
Ms. Zhang Haitao (appointed on 29 August 2024)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen
Mr. Dai Yiyi
Mr. Mao Zhenhua

In accordance with article 84 of the Company’s articles of association,
at each annual general meeting, one third of the directors for the
time being (or if their number is not a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one third) will retire from office
by rotation provided that every director shall be subject to retirement
at an annual general meeting at least once every three years. The
directors to retire in every year will be those who have been longest
in office since their last re-election or appointment but as between
persons who became or were last re-elected directors on the same day
those to retire will (unless they otherwise agree among themselves)
be determined by lot. There are no provisions relating to retirement of
directors upon reaching any age limit.

Accordingly, Mr. Cheng Hiu Lok, Mr. Dai Yiyi and Mr. Mao Zhenhua
will retire as Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from all the three
independent non-executive Directors and as at the date of this report
still considers them to be independent.

In accordance with article 83(3) of the Company’s articles of
association, Ms. Zhang Haitao is subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election by shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT*S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 39 to 45 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS" SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung and Mr. Cheng Hiu Lok, being
executive Directors, has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 5 February
2010. Mr. Huang Youquan, being an executive Director, has entered
into a service contract with the Company for a term from 1 May 2011
to 4 February 2013. Ms. Zhang Haitao, being an executive Director,
has entered into a service contract with the Company for a term from
29 August 2024 to 28 August 2027. Each of their service contracts
is renewable automatically upon the expiry of the then current term
of appointment, subject to termination by either party giving not less
than three months’ written notice.

The Company has issued a letter of appointment to each of Mr.
Ting Leung Huel Stephen and Mr. Dai Yiyi, being independent non-
executive Directors for an initial term of three years commencing
from 6 January 2010. Upon expiry of the initial term, the Company
has issued a letter of appointment to each of Mr. Ting Leung Huel
Stephen and Mr. Dai Yiyi, for their appointment as independent non-
executive Directors for a term of three years commencing from 6
January 2013 to 5 January 2016, which is renewable automatically
thereafter for successive term of one year each commencing on
the day after the expiry of the then current term of appointment,
subject to termination by either party giving not less than two
months’ written notice and the retirement by rotation requirement in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company and the
Listing Rules.

The Company has issued a letter of appointment to Mr. Mao Zhenhua
for his appointment as an independent non-executive Directors for a
term of three years commencing from 30 May 2023 to 29 May 2026,
which is renewable automatically thereafter for successive term of
one year each commencing on the day after the expiry of the then
current term of appointment, subject to termination by either party
giving not less than two months’ written notice and the retirement by
rotation requirement in accordance with the articles of association of
the Company and the Listing Rules.
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No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHICAL
DETAILS

Changes in the Directors’ biographical details for the year ended 31
December 2024 and up to the date of this annual report, which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules are set out below:

Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen retired as an independent non-executive
director of Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd. (1666), a company
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, with effect from 12 June
2024.

Mr. Wong Lun resigned as an executive Director with effect from 29
August 2024.

Ms. Zhang Haitao has been appointed as an executive Director with
effect from 29 August 2024.

Mr. Huang Youquan resigned as a non-executive director of SCE CM
with effect from 29 August 2024.

Mr. Chen Yuanlai resigned as an executive Director with effect from
24 January 2025.

Mr. Mao Zhenhua resigned as an independent non-executive director
of China Bohai Bank Co., Ltd. (9668), a company listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, with effect from 6 January 2025.

REMUNERATION POLICIES AND DIRECTORS!
REMUNERATION

The Remuneration Committee oversees the overall remuneration
policy and structure of the Group. The Group provides employees
with competitive remuneration and benefits. The remuneration
policy is reviewed on a regular basis based on the performance and
contribution of the employees and the industry remuneration level.

The authority of the Board of Directors to determine directors’
fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general meetings.
The emoluments payable to the Directors are determined by the
Company’s Board of Directors with reference to Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the transactions set out in note 44 to the consolidated
financial statements and the transaction specified in the paragraph
headed “Connected Transaction” and “Continuing Connected
Transactions” in this section, no Director nor a connected entity of
a director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company, the holding company of the
Company, or any of the Company’s subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of
this report, there was or is permitted indemnity provision (within the
meaning in Section 469 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company being in
force.

The Company has maintained directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
throughout the year, which provides appropriate cover for certain
legal actions brought against its directors and officers arising out of
corporate activities.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES, AND DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:
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Long positions in ordinary shares (the “Shares”) of the Company:

RARBEBER (MM WEFR

Interest in Shares

R gz

Percentage

Total of the

Interest of Number of Company's

Beneficial Controlled Shares Held Issued Share

Name of Director EEfE Owner Corporation or Interested Capital

FES#EE  ARAFEEST

BERERA SENZEER ZBRAEE BRANED

Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung ("Mr. Wong”) ~ ES#BEE([&L4]) - 2,120,500,000 2,120,500,000 50.21%
(Note 1) (Fi5E1)

Mr. Chen Yuanlai ("Mr. Chen") BRLREE(TREED) 20,000,000 230,230,000 250,230,000 5.93%
(resigned on 24 January 2025) (RZB-RE—A-TEASE) (Note 2) (FizF2)

Mr. Cheng Hiu Lok (“Mr. Cheng”) BEars(Px4E)) = 230,230,000 230,230,000 5.45%
(Note 3) (Ff15£3)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

These 2,120,500,000 Shares comprised 1,660,040,000 Shares registered
in the name of Newup Holdings Limited (“Newup”), 230,230,000
Shares registered in the name of East Waves Investments Limited (“East
Waves”) and 230,230,000 Shares registered in the name of Keen Century
Investments Limited (“Keen Century”). Mr. Wong held 100% of the entire
issued share capital of each of Newup, East Waves and Keen Century and
was deemed to be interested in the aggregate of 2,120,500,000 Shares
held by Newup, East Waves and Keen Century pursuant to the SFO.

These 230,230,000 Shares were registered in the name of Rising Trade
Holdings Limited (“Rising Trade”). Mr. Chen held 100% of the entire
issued share capital of Rising Trade and was deemed to be interested in the
230,230,000 Shares held by Rising Trade pursuant to the SFO.

These 230,230,000 Shares were registered in the name of Wealthy Gate
Holdings Limited (“Wealthy Gate”). Mr. Cheng held 100% of the entire
issued share capital of Wealthy Gate and was deemed to be interested in
the 230,230,000 Shares held by Wealthy Gate pursuant to the SFO.

Long positions in share options of the Company:

BEE 1 © 5%22,120,500,000 % B% 17 B2 38 A 31 F 42 AR B BR

A7 ([#8]) &% %5 H1,660,040,000 A% %
B URBREBRAR (RE)BEERL
#9230,230,000 A% B 17 K LA 2 3% & B IR A &)
([t ]) % 2 & 52 #9 230,230,000 & i 17 ° =
EEBEHE RERBENZPEHTR
N ANBREELSRBERIKEABEES
B A« WEREMFENLEET2,120,500,000
AR ©

M52 © 52230,230,000 R R D A E B ZER B R R

([BE)EBEEL REEAHABSENEHE
BRA AUBEESF KBRS EMFERA
A B Z 441 230,230,000 %% 17 °

BEE3 : 52230,230,000 % A% 10 A & EIE R B R A &)

((BENDREED -HWEEFEETENZIE
BIRA ALBEESFRHEEHBRKRA
A B E 4 A1 230,230,000 % A% 15

RARBBRENTR

Number of Share

Options Directly

Percentage

of the Company'’s

Name of Director EEHA Beneficially Owned Issued Share Capital
EEERlA HERARE#IT
ZBREHE BRAWE DL
Mr. Huang Youquan =R A 16,000,000 0.38%

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2024
PEREEIERERAR / — T NFEFR



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Long positions in ordinary shares of SCE CM:

Interest in shares
B& 3 RE =

EETHE

Percentage of

Interest of Total Number SCE CM'’s

Controlled of Shares Held Issued Share

Name of Director Beneficial Owner Corporation or Interested Capital

EHEREE

FEERERZ ERITRAE

EEHA BERERA SERFEEEER BRAEAE Aok

Mr. Wong - 1,248,490,946 1,248,490,946 64.52%
mITHE (Note) (Pt %)
Note: 3T

These 1,248,490,946 shares were registered in the name of Happy Scene Global
Limited (“Happy Scene”), which was wholly-owned by Affluent Way International
Limited, which was in turn wholly-owned by the Company. As at the date of this
report, the Company was owned as to 50.21% by Mr. Wong through companies
wholly-owned by him. Mr. Wong was therefore deemed to be interested in the
shares in SCE CM held by Happy Scene pursuant to the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company had registered
an interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS" RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate granted to any of the Directors or their
respective spouses or minor children, nor were there any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

% %1,248,490,946 RN E MR E SR BR A A
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME
2018 Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 23 April 2018
(the 2018 Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the
Group's operations. The participants of the 2018 Scheme include any
directors (including executive directors, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) and employees of any member
of the Group and any advisors, consultants, distributors, contractors,
customers, suppliers, agents, business partners, joint venture business
partners, service providers of any member of the Group.

The 2018 Scheme became effective on 23 April 2018 and shall have
a life of 10 years until 22 April 2028. Pursuant to the resolution
passed by the shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of
the Company held on 30 May 2023, the 2018 Scheme had been
terminated upon adoption of the new share option scheme (the
“2023 Scheme”). In accordance with the provisions of the 2018
Scheme, upon termination of the 2018 Scheme, no further options
shall be offered but in all other respects the provisions of the 2018
Scheme shall remain in force to the extent necessary to give effect
to the exercise of any share options (to the extent not already
exercised) granted prior to the termination, and such share options
shall continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the 2018
Scheme.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the 2018 Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the total number of shares in issue as at 23 April 2018, being
the adoption date of the 2018 Scheme, i.e. 382,384,000 shares
(representing approximately 9.05% of the total number of issued
shares as at the date of approval of this annual report), unless the
Company obtains a fresh approval from shareholders to refresh the
10% limit, provided, inter alia, that the maximum number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the 2018 Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the number
of shares in issue from time to time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options granted to each eligible participant in
the 2018 Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue for the time being. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval at a general meeting. Share options granted to a director,
chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue or with
an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance at
a general meeting.
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The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within five
business days from the date of delivery of the offer letter, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by
the directors, which period may commence from the date of the
offer of the share options, and ends on a date which is not later than
10 years from the date of the grant of the share options. Unless the
Directors otherwise determine and state in the offer of the grant
of options to a grantee, a grantee is not required to achieve any
performance targets before any share options granted under the 2018
Scheme can be vested in, or exercised by, the grantee and accordingly
there is no applicable vesting period.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the Board,
but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares as quoted on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets on the date of the offer of the share options;
(ii) the average closing price of the Company’s shares as quoted on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Further details of the 2018 Scheme as to the value of the share
options granted are disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements. The values of share options calculated using the
binomial model are subject to certain fundamental limitations, due
to the subjective nature of and uncertainty relating to a number of
assumptions of the expected future performance input to the model,
and certain inherent limitations of the model itself. The value of an
option varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.
Any change to the variables used may materially affect the estimation
of the fair value of an option.

At the time of grant of the share options, the Company may specify
any minimum period(s) for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised.
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During 2018, the Company granted 382,000,000 share options under
the 2018 Scheme to the Group’s employees (including Directors).
During the year, details of movements in the share options under the
2018 Scheme were as follows:

—N\F  ARRBRBEZT—N\FiEFEL
382,000,000 Hﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬁé%ﬁ;‘%l BT (RiEES) -
RAREER  RE_ZT— N\FHERLE
IR B EFIBLT

Weighted Average
Outstanding Closing Price
Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed at Exercise Immediately
Category and at 1 January during during during during 31 December Price hefore the Date(s)
Name of Grantee 2024 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2024 per Share  Date of Grant Exercise Period of Exercise
R=%-@% RZZ=mE REEBRE
-A-8 tZAZt-R IR BANNE
REARRIRER HAITE ERRL QTR EREH ERN HARTE BRITEE REAH %8 PUHE
Directors
g%
Mr. Huang Youguan 16,000,000 - - - - 16,000,000 HK$2.78 12 December 2018 1 July 20200 -
11 December 2028
ElERE 88T ZE-N\§ “RCRELA-AE
tZA+ZR “EN\ETZAT-H
Subtotal 16,000,000 - - - - 16,000,000
Nt
Employees of 135,000,000 - - - - 135,000,000 HK$2.78 12 December 2018 1 July2019to -
the Group 11 December 2028
AEEST 183 ZE-)\F “E-NETA-BE
tZAtzH 2o )\EtAT-H
135,000,000 - - - - 135,000,000 HK$2.78 12 December 2018 1 July 20200 =
11 December 2028
L8BT ZF-)\F “RCRELA-AE
tZA+zR ZEC\FtZAt-H
Sub-total 270,000,000 - - - - 270,000,000
gt
Total 286,000,000 - - - - 286,000,000
i

Note: The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the
commencement of the exercise period.

As the 2018 Scheme was terminated during the year ended 31
December 2023, the number of share options available for further
grant under the 2018 Scheme was nil at the beginning and at the end
of the year ended 31 December 2024.

As at the latest practicable date for the purpose of ascertaining the
information contained in this annual report, based on the number of
outstanding share options granted under the 2018 Scheme, the total
number of shares available for issue under the 2018 Scheme was
286,000,000 shares, representing approximately 6.8% of the total
number of issued shares.
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2023 Scheme

On 30 May 2023, the shareholders of the Company approved and
adopted the 2023 Scheme and terminated the 2018 Scheme. The
2023 Scheme was adopted for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the growth
and development of the Group, attracting and retaining personnel
to promote sustainable development and promoting the long-term
financial and business performance of the Group. The participants
of the 2023 Scheme include employees (whether full-time or part-
time and including directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
(including persons who are granted share options under the 2023
Scheme as an inducement to enter into employment contracts with
these companies).

The 2023 Scheme became effective on 30 May 2023 and unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for a period of
10 years up to 29 May 2033. As at the date of this annual report, the
remaining life of the 2023 Scheme was approximately 8 years.

A total of 422,298,612 Shares may be issued in respect of all share
options that may be granted under the 2023 Scheme, representing
approximately 10.0% of the total number of issued Shares as at 30
May 2023 (the date of adoption of the 2023 Scheme).

Where any offer of options to a participant under the 2023 Scheme
would result in the Shares issued and to be issued in respect of all
options granted to the participant under the 2023 Scheme and all
options and awards granted to the participant under any other share
schemes of the Company (excluding all options that have lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the 2023 Scheme and all options and
awards that have lapsed in accordance with the terms of any other
share schemes of the Company) in the 12-month period up to and
including the offer date representing in aggregate over 1% of the
total number of Shares in issue, such an offer must be separately
approved by the shareholders at a general meeting.
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An offer shall have been accepted by a participant in respect of
all the options which are offered to such a participant when the
duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the offer duly signed by
the participant together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof is received
by the Company within such time as may be specified in the offer
(which period shall be up to 21 days from the offer date). The option
period within which an option may be exercised by a grantee may
be determined and notified by the Board to the grantee, which must
not be more than 10 years from the offer date of the option. In the
absence of such determination, the option period of an option shall
commence on the offer date of the option and end on the earlier of
(i) the date on which the option is cancelled or lapses under the 2023
Scheme; and (ii) the expiration of the period of 10 years from the
offer date of the option.

The vesting period in respect of an option, which shall commence on
the date on which the grantee accepts the offer of the option and
end on the vesting date, shall not be shorter than 12 months from
the date of acceptance of the offer, unless a shorter vesting period
is set in accordance with the provisions of the 2023 Scheme. The
Remuneration Committee (or, as the case may be, the Board) may
further establish performance target(s) in respect of specific grantees,
the attainment of which shall be a precondition for any exercise of the
options granted to the grantees concerned under the 2023 Scheme.

The price per share at which a grantee may subscribe for the share
on the exercise of an option granted under the 2023 Scheme shall be
determined at the discretion of the Board, provided that it must be at
least the highest of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date,
which must be a business day; (b) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the offer date;
and (c) the nominal value of a share.

Since the adoption of the 2023 Scheme and up to the latest
practicable date for the purpose of ascertaining the information
contained in this annual report, no share option had been granted
under the 2023 Scheme. Accordingly, as at the beginning and the
end of the year ended 31 December 2024, 422,298,612 share
options were available for grant under the scheme mandate for the
2023 Scheme.

As at the latest practicable date for the purpose of ascertaining the
information contained in this annual report, the total number of
shares available for issue under the 2023 Scheme was 422,298,612
shares, representing approximately 10.0% of the total number of
issued shares.
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CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
between the Company, or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries nor contract of significance
in relation to the Group’s business whether or not for provision of
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries subsisted during or at the end of
the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company, which
were not contract of service with any Director or any person engaged
in full time employment of the Company, were entered into or existed
during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2024, the interests or short positions of the persons
(other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) in the
Shares and underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336
of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions:

e

HRE

EEAM

FIRKFRNERERE - BEAR R R EKT B
NEIHERE RS ENB AR GREHELE
ENEBNEEAR BEBETRRRSHE
WJ%/ATWZK’AT&EEW%@V&%@F@Z&
EEMNEB TR RERENEER

BIES R

FA-BEIVSAFETAEBALRZE
SEMEABAOERBONEERTHAR - M
ZARYIFFERNDBNEMESHEM 2B
BEMIARBER -

TE2RREEMALTREKRNL K
MR 0 B B 2 RO B

RIZE-_MFE+-_A=+—H &AL (XAQ
AESFHEETHRABRIN EARRFRMD &
EERMDPEELZENAQFIRERZS K
BEiEAIE336KAFTENE L MayER X
BT

TR

Number of Percentage of

Capacity and Shares the Company’s

Nature of Held or Issued Share

Name Interest Interested Capital

SR FriEsR HERARS BT

27 et REROME  BANESL

Newup (Note 1) Beneficial owner 1,660,040,000 39.31%
A (fFsE1) EmEB A

East Waves (Note 1) Beneficial owner 230,230,000 5.45%
e (fFEE1) EmEBA

Keen Century (Note 1) Beneficial owner 230,230,000 5.45%
gt (fEE) E=EBA

Rising Trade (Note 2) Beneficial owner 230,230,000 5.45%
28 (M5x2) EnEAEA

Wealthy Gate (Note 3) Beneficial owner 230,230,000 5.45%
=HE(ME3) BEmEAA
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Note 1: Each of Newup, East Waves and Keen Century was wholly-owned and
controlled by Mr. Wong; accordingly, Mr. Wong was deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Newup, East Waves and Keen Century
pursuant to the SFO. Mr. Wong was the sole director of Newup, East
Waves and Keen Century.

Note 2: Rising Trade was wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Chen; accordingly,
Mr. Chen was deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Rising Trade
pursuant to the SFO. Mr. Chen was the sole director of Rising Trade.

Note 3: Wealthy Gate was wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Cheng;
accordingly, Mr. Cheng was deemed to be interested in the Shares held
by Wealthy Gate pursuant to the SFO. Mr. Cheng was the sole director of
Wealthy Gate.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, no person, other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company, whose interests
are set out in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares, and Debentures”
above, had registered an interest or short position in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

As disclosed in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements,
certain related party transactions of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2024 constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions of the Company as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the applicable
disclosure requirements in relation to those transactions that are not
fully exempt in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024,
which are subject to the reporting and annual review requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:
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Simultaneously upon signing of a share transfer agreement (the

“Share Transfer Agreement”), on 9 September 2022, the Group and

the Funlive Holdings Limited (“Funlive Holdings"”) together with its

subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Funlive Group”) entered

into the following agreements (the “Existing CCT Agreements”, and

each a “Existing CCT Agreement”) each for the term commencing

on the date of completion of the Share Transfer Agreement, i.e.
16 September 2022, and ended on 31 December 2024 (both dates
inclusive), such that the Group and the Funlive Group could continue

to enjoy the services of each other immediately following completion

of the Share Transfer Agreement and afterwards:

(a

the Advisory and Operational Service Framework Agreement,
i.e. the framework agreement entered into between Funlive
Holdings (for itself and as trustee for the benefits of its
subsidiaries from time to time) as supplier and the Company
(for itself and as trustee for the benefits of its subsidiaries from
time to time) as customer in relation to the provision of advisory
and operational services by the Funlive Group to the Group. It
was expected that the aggregate amount of the service fees
payable by the Group to the Funlive Group under the Advisory
and Operational Service Framework Agreement would not
exceed RMB4,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022,
RMB25,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023 and
RMB39,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2024;

the Tenancy Agreement, i.e. the tenancy agreement entered
into between Shanghai Junbang Trading Co., Ltd. (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as lessor
( “Shanghai Junbang”) and Shanghai Funlive Apartment
Management Limited (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
Funlive Holdings) as lessee ( “Shanghai Funlive”) in relation to
the lease of certain premises by Shanghai Junbang to Shanghai
Funlive for use as office premises. It was expected that the
annual amount of rental payable by Shanghai Funlive to
Shanghai Junbang under the Tenancy Agreement would not
exceed RMB700,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022,
RMB2,200,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023 and
RMB2,200,000 for the year ended 31 December 2024; and
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the Property Management Framework Agreement, i.e. the
framework agreement entered into between the Company
(for itself and as trustee for the benefits of its subsidiaries from
time to time) as supplier and Funlive Holdings (for itself and as
trustee for the benefits of its subsidiaries from time to time) as
customer in relation to the provision of property management
services by the Group to the Funlive Group. It was expected
that the aggregate amount of the service fees payable by the
Funlive Group to the Group under the Property Management
Framework Agreement would not exceed RMB400,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2022, RMB2,000,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2023 and RMB2,600,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2024.

Given that the Existing CCT Agreements expired on 31 December
2024, on 31 December 2024, the Group and the Funlive Group
entered into the New Advisory and Operational Service Framework

Agreement and the New Tenancy Agreement (“New CCT

Agreements”) such that the Group and the Funlive Group could

continue to enjoy the services of each other immediately following

expiry of the Existing CCT Agreements on substantially the same

terms for the three-year period commencing on 1 January 2025 and

ending on 31 December 2027.

(a

the New Advisory and Operational Service Framework
Agreement, i.e. the framework agreement entered into
between the same parties in relation to the provision of advisory
and operational services by the Funlive Group to the Group. It
was expected that the aggregate amount of the service fees
payable by the Group to the Funlive Group under the New
Advisory and Operational Service Framework Agreement would
not exceed RMB10,000,000 for the year ending 31 December
2025, RMB 13,000,000 for the year ending 31 December 2026
and RMB19,000,000 for the year ending 31 December 2027;
and

the New Tenancy Agreement, i.e. the tenancy agreement
entered into between the same parties in relation to the lease
of certain premises by Shanghai Junbang to Shanghai Funlive
for use as office premises. It was expected that the annual
amount of rental payable by Shanghai Funlive to Shanghai
Junbang under the New Tenancy Agreement would not exceed
RMB1,500,000 for each of the three years ending 31 December
2027.
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The Funlive Group is principally engaged in asset investments
advisory, apartments development management and lease operations
management in the PRC. While these are not at the core of the
Group'’s businesses, the Funlive Group has been offering substantive
support for the Group’s principal businesses in areas such as
apartments development, as the marketing management services
and operational management services provided by the Funlive Group
have facilitated the effective planning and execution of the Group’s
apartment projects. The entering into of the New Advisory and
Operational Service Framework Agreement allows the Group to have
uninterrupted access to the advisory and operational services of the
Funlive Group following the expiry of the Advisory and Operational
Service Framework Agreement, thereby continuing to take advantage
of the Funlive Group’s competitive strength in the industry and
local market experience and expertise to guarantee effectual
implementation of the Group’s apartments development strategies
and plans.

On the other hand, the Funlive Group had been headquartered and
conducting its office operations in premises owned by the Group. By
continuing to provide the Funlive Group with necessary support under
the New Tenancy Agreement, the Group could not only generate
additional revenue in the form of rental income, but also avoid
significant changes in or disruptions to the business operations of
the Funlive Group to enable continuous and efficacious collaboration
between the Group and the Funlive Group following the expiry of
Existing CCT Agreements.

As at the date of the New CCT Agreements, Funlive Holdings was
indirectly held as to 86% in aggregate by Mr. Wong, the chairman of
the Board, an executive Director and a controlling Shareholder holding
indirectly approximately 50.21% of the total number of issued Shares,
and his associate. Accordingly, Funlive Holdings was a majority-
controlled company held indirectly by Mr. Wong and his associate and
each member of the Funlive Group was an associate of Mr. Wong.
Hence, each member of the Funlive Group was a connected person
of the Company and the transactions contemplated under the New
CCT Agreements constitute continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONFIRMATION FROM INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions conducted under the CCT
Agreements during the year ended 31 December 2024 and confirm
that such transactions have been entered into:

(@ inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) according to the CCT Agreements on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

CONFIRMATIONS FROM THE COMPANY"S
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Group has
engaged its auditor to report on the Group's continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 ”Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the HKICPA. The Board confirms that the auditor has issued an
unqualified letter to the Board containing the findings and conclusions
in respect of the aforesaid continuing connected transactions
conducted by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 and
confirming that nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe the continuing connected transactions conducted by the
Group under the Existing CCT Agreements during the year ended 31
December 2024:

(@  have not been approved by the Board;
(b)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group (in respect of transactions involving

provision of services by the Group);

() were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(d) have exceeded the relevant annual caps.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total number of issued shares were held by the public as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this report.

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, none of the
Directors are considered to have interests in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF THE
LISTING RULES

Loan agreements with covenants relating to specific
performance of the controlling shareholder

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 3 January
2020, by an agreement dated 2 January 2020 (the “2020 January
Facility Agreement”) entered into by and among, inter alia, Sleek
Time Limited (”Sleek Time"), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, as borrower, and a syndicate of banks, as original lenders,
the banks have agreed to grant to the borrower a term loan facility in
an aggregate of the Hong Kong dollar equivalent of RMB560,000,000
(the “2020 January Facility”).

The 2020 January Facility is for a term of three years and six months
commencing from the date on which the first utilisation is made
under the 2020 January Facility Agreement, and is guaranteed by the
Company and the Sleek Time’s other shareholders on a several basis.
Pursuant to mutual agreement between, inter alia, Sleek Time and
the banks, the final maturity date of the 2020 January Facility was
extended to March 2024.
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As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 9 July
2020, by an agreement dated 8 July 2020 (the “2020 July Facility
Agreement”) entered into by and among, inter alia, Best Access
International Limited (“Best Access”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, as borrower, and China CITIC Bank International
Limited, as lender, the lender has agreed to grant to the borrower a
term loan facility in an aggregate of the Hong Kong dollar or United
States dollar equivalent of up to RMB400,000,000 (the “2020 July
Facility”) to, amongst others, finance the repayment of shareholders’
loan owed by the borrower’s indirect holding company.

The 2020 July Facility is for a term of three years commencing from
the date on which the first utilisation is made under the 2020 July
Facility Agreement, and is guaranteed by the Company and Best
Access’s other shareholder on a several basis. Pursuant to mutual
agreement between, inter alia, Best Access and the lender, the
2020 July Facility was refinanced in July 2023 (the “2023 July Facility
Agreement”) with the final maturity date being extended to July
2026. In July 2024, Best Access has signed a supplemental agreement
to the 2023 July Facility Agreement (“Supplemental Agreement”) with
the lender. Pursuant to the Supplemental Agreement, the outstanding
balance of the term loan facility in United States dollar equivalent
under the 2023 July Facility Agreement (the “2023 July Facility”) has
been swapped to Renminbi equivalent.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 26
November 2020, by an agreement dated 26 November 2020 (the
“2020 November Facility Agreement”) entered into by and between
Bohai International Investment Limited (“Bohai”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as borrower, and Hang Seng Bank Limited
as lender, the lender has agreed to grant to the borrower a term loan
facility in an aggregate of US$50,000,000 (or its Hong Kong dollars
equivalent) and which may, subject to the approval of the lender
in its sole and absolute discretion, be increased by an aggregate
amount of up to US$40,000,000 upon the request of the borrower
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the 2020 November
Facility Agreement (the “2020 November Facility”).

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2024
PEREEIERERAR / — T NFEFR

WM ARARZZEZTEFELANBHEZA
ENEE  REAARNIIEZENB AR (K
FRE) BEREAER AR ([BE]) EAE
FABEPERIT (BB ERRRERERA
R-ZE_ZTFtANRFTupE (2=
?Etﬂﬂémaﬁ'zgﬁAﬂﬁk%1
FAA AR 400,000,000 THEB T =
n%m%% RELE ([= 7_?$tﬁﬂéb
AR (P 81E) AEEERAZIEEEER
NEIFMERORRERIREES -

—EEELAREB T _TFLAME
BEETEXERBHRHAH=F " I H
KRR RIEFREE MR ERER - RIEE
BEMERAZFTENARGE -4
tAMEE—_T_=F+AETTBERE(Z
TT=FLABEHE])  ZRIHALE
BT FELA-RZE-NF LA B
BEEFAFZIT T =F+AREH=H
Hah= ((fMxm=El)  BEZFER T
TE =L ARERBEETITNETLEEE
HEFRENREERE(ZE==FtA
BMEDEEBAARKSEE-

WA RB R T _FTF+—HA=+/ AT
B2REARER BEBEAAGZZ2EMBA
AP ERRRESERRAR (DHE]) ER
BRAEEBARITERAAMERAERARZ
EoEFF AT RNBITLMBE(ZE
“EFT+—AmEmZE]) ERARERIE
A H A 50,000,000 7T (K EEBTT)
ZEHERASE  BARERARBE ===
EF+—ARERBZBERAREHEREZE
K OEERAZRRBEHETENEHAES
40,000,000 ([ZZE=FF+—HAFE ] -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The 2020 November Facility is for a term of three years and six months
commencing from the date on which the first utilisation is made
under the 2020 November Facility Agreement, and is guaranteed by
the Company and Bohai’s wholly-owned subsidiary.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 22 March
2021, pursuant to an agreement (the “2021 Facility Agreement”)
dated 22 March 2021 entered into by and among, inter alia, the
Company as borrower and a syndicate of banks as lenders, the
banks have agreed to grant to the Company a HK$351,000,000 and
US$342,500,000 dual tranche term loan facility (the “2021 Facility”)
to refinance existing financial indebtedness of the Group and fund
payment of any fees, costs and expenses payable by the Group in
connection with the 2021 Facility Agreement and other related
documents.

The 2021 Facility is for a term of three years and six months
commencing from the date on which the first utilisation is made
under the 2021 Facility Agreement, and is guaranteed by certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 4 July 2023,
by an agreement dated 4 July 2023 (the “2023 Facility Agreement”)
entered into by and among, inter alia, the Company as borrower and
a syndicate of banks as lenders, the banks have agreed to grant to the
Company a HK$255,420,000 and US$89,100,000 multiple tranche
term facility (the “2023 Facility”) to refinance existing financial
indebtedness of the Company.

The 2023 Facility is for a term of 15 months commencing on the date
on which the utilisation of the 2023 Facility is made under the 2023
Facility Agreement. Liabilities and obligations of the Company under
the 2023 Facility Agreement are secured by, among other things,
charges over 504,000,000 shares (the “Charged Shares”) in SCE
CM (representing approximately 26.0% of its issued share capital as
at the date of this report) held by Happy Scene, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, in favour of the security agent (the
“Security Agent”) of the Banks (the “Share Charges”).
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Each of the 2020 January Facility Agreement, the 2020 November
Facility Agreement, the 2021 Facility Agreement, the 2023 Facility
Agreement and the 2023 July Facility Agreement contains a
requirement that Mr. Wong, a controlling shareholder of the
Company and an executive Director, and his family members (together
with Mr. Wong, the “Wong Family”), (a) must remain as the single
largest shareholder of the Company; (b) must hold legally and
beneficially and directly or indirectly 35% (under the 2020 November
Facility Agreement, the 2021 Facility Agreement, the 2023 Facility
Agreement and the 2023 July Facility Agreement) or 40% (under
the 2020 January Facility Agreement only) or more of all classes of
the Company’s voting share capital and/or must directly or indirectly
control (as defined in the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and
Mergers) the Company; and (c) Mr. Wong or a member of the Wong
Family must remain as the chairman of the Board of the Company
throughout the respective life of the 2020 January Facility, the 2020
November Facility, the 2021 Facility, the 2023 Facility and the 2023
July Facility. A breach of such requirements will constitute an event
of default or (as the case may be) mandatory prepayment event
under the 2020 January Facility Agreement, the 2020 November
Facility Agreement, the 2021 Facility Agreement, the 2023 Facility
Agreement and the 2023 July Facility Agreement, and as a result, the
2020 January Facility, the 2020 November Facility, the 2021 Facility,
the 2023 Facility and the 2023 July Facility will be liable to be declared
immediately due and payable.

As at the approval date of this annual report, Mr. Wong, through
companies wholly-owned by him, holds approximately 50.21% of the
voting share capital of the Company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Breach of loan agreements and suspension of
Offshore US$ Senior Notes

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 4 October
2023, as at the date of the announcement, the Company had not
made payment on an instalment of principal and interest amounting
to approximately US$61 million which has fallen due under the 2021
Facility Agreement. The loan non-payment has resulted in an event of
default under the Company’s Offshore US$ Senior Notes (as defined
below). The loan non-payment may result in demands for acceleration
of repayment of debts and/or actions taken by the Group’s creditors
in accordance with the respective terms of the relevant financings.
An application was made to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange for the
suspension of trading in each of the Company’s offshore US$ senior
notes listed below (the “Offshore US$ Senior Notes”) with effect from
9:00 a.m. on 5 October 2023 until further notice.

Description of Debt Securities ISIN/Common Code

BEHE SR

B B 7 35 38 B B, B AR O

e

HRE

ERER
&

KB RIIETEEREF

HBOARRARAR T _=F+ANBENA
iﬁ)ﬂ&ﬁ% RAEEH  ARAHKRRE=

“FREBI NN D BAE KA
u%ﬁ6100%%75 AXNEREEHARRAF]
E’Jf‘ﬁl\%m{gﬁ'ﬁmﬁﬁ(m%ﬁiTX)uﬂfﬁé%’\]
EHF - RAXNERVEERAEEEEAR
KNk ai@ﬁﬁ‘%%ﬂ/?ﬂ?&)ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ’]ﬂ%%
RE{TE - ARARCMBEMIAHGH_—
T_=_FTARAEFAREREE TR
BIINETEERE (BIIEXTEBERE]D KW
R BEERTEABIL-

Debt Stock Outstanding
Code Principal Amount
BREBSNR KREELS

7.375% senior notes due April 2024
(the “April 2024 Notes”) (Note)
R-ZT_MFM AR 7.375% BEEE
(TZZ—mFmABERE]) (MizE)
5.95% senior notes due September 2024
(the “September 2024 Notes”) (Note)
MRZZZMF N A SHIR)5.95% B £ F1E
(TZZ—mENRER]) (Bi5E)

7% senior notes due May 2025
RZZE-ZRAFRAEEBN 7% BERE
6% senior notes due February 2026
RZZBEZRFZRAEER6% BERE

Note: As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 8 April 2024 and
26 September 2024, the April 2024 Notes and September 2024 Note were
delisted from the Hong Kong Stock Exchange upon its maturity on 9 April
2024 and 29 September 2024 respectively. The principal amount and the
accrued unpaid interests of the April 2024 Notes and September 2024 Notes
had not been settled on the maturity date and remained outstanding.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s defaulted or cross-defaulted
principal and accrued interest of offshore senior notes and
certain interest-bearing bank and other borrowings amounted to
approximately RMB19.671 billion and RMB2.302 billion respectively.

X51974405893/197440589 N/A

X52316077572/231607757 N/A

X52227351900/222735190

X52286966093/228696609

US$500,000,000
500,000,000 £ 7T

US$450,000,000

TiE M 450,000,000 7T

40444 US$500,000,000
500,000,000 £ 7T

40590 US$350,000,000

350,000,000 37T

et : BARARBHA-—S_WMFNANBE=Z
—FEAAZTAEMASHEE =1
FNAZEREE-_TE-_NFAAZESRIER=
?:EE@HHE&:%:EEHH:+%E
SRR EBHIMGRE - — S HFNAE
ﬁ%&_g_minﬂ =R BN & & FERT AR A F
B RREHBEERDABE-

R-ZZ-_WE+-_A=1+—H AEEHIH
BEEBMETHERRTREMERNED
IRREBNEE REFAHNEDNBARYE
196.71 BT R AR 23.02187T
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In view of the challenges currently faced by the Group and to move
forward with exploring a holistic solution to managing the Group’s
offshore debt situation, the Company has appointed Haitong
International Securities Company Limited as its financial adviser
to assist with evaluating the Group’s current capital structure and
liquidity and to explore feasible solutions to ease the current liquidity
issue in order to reach an optimal outcome for all stakeholders as
soon as possible.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 28
November 2024, the Company has reached an agreement in principle
with the AHG on the key commercial terms of a proposal with respect
to the proposed restructuring of the Group’s offshore indebtedness
(the “Proposal”). As at the date of this annual report, the Company is
still in negotiation with the AHG on definitive terms of the Proposal.

Enforcement of the Share Charges and appointment
of receivers over shares in SCE CM

On 15 December 2023, Happy Scene received a notice from the
Security Agent (the “Enforcement Notice”) stating, among other
things, that

(1) as at the date of the Enforcement Notice, China SCE had
failed to repay the amounts demanded under the acceleration
and demand notice. Accordingly, the outstanding principal
amount of the two tranches of the loans made under the
2023 Facility Agreement remained to be HK$255,420,000
and US$89,100,000, with accrued interests amounting to
HK$13,281,847.78 and US$4,878,639.50, respectively as at the
date of the Enforcement Notice;

(2) events of default had occurred under the 2023 Facility
Agreement, were continuing and had not been waived as at the
date of the Enforcement Notice; and

(3) the Share Charges had become enforceable in accordance with
the terms of the relevant security agreements.

By notices given by the Security Agent on 18 December 2023 to the
custodian (the “Custodian”) of the securities accounts in which the
Charged Shares are held (the “Custodian Accounts”), the Security
Agent had taken exclusive control over the Custodian Accounts and
the Charged Shares.
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Further, Happy Scene was informed by the Security Agent on 18
December 2023 that

(@) Chow Wai Shing Daniel of FTI Consulting (Hong Kong) Limited
and Aaron Luke Gardner of FTI Consulting (BVI) Limited had
been appointed as joint and several receivers (the “Receivers”)
of the Custodian Accounts and the Charged Shares; and

(b)  Happy Scene had ceased to be entitled to exercise voting rights
attached to the Charged Shares, and the Security Agent or the
Receivers shall be entitled to exercise or direct the exercise of
the voting and other rights attached to any Charged Shares.

Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 19
December 2023 for further details.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF THE GROUP’S
BUSINESS

Please refer to the section headed “Chairman’s Statement —
Outlook” for an indication of the likely future development in the
Group's business.

AUDITOR

With effect from 29 December 2023, Ernst & Young resigned as the
auditor of the Company and Prism has been appointed as the auditor
of the Company.

Prism will retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as auditor
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Save as aforesaid, there has been no other change in auditor of the
Company in any of the preceding three years.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Wong Chiu Yeung
Chairman

Hong Kong
28 March 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B ZBENRE

%@ Prism

To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
SCE Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) set out on pages 100 to 262, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
HKFRS Accounting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO THE
GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2.1 to the consolidated financial
statements which states that, the Group recorded a loss attributable
to owners of the parent of approximately RMB7.863 billion for the
year ended 31 December 2024 and, as of that date, the Group’s net
current liabilities amounted to approximately RMB13.656 billion. The
Group did not make payment of principal and interest on offshore
senior notes and certain interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
since October 2023, triggering events of default or cross-default of
various borrowings pursuant to the terms and conditions of respective
agreements. As at 31 December 2024, the interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, senior notes and domestic bonds of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB35.419 billion, while its cash and
cash equivalents amounted to approximately RMB2.921 billion.

This condition indicates the existence of a material uncertainty which
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and, therefore that it may be unable to realise its assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. The
directors of the Company have considered the plans and measures
being taken by the Group, which is disclosed at note 2.1 to the
consolidated financial statements, are of the opinion that the Group
would be able to continue as going concern basis. The consolidated
financial statements do not include any adjustments that would result
from a failure of achieving the plans and measures. We consider
appropriate disclosures have been made in this respect. Our opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter.
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To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For the matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matter below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2024
PEREEIERERAR / — T NFEFR

BHREEZRERLTZEER
(RFAESHETMAK L FRAR])

A= £ 1A

REAFREREBERMANERHE  RA
BARHGRAMBHRRNETRAERNER -
EUESTHEENREMBHRRERETE
YKRBERNER TETREN  HATY
ELEFHREEFNER - RMABETAFERE
ERFTH RO EHNER AL RS R

BHCREBET T ABRSEHAMAFA 7 EER
BREAFNETROBANEE BFE
ELRAREFFTHMABANE ML HEEM - K
fHES TERRRTREHNGNES Y
BmR EBAEREUL AR M R E OB ER
BAMTESREFNER  BHEEYE TR
REAFEAATHER  SEEMBRE
ERUNEITERREATER -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

REETER

B HERE

BHREEZRERATZEER
(REESHSTMALLERLA)

AT S8 (8

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

REETSREFTHIRNAESN

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

REVEQIAENGE

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had investment properties
in the Mainland China amounting to approximately RMB26.80
billion which were measured at fair value.
RZZZWFEF+—A=+—H0  EEEEFBEAMHKRE
MEBERIAAEBEAEBORARK268.01ETT

Management engaged an external valuer to determine the fair
value of the investment properties at the end of the reporting
period. Different valuation models were applied by the external
valuer on different types of investment properties.

ERERRINIEEMRETRERRREYENRAE -
HNEBIEERTE NRRE MR EMERA T T RN EERE -

We identified this as a key audit matter because the carrying
amounts of the investment properties are significant and
significant estimation is required to determine their fair value.
HPSHERSERES SRR ARREVENIREAEBEX
AIEHERAET T REEHAAE -

The accounting policies and disclosures are included in notes 3,
4 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

BERARBEHN G EMBmMRME3 4 k15

We obtained understanding of the work of the
external valuer engaged by management, and
assessed the objectivity, independence and
competency of the external valuer.

HMEERERERFNIEEMPTETHNT
& - WEHEIMNEEEM TN - B EREeN -

We involved an independent valuation specialist to
evaluate the valuation techniques used and tested the
underlying key estimations and assumptions for
selected samples through enquiry with management
and by reference to the rental values and open market
information.
BMmBAREREEARNLR2ZEHEEENAR
MHME » WEE (B EZERTEHER
B R ER - ¥R EEARNERBAREANERR
ETTRIH -

We compared the valuation performed by the
external valuer to the range provided by the
independent valuation specialists. We further
assessed the appropriateness of the properties
related data used as inputs for the valuation.

FAPI A S0 EB 4 (LA BT HE 1T B0 AT BB B E R
PR SEEETT T B - RPE— AT A
EHERANYEEEER ZBE N -

We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures of the
valuation of the investment properties, including
the fair value hierarchy and the valuation
techniques used and the key inputs to the valuation
of investment properties.
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To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HEETER

BHREEZRERLTZEER
(RFAESHETMAK L FRAR])

PR ET =8 (#)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HEETSREFTHIRENAESHN

Net realisable value of completed properties held for sale
and properties under development

FELHECERYENBRIUENTERFE

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had completed properties
held for sale and properties under development (the
“Properties”) amounting to approximately RMB10.34 billion
and RMB64.68 billion respectively, which represented
approximately 8% and 50% of the Group’s total assets,
respectively. In addition, provision for write down to net
realisable value of approximately RMB3.52 billion on completed
properties held for sale and properties under development, was
recognised by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2024.

RZZEZWNE+-_A=+—B  ESEFELELEXN
MERERTME (ZEVE) DRI RBARKE1034F TR
AR®646 8T Dhla EEBEREENHNEN N
50% ° S EREEZE_Z_MF+_A=+—HILF
EHEAFIELESEXDERERTYEREZ B IRF
BHOAR®E3I5.2(8TT °

Management determined the net realisable value (the “NRV")
of the Properties and made an impairment assessment by
reference to the estimated selling price less the estimated costs
to make the sale, and for properties under development, the
estimated costs to completion at the end of the reporting
period.

EREETXEMENAERFECATEZRFE")  L2R
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We involved an independent valuation specialist to
evaluate and test the underlying key estimations
and assumptions for selected samples through
enquiry with management and by reference to the
open market information.
BMBEBAREEEAMARZZHEBENAR
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HE AR (5T M ERERETT T AP BORIE -

We compared the NRV assessment performed by
the management to the range provided by the
independent valuation specialists. We further
assessed the appropriateness of the properties
related data used as inputs for the assessment.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HEETSREFTHIRENAESN

Net realisable value of completed properties held for sale
and properties under development (Continued)

FEHECERMENBRRIMENTRERFE(E)

We identified this as a key audit matter because the carrying
amounts of the Properties are significant and significant
estimation is required to determine their NRV.
BABEERERENFTE ARAZSEVENRAESE
AREETHAZR FERT2ELEKRMGG -

The accounting policies and disclosures are included in notes 3,
4,18 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

BB EHNRE M EHRRMES 4 18K%22 -

We evaluated the reasonableness of the estimated
costs to completion of the properties under
development, on a sample basis, by comparing it to
the actual development cost of similar completed
properties of the Group and comparing the
adjustments made by the management to current
market data.

BMAMERER BBAE SXRERAUETT
MENBERFERIETLR jfﬁﬁﬂfiﬁﬁﬁ
B EE RN TS ERETHE  FAHERSR
MELET T I AN S o

We evaluated the management’s assessment for
about the estimated selling price less the estimated
costs to make the sale and the estimated costs to
completion by checking the recent market
transaction prices of properties with comparable
locations and conditions, where applicable;
comparing with the average historical costs to
make the sales by the Group; and comparing the
latest estimated costs to completion to the budget
approved by management and examining the
supporting documents such as construction
contracts, internal correspondences and approvals.
HPEBEFRUEMGRHTRUN Y ENTLE TS
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To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In
connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing
the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so. The directors
of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2024
PEREEIERERAR / — T NFEFR

BHREEZRERLTZEER
(RFAESHETMAK L FRAR])

TIER FRAEAME S

EXAHEMERAR HEMESERETE
REEREANER  ETEESAMB®
RERBPOZBERE - RAOLES B BR
KNERY TREEMES BT THZ
FHMERBRREANANEZER B8
BB GRAMBRERNES  RANEER
FMEEMES  FlBiE+ EEHEMESR
EREFEMBRRIXRMAEETEETH
BENBEAFEEREBHREUAFFEEXR
FERBUREER - EREME AT ITIE
MREMRBEMEEFEERNERRL
BMFERESZFEE -EETE RIFRE
EAIHRE -

EERARE MWK A AEN
=

EXERAERBERESNASEMNER
B T 3R A Bl R BB 2 B 16 B ) 5% BB 4% E
BEEMTENGRAMBRE  XHERR
REFABBHRRNBE T FEARKEFR
£ 5R 1N 28 B B K R BR BR At BT 7 B9 R BR 43
HEE EREGAMBHRRK EF8EF
Al BERERELENEN YEERB
MATHRERFSBECELAMANER  AREA
FELEREEAR KIEFFAER &
SEBERIFLEE  HFELBERNE
RAR -BRZESHPNEZTRTRE &
B ESEENUBRSEERE-



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B BN RS

To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business unit within the Group as a basis for
forming an opinion on the Group financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the audit
work performance for purpose of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of China SCE Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Fung Shing Bun, Spencer.

Prism Hong Kong Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Fung Shing Bun, Spencer

Practising Certificate Number: P07451
Hong Kong

28 March 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

melEmahEAZEEREEK

Year ended 31 December 2024 a:l:—z “WE+—A=+—HIFE

2024 2023
—EmNE —T-=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
Bt ARBTR ARETET
REVENUE I & 6 40,770,075 20,960,968
Cost of sales HERA (34,534,538)  (18,329,976)
Gross profit E R 6,235,537 2,630,992
Other income and gains H YA R Wz 6 286,830 660,818
Changes in fair value of investment WEMENSEZE)
properties, net R 15 (5,051,706) (3,754,084)
Selling and marketing expenses THE K& & HR X (707,896) (802,420)
Administrative expenses THHEX (1,219,167) (1,710,180)
Write down to net realisable value of FERECEZRMERERF
completed properties held for sale and VR EZEA IR FE
properties under development (3,524,633) (2,951,850)
Other expenses HAthf sz (1,468,888) (877,699)
Finance costs Bi5 & A 7 (1,893,627) (1,492,343)
Share of profits and losses of: FEAS T 5% T8 % A1 I 48
Joint ventures SN 307,164 (191,285)
Associates ’9‘% %”& Al 39,766 276,431
LOSS BEFORE TAX BB AR 8 (6,996,620)  (8,211,620)
Income tax expense AR X 1 (937,852) (189,504)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FABE (7,934,472)  (8,401,124)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE His2EKA(BIX) :
INCOME/(EXPENSE):
Other comprehensive income/(expense)  FIREZERBEHMENHEE
that may be reclassified to BEHEMEEEA
profit or loss in subsequent periods: (FAX) :
Share of other comprehensive E(h& & A alHAt
income/(expense) of joint ventures 2ERKRA(FAX) (6,978) 407
Exchange differences on translation BREBINEBNEL Z5E
of foreign operations (466,013) (506,437)
Exchange fluctuation reserve released & BB A R AR BR 89
upon disposal of subsidiaries B 5% B 4 - 6,355
Net other comprehensive expense that BT RERHENSESE
may be reclassified to profit or loss Tﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬁ X FEE
in subsequent periods (472,991) (499,675)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSE FAHMBEMX
FOR THE YEAR (472,991) (499,675)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FAZHEEGEARE
LOSS FOR THE YEAR (8,407,463) (8,900,799)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GeBEmRkEMEERER

Year ended 31 December 2024 HE—ZE —_NWF+_—_A=+—HIFE

2024 2023
—E-E =E==45F
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
B 5 ARET T ARET T
Loss attributable to: T35 B ELEE
Owners of the parent ISY/NCIE/ZS PN (7,863,349) (7,991,050)
Non-controlling interests FEfE IR A (71,123) (410,074)
(7,934,472) (8,401,124)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: %! %& THfE{h 2 F B AR -
Owners of the parent ISNCIEZS N (8,327,966) (8,452,222)
Non-controlling interests FEE R M = (79,497) (448,577)
(8,407,463) (8,900,799)
LOSS PER SHARE BAREEREREEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EBiEgRER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 13
Basic and diluted AR RS RMB A R i RMB A R

(186.2) cents o

(189.2) cents o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

.\/T\ (= Zl-ﬁﬁ;lﬁ;ﬂr%:?

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

2024 2023
ZEBED@E T =F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARSTR ARETx
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property and equipment L EYNEL 14 707,095 725,257
Investment properties WEWE 15 26,799,100 33,880,100
Intangible asset B EE 17 2,319 2,486
Properties under development BRERPYE 18 5,843,494 8,625,734
Contract in progress EEIREAR 19 110,979 153,627
Investments in joint ventures BAE\%’A RIMIZE 20 2,077,866 3,118,969
Investments in associates REEE R RINRE 21 832,847 864,167
Prepayments and other assets AR RIE M EMEE 24 663,056 705,926
Deferred tax assets BEET IR A E 32 886,666 1,150,968
Total non-current assets ERBEELT 37,923,422 49,227,234
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Properties under development BRAPYE 18 58,834,211 83,747,682
Completed properties held for sale FIEREEEAXME 22 10,340,488 6,253,504
Trade receivables 2 5 WA 23 281,910 198,330
Prepayments, other receivables and TR RRIE  Ho b WU TE K
other assets H A& E 24 11,631,331 15,062,723
Financial assets at fair value through BAREEBEZSHTA
profit or loss BarepEE 26 158,339 344,135
Due from related parties JrE Uk B B 5 7R0E 25 2,534,330 4,065,231
Prepaid income tax TEfT IR 2,536,178 2,541,922
Restricted cash REBRHIRS 27 1,124,479 1,564,401
Cash and cash equivalents HeRIREEEY 27 2,920,538 4,884,525
Total current assets TMENE EE B 90,361,804 118,662,453
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR R

31 December 2024 —Z—UE+— A=+—H

2024 2023
—ENF —Eo=5F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B =k ARETRT AREBTT

CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and bills payables B S RN ZERER 28 13,993,277 11,650,518
Other payables and accruals HENRIERERE R 29 10,030,025 8,807,854
Contract liabilities ER&EE 29 48,082,677 80,838,861
Interest-bearing bank and FTERITREME

other borrowings 30 11,241,555 9,817,976
Senior notes and domestic bonds BEEBENMERNES 31 12,908,448 13,613,559
Due to related parties JE 1 BB 75 5RIR 25 2,407,084 2,588,416
Tax payable FE AT 3518 5,354,942 4,215,624
Total current liabilities mE B EEE 104,018,008 131,532,808
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEFEE (13,656,204) (12,870,355)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BWEERRBAE

LIABILITIES 24,267,218 36,356,879
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Interest-bearing bank and SFERITREMER

other borrowings 30 8,562,544 10,275,584
Senior notes and domestic bonds BEEENMEANES 31 2,706,019 2,200,000
Lease liabilities HEalE 16 3,093 6,381
Deferred tax liabilities EETIERE 32 2,326,347 3,303,940
Provision for major overhauls N L 33 99,342 88,648
Total non-current liabilities ERBEEFELE 13,697,345 15,874,553
Net assets BEFE 10,569,873 20,482,326
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION
iR aE MR R

31 December 2024 —E - ¥+ —-_HA=+—H

2024 2023
—EomE T =F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B = ARETRT ARETT
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of BRAREEAELER
the parent

Issued capital BEITRA 34 365,138 365,138
Reserves s 36 1,330,890 9,358,611
1,696,028 9,723,749
Non-controlling interests FEERER 8,873,845 10,758,577
Total equity R ARER 10,569,873 20,482,326

Wong Chiu Yeung
=5
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

GARREBHE

Year ended 31 December 2024 HE —Z—WFE+ - A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BAREAEAEE
Statutory Property Share Exchange Non-
Issued Capital surplus Merger  revaluation Other option Hedging ~ fluctuation Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserves reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
BB EE nE BikE EX FiER

Bx  AAREE ABEE oHEE  EMREE  EhER R HARE  RERE  REER 5t B R
RMB000  RMB'O0O  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'OO0  RMB'O00  RMB000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMBI000
ARBTR ARMTR ARBTL ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR AREBTE ARMTR ARMTR AREBTL ARETR

(note 34)  (note 36(b) (note 36(c)  (note 36(d) (note 36(e))
(zE34) (RfEe) (MaE36() (HiE36(d) (F £ 36(e))
At 1 January 2023 R=Z-=%-A-B 365,138 (3,596,236) 1,897,880 30 82,872 17,619 92,670 (44,811)  (599,240) 21,494,767 19,710,689 16,914,552 36,625,241
Loss for the year FRER = = = = = = - - - (7,991,050 (7,991,050)  (410,074) (8,401,124)
Other comprehensive income/ FREMZERA/
(expense) for the year: (A%):
Share of other comprehensive ElEEE DAL
income of joint ventures 2EHA - - - - - 407 - - - - 407 - 407
Exchange differences on BEBNEBH
translation of foreign EXEE
operations - - - - - - - - (467,934) - (467,934) (38,503)  (506,437)
Exchange fluctuation reserve HENBARRRRN
released upon disposal of B RBEE
subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 6,355 - 6,355 - 6,355
Total comprehensive income/(loss) A2 FEUA/(EE)
for the year 28 - - - - - 407 - - (461,579) (7,991,050) (8452,222)  (448577) (8,900,799)
Capital reduction of subsidiaries ~ MIBAF ZBRARD - - - - - - - - - - - (5798,246)  (5,798,246)
Capital contribution from FRRRREAER
non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - 21313 2313
Dividends paid to non-controlling 1 HIB A RIS AR
shareholders of subsidiaries BEROES - - - - - - - - - - - (122425 (122425
Acquisition of non-controlling W i R 2
interests - (1,106,400) - - - - - - - - (1,106,400)  (106,644) (1,213,044)
Deemed disposal of partial interest B FHEHBA A
in subsidiaries PR - (48318 - - - - - - - - (48318) 428318 -
Disposal of subsidfaries HERBAR
(note 39) (GEZ) - - = = = = = = = = - (95769 (95769)
Acquisition of a subsidiary KE—-EHBAR
(note 38) (Ft3£38) - - = = = = = = = = - (3394 (3394
Transfer statutory surplus reserve  EERBHEER
to retained profits REEF - - (14,058) = = = = = - 14,058 = = =
At 31 December 2023 i 2
+=A=1+-B 365,138 (5,130,954)* 1,883,822* 30* 82,872* 18,026% 92,670¢  (44,.811)* (1,060,819)* 13,517,775% 9,723,749 10,758,577 20,482,326
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

n‘/T\

ARHEBE

Year ended 31 December 2024 HE—F

—WE+—A=1T—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BARERARR
Statutory Property Share Exchange Non-
Issued Capital surplus Merger revaluation Other option  Hedging fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserves  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total interests equity
2R ER nE BRE Ejt FER
BE  EARE BHEE  AHEE  EREE  HbRE R HAEE RBRGE  REER @t BE  EREH
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARMTT ARETRZ ARMTT ARETR ARBTR ARMTR ARETR ARETZ ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR
(note 34) (note 36(b) (note 36(c)) (note 36(d)) (note 36(e))
(WiE34) (WiE36(b) (HEE36(c)) (MaE36(d)) (K3t 36(e))
At 1 January 2024 RZZ-mF-A-B 365,138 (5,130,954)* 1,883,822* 30* 82,872* 18,026* 92,670 (44,811)* (1,060,819)* 13517,775* 9,723,749 10,758,577 20,482,326
Loss for the year FRER = = = = = © - - - (7,863,349) (7,863,349 (11123) (7,934,472)
Other comprehensive expense FRERZERY
for the year:
Share of other comprehensive EiEAERALEL
expense of joint ventures iﬁfﬁi - - - = = (6,978) - - - - (6,978) - (6,978)
Exchange differences on BREBNEBH
translation of foreign EXEE
operations = - - - - - - - (457,639) - (457,639 (8,374)  (466,013)
Total comprehensive loss for the year A2 EIEEEE - - - = = (6,978) - - (457,639) (7,863,349) (8,327,966)  (79,497) (8,407,463)
Capital reduction of subsidiaries i NP S - - - - - - - - - - - (413,600)  (413,600)
Capital contribution from FERRREAER
non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - 1,430 1,430
Dividends paid to non-controlling 2 HIB A AIFE AR
shareholders of subsidiaries REMES - - - - - - - - - - - (360,000  (360,000)
Acquisition of non-controlling [ pzadi e 2
interests - 300,245 - - - - - - - - 300,245 (1,033,065)  (732,820)
Transfer retained profits to REEFETEE
statutory surplus reserve REGEE - - 5,975 - - - - - - (5,975) - - -
At 31 December 2024 i i3
+=A=t-H 365,138 (4,830,709)* 1,889,797* 30% 82,872* 11,048% 92,670%  (44,811)* (1,518,458) 5,648,451* 1,696,028 8,873,845 10,569,873
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * ZERBEEREGEVBMRARFTAR

RMB1,330,890,000 (2023: RMB9,358,611,000) in the consolidated statement

of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

|‘/T/\IE$/J|LE%%

Year ended 31 December 2024 HE —Z—WFE+ - A=+—HIFE

2024 2023
—E_ME —EBEC=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 ARBTR ARBTT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHRENE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax B 750 AT B 18 (6,996,620)  (8,211,620)
Adjustments for: HTIEBEELAE
Finance costs MIEER 7 1,893,627 1,492,343
Share of profits and losses of: FER T2 5 18 % A1 2 548
Joint ventures = —/NE]| (307,164) 191,285
Associates Hﬁ%/& al (39.766) (276,431)
Interest income 2 A 6 (29,998) (98,096)
Gain on disposal of items of HEWERZEEER
property and equipment, net W & F 58 6 (1,008) (1,471)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, HEME AR
net Was HaE 6,8, 39 - (169,817)
Gain on repurchase of senior notes BB E L EE IR 6 = (131,496)
Loss on disposal of associates HEBE N AR EE 8 = 29,107
Loss/(gain) on disposal of HESENAH
joint ventures, net BB (W) $58 6,8 (71,402) 93,273
Fair value losses, net: NAEEEFE :
Financial assets at fair value BARBEF=EBHES
through profit or loss FFABENEREE 8 36,965 45,774
Remeasurement of investments in EFFERNEERRNIRE
joint ventures 8 - 61,356
Loss on disposal of investment HEREMEEE
properties, net gl 8 26,253 87,356
Depreciation of property and equipment ~ #12 M R &I &€ 8, 14 52,726 80,427
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEEENTTE 14 7,493 22,145
Changes in fair value of investment KREMERNEE
properties, net 15 5,051,706 3,754,084
Amortisation of an intangible asset B B 8,17 167 167
Impairment losses recognised on REeEERBIRBERT
investments in joint ventures and KERBEEE
associates 8 695,043 172,392
Impairment losses recognised on JE M5 B Bk 5 RRIE Y
due from related parties B E1E 8 773,845 705,307
Write down to net realisable value of BIELEEBEKMER
completed properties held for sale BREYMERESR
and properties under development AR A 3,524,633 2,951,850
Impairment losses of trade receivables, B 5 R GRIE R EE B FE
net 8 43,198 2,948
4,659,698 800,883
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

IE%/)ILE%E

Year ended 31 December 2024 &HZ T —PUF+—_A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
ZEDNFE T _=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 ARBTRT ARBTET
Increase in properties under BRI
development (8,733,911) (7,512,766)
Decrease/(increase) in contract in progress #£ & L2 & B4 (3 0) 19 42,648 (158,605)
Decrease in completed properties BEHEBERYERD
held for sale 33,190,914 17,475,980
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables & 5 FEW R IE R4~ (3Z1N) (126,778) 265,072
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TETSRIB - HAbFEUGRIE &
other receivables and other assets Hib&ERD,(3Em) 2,613,179 (3,013,022)
Increase in trade and bills payables B 5 F AR EIRE M 2,342,759 617,998
Decrease in other payables and accruals b & < 7008 & fE 5+ & AR (1,261,226) (1,276,725)
Decrease in contract liabilities aRBERD (32,756,184) (1,604,498)
Increase in provision for major overhauls, A& B 1€ I E5E
net 33 6,274 6,084
Cash generated from/(used in) operations #&&EL£FE,(FTH)RE (22,627) 5,600,401
Interest received B UF & 29,998 98,096
PRC corporate income tax paid B BECEEH (235,146) (559,917)
PRC land appreciation tax paid 2 - R B i SR E (270,939) (44,488)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating & &EBFE,(FFA)IRERE
activities Pt (498,714) 5,094,092
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

an\

CASH FLOWS

IE:%/)ILE%E

Year ended 31 December 2024 HE —Z—WFE+ - A=+—HIFE

2024 2023
—E_ME —EBEC=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 ARBTR ARBTT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of EEMELREER
property and equipment (42,825) (72,602)
Proceeds from disposal of items of LEMHERFEEE A
property and equipment 2,354 23,284
Additions to investment properties R E ) 2 15 (778,038) (1,612,223)
Proceeds from disposal of HEREYESKIE
investment properties 6,659 263,965
Acquisition of subsidiaries I B BT B A ) 38 - (13,500)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHE A A 39 = 196,307
Dividend from joint ventures e NGILEoi)d = 117,673
Addition capital in joint ventures E\%QTZH§$1M = (10,514)
Capital reduction of associates iR RN o) & s A = 200,760
Dividend from associates Bt A Al A RR B 900 1,800
Proceeds from disposal of joint ventures  HEA & A 7 ?fr?% IH - 183,895
Proceeds from disposal of associate S B E N B FTS0E = 269,500
Repayments from related parties 8B 5 SRIRE K - 105,031
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets H & & A & d‘iﬂﬁ """"" Tﬁ‘/\
at fair value through profit or loss Bl REEmMS 151,141 48,224
Decrease in restricted cash 2R HIR SR 439,922 2,301,692
Decrease in pledged deposits 2 EAEFERR D = 2,031,012
Decrease in time deposits with REBHEZR=@AZ
original maturity over three months EMBEFEZORL 649,300 10,000
Net cash flows from investing activities B EBFTER & REFHE 429,413 4,044,304
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS
an\ Iﬁ:@/)lb%%

Year ended 31 December 2024 &HZ T —PUF+—_A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
ZEDNFE T _=F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 ARBTRT AREBTET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest paid ERFE (788,967) (2,085,544)
Proceeds from issuance of senior BIEREEBRRAES
notes and domestic bonds PS5 78 = 2,200,000
Redemption of senior notes and BEELERBIRAES
domestic bonds (7,401) (3,920,029)
New bank and other borrowings SERTREME %A 863,889 942,574
Repayment of bank and other borrowings (&8 817 & E it & 5k (1,301,068) (7,732,473)
Capital contribution from FEIZ IR AR 3R & AN H B
non-controlling shareholders - 21,313
Capital reduction of subsidiaries BB A Az IRAR A = (1,960,000)
Advances from non-controlling FEVERR AR SR EA K
shareholders - 489,787
Principal portion of lease payments XNEEREHD (9,194) (14,794)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests Y& FEE AR i 2= = (1,213,044)
Increase in due to related parties JE 1<) B8 Bt 5 BRI 3 AN - 5,108
Dividends paid to non-controlling AR B A B FEIE AR AR B A9 AR B
shareholders of subsidiaries - (122,425)
Net cash flows used in financing BEEEMARE
activities MEFE (1,242,741)  (13,389,527)
NET DECREASE IN CASH RERREEEBYRD FHE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,312,042) (4,251,131)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning TR & KBS FEY
of year 3,932,025 8,156,453
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, BEHTEFE
net (2,645) 26,703
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRASRREEEY
AT END OF YEAR 2,617,338 3,932,025
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERBRESEYEHRIN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in ,Zv?é-\ MBARRERAS 2 RE R
the consolidated statement of SEEY
financial position 27 2,920,538 4,884,525
Less: Non-pledged time deposits with B BARIBEEZR=ZMAZ
original maturity over three months RIGHEIPTE BTN
when acquired (303,200) (952,500)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated miEEReRERMTNEE R
in the consolidated statement of ReEEY
cash flows 2,617,338 3,932,025
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

China SCE Group Holdings Limited (the
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company

“Company”) is

with limited liability. The registered office of the Company
is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The addresses of
the principal place of business of the Company in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") and Hong Kong are SCE Tower,
No. 2, Lane 1688, Shenchang Road, Honggiao Business District,
Shanghai, China; and Room 2801, Hysan Place, 500 Hennessy
Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) were principally engaged in property development,
property investment, property management, project
management and land development in the PRC during the year.

In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding company of
the Company is Newup Holdings Limited, which is incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI").

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

1.

e PR R M T

31 December 2024 —Z—UE+— A=+—H
nAE MEBEER

PEEEERER AR ([ARAF]) ERH
EHETMUIRERREERAF - K
N \) B 7 i 9% =5 R AL 74 Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands ° Z<
RERHREARLME ([FEH]) REH
METEEMBMIE D B AP E S
MRS R BRI 1688F 25 H K&
B K E &SRS EFFES005% %
EE52801 = -

FR - ARAREMB AR (B[ AE

BDEI2EFELEVEZR MWER
B -YExEE HRETERIMWAE-

EERA  ADANKKERDABH
RERARAR  ZDARKEBELE
5 EBEXES])EMRT -

fif B & A& #Y

RZE-_WMF+_A=+—HEB@ELR

December 2024 are as follows: AIEEZMBARFBERHINET
Place of incorporation/ Particulars Percentage of equity
registration of issued and attributable
Name and business paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
TRAL/ BETRAR KRR
£ dAMREFRLE BA BEESK TEXH
Direct Indirect
E# B
Affluent Way International Limited ** BVI Us$1 100 - Investment holding
HEERERAR EREAEHS 1% REZMR
SCE Intelligent Commercial Cayman Islands HK$19,350,000 - 38%  Investment holding
Management Holdings Limited "
("SCECM")
PHREEEERBERERAR " HEHES 19,350,000/ ¢ REZR
k=)
South China Group (H.K.) Limited ** Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Investment holding
PHRERE(FE)BERAF B 100787T REBR
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RalkEEER #)

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) Bt A Rl E R (8)
Particulars of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 RZEBZ_MFE+—A=+—HBEBELR

AEEMBARFBEHINGT : (&)

December 2024, are as follows: (Continued)

Place of incorporation/ Particulars Percentage of equity
registration of issued and attributable
Name and business paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
FWEL BETRAR KDAEMR
£ SR RE L BRAFE EEAD TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# B
Xiamen Zhongjun Industrial Co., Ltd.***  PRC/Mainland China HK$1,778,930,000 - 100 Investment holding and
("Xiamen Zhongjun”) trading of construction
materials
EF R EEAR AR /R AR 1,778,930,000% 7T REERR
(=PI EEREMH
Shanghai Zhongjun Property Co., Ltd.**  PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and
trading of construction
materials
LBhEEXERAR /PR AR AR 100,000,000 REZRE
BERSEIH
Beijing Zhongjun Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 100 Property investment
Management Co., Ltd. **"#
IRPRARERERAR hE/PEAR AR 100,000,0007C mERA
Fujian Zhongjun Industrial Co., Ltd.**  PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000,000 - 100 Investment holding, property
development and
property investment
RETREZEROA /R AR AR 1,000,000,0007 REZR NEER
e
South Fujian Gold Coast Resort PRC/Mainland China RMB400,000,000 - 45°  Property development and
Co., Ltd. Shishi**# property investment
ARTEEELERERN VLN AR 400,000,007 NEBRINERE
BRAR**
Shanghai Junbo Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100 Property development and
Development Co., Ltd.*# property investment
LERBEBERRERAA HE/PEAR AR1,000,0007T MERREMERA
Shanghai Junming Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB1,052,841,000 - 100 Property development and
Development Co., Ltd.***# property investment
LEREERERZERAR hE/HEKE AR1,052,841,0007 NEBRINERE
Nan'an Junhong Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB150,000,000 - 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd**
HRRERHEREFRAGR RE/REARE AR 150,000,000 7 NEER
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

an\

BRI

31 December 2024 —Z—UE+— A=+—H

NEIREBER (#)

BN = E R (2)

RZE-_MFE+=

A=+—REBEEXR

December 2024 are as follows: (Continued) AIEEMBRARIFBHRIWOT (&)
Place of incorporation/ Particulars Percentage of equity
registration of issued and attributable
Name and business paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
ZWEL/ BETRAR KDAEMR
£ afRE L BRAFE EEAM TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# B
Hangzhou Junjin Industrial PRC/Mainland China RMB363,787,500 - 100 Property development and
Development Co., Ltd.*# property investment
MNERERRRERAA hE/PEAR AR #363,787,5007C NREREMERA
Shanghai Zhongjun Chuangfu PRC/Mainland China RMB1,800,000,000 - 61  Property investment
Real Estate Co., Ltd. ***#
LETRAEEHEERAF > wE/HEAE AR%1,800,000,000 7T mERA
Suzhou Junyuan Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB21,085,900 - 100 Property development
Development Co. Ltd.**
BNRREHEREERAR /B AR AR 21,0859007C ESEE
Chongging Junhuigongchuang Real PRC/Mainland China RMB800,000,000 - 47®  Property development
Estate Development Co., Ltd.**
(“Chongging Junhuigongchuang”)
ERREXARHERBERAR Y E/PEAE AR % 800,000,007 NEER
(BEHELR])
Qingdao Zhong Yutai Property PRC/Mainland China RMB52,241,100 - 96  Property development
Co., Ltd.**
ERRNRELARAA GEVEE N ARH52,241,100 T NEER
Tianjin Junyang Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 95 Property development
Development Co., Ltd.**
RERGRREREBRAR i/ RE A AR%1,000,00070 NEER
Tianjin Bijun Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 - 48%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.**
REEERHERYE AR /R AR AR%30,000,0007C MEER
Suzhou Junda Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd.**
BNEEEHEREARAR i/ HE AR ARH1,000,00070 MEER
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RalkEEER #)

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) Bt A Rl E R (8)
Particulars of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 RZEBZ_MFE+—A=+—HBEBELR

AEEMBARFBEHINGT : (&)

December 2024 are as follows: (Continued)

Place of incorporation/ Particulars Percentage of equity
registration of issued and attributable
Name and business paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
FWEL BETRAR KDAEMR
£ SR RE L BRAFE EEAD TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# B
Xuzhou Junxing Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB1,437,000,000 - 100  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.*#
BMNEREHEREBRAR GEVEE N AR 1,437,000,0007C NEER
Shangrao Junmao Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB61,110,650 - 96  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.**
LETHEREHEREARARY  hE/REKE ARK61,110,650 0 NEER
Chongging Sanchengyihui PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000,000 = 50°  Property development
Enterprise Co., Ltd.**
("Chongging Sanchengyihui")
EE-HREEEERAR /R AR AR #1,000,000,000 7T WELE
(2B=m#=E])
Xiamen Junming Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd.***#
FPRREHEREARARA = hE/ hEAE AR%1,000,0007 NEER
Xiamen Taiming Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB5,500,000,000 - 80  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.*#
(“Xiamen Taiming")
EFRBREHEREBRAR /B AR AR 5,500,000,0007C NEER
(EMZE])
Zhumadian Junxin Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB10,208,060 - 98  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.**
BEESRBRHERZARDAY  HE/ HEAE AR10,208,060 T ES
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2024 are as follows: (Continued)

e BRI

31 December 2024 —Z—UE+— A=+—H

NEIREBER (#)

BN = E R (2)

R-ZE_WNF+-_A=+—HFRELR
AEEMBARFBEHINGT : (&)

Place of incorporation/ Particulars Percentage of equity
registration of issued and attributable
Name and business paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
ZWEL/ BETRAR KDAEMR
£ afRE L BRAFE EEAM TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# B
Binzhou Junbo Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB350,000,000 - 100 Property development and
Development Co., Ltd.*# property investment
BMNEBEHEREBRAR GEVEE DN AR 350,000,007 NERRRMERE
Hangzhou Junyi Real Estate Co., Ltd.**  PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 100 Property development and
property investment
MMEREZER AR+ /B AR AR 10,000,000 NEERRNERE
Hefei Junwo Real Estate Development ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100 Property development and
Co., Ltd.** property investment
AERARHERERRAF /R AR AR 50,000,000 NEERIMERE
Nantong Junze Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 100 Property development and
Development Co., Ltd.*# property investment
HRRERHEREERAR GEVEE N AR%20,000,0007C NERRRMERE
Yongchun Junrui Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100 Property development and
Development Co., Ltd.** property investment
KEEREHEREBRAR /B AR AR 50,000,000 7T NEERRNERE
Fuzhou Junyue Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB10,126,582 - 99 Property development and
Development Co., Ltd.** property investment
BMEEEHEREFRAR RE/REARE AE#10,126,5827C NELRBIMERE
Shanghai Junting Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 100 Property development and
Development Co., Ltd.*# property investment
LBRSEHEREBRAR GEVEE N AR%10,000,0007C NEZRRMERE
Beijing Junyang Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 75 Property development
Development Co., Ltd.**
IREEEREREARAR VLN AR 100,000,007 NEERR
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

an\

BB HmRNEE

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2024 are as follows: (Continued)

Registered as limited liability companies under the PRC law
Registered as wholly-foreign-owned entities under the PRC law
Registered as Sino-foreign joint ventures under the PRC law

The English names of these companies in the PRC represent the
best effort made by the management of the Company to directly
translate their Chinese names only for the purpose of these financial
statements as no official English names have been registered.

As at 31 December 2024, certain of the Group’s bank and other
borrowings were secured by share charges of certain subsidiaries
of the Company, details of which are set out in note 30(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2024, the equity interests of these companies
were pledged to the holders of the senior notes of US$500,000,000
at a coupon rate of 7.375% due in April 2024 (the “Senior Notes due
in April 2024"), the senior notes of US$500,000,000 at a coupon
rate of 7% due in May 2025 (the “Senior Notes due in May 2025"),
the senior notes of US$350,000,000 at a coupon rate of 6% due in
February 2026 (the “Senior Notes due in February 2026") and the
senior notes of US$450,000,000 at a coupon rate of 5.95% due in
September 2024 (the “Senior Notes due in September 2024") (note
31).

Certain companies are accounted for the subsidiaries of the Group
based on the factors explained in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Pursuant to the announcement of the Company dated 19 December
2023, by notices given by the security agent (the “Security Agent”)
of the original lenders of a facility agreement entered into by the
Company on 4 July 2023 coordinated by The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited with, among others, a syndicate of,
charges over 504,000,000 shares (the “Charged Shares”) of SCE CM
(representing approximately 26.0% of its issued share capital as at
19 December 2023) held by Happy Scene Global Limited (“Happy
Scene”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in
favour of the Security Agent of the Banks, had become enforceable in
accordance with the terms of the relevant security agreements. Happy
Scene had ceased to be entitled to exercise voting and other rights
attached to the Charged Shares.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2024 are as follows: (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards (“HKFRSs"”)
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for investment properties
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“"RMB") and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand (“RMB’000")
except when otherwise indicated.

1.

e IR R AR Y R

31 December 2024 —Z—UE+— A=+—H

NEIREBER (#)

BN = E R (2)

R-ZE_WNF+-_A=+—HFRELR
AEEMBARFBEHINGT : (&)

ERIIEARBNMEAR  EERR

HIBFEFTANFEIBRAREE
EFEN KD - EFRAMHINEE
B ARNFFEE<REBNITE -

BEHBE
2.1 RBEE

ZERBRRIDBRBET B G
A ((BEGMAE]) BHH
BAMBRELENSFTER (&
B BHREEA (BERBEER
Bﬁ‘%i&i‘?&ﬁu CBAEEN(E
BEFER) k2B RBEE AR
1Im1§|JE’9?3S’ZE%%EEﬁ’ﬁ%%§<° B &
MEREAAEFEBEEEE
ABSENEMEERQNEFNE
Sh o RER MR TYIRE 2 XA
mE-BRABERN ZFEVH
BRIAARE [ARED 25
MEPMAESRANERAAER
BEONTUE(TARETIT)) »
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BB HmRNEE

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
year ended 31 December 2024. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

() the Group’'s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rRa MR R AR M T

31 December 2024 —Z—UE+— A=+—H
SRR (8
2.1 REBEEEE)

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2.

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as
an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, any non-
controlling interest and exchange fluctuation reserve;
and recognises the fair value of any investment retained
and any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The
Group's share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

an\

BB HmRNEE

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Going concern basis

The Group recorded a loss attributable to owners of the
parent of approximately RMB7.863 billion for the year
ended 31 December 2024. As at 31 December 2024, the
Group recorded net current liabilities of approximately
RMB13.656 billion. As at 31 December 2024, the interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, senior notes and
domestic bonds of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB35.419 billion, while its cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately RMB2.921 billion. The
Group did not make payment of principal and interest on
offshore senior notes and certain interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings since October 2023, triggering
events of default or cross-default of various borrowings
pursuant to the terms and conditions of respective
agreements. As at 31 December 2024, the Group's
defaulted or cross-defaulted principal and accrued interest
of offshore senior notes and certain interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings amounted to approximately
RMB19.671 billion and RMB2.302 billion respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
Going concern basis (Continued)

The above conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which casts significant doubt on the Group'’s
ability to continue as a going concern. In view of such
circumstances, certain plans and measures have been
taken to mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve the
Group's financial position which include, but not limited
to, the following:

(@ The Company has been actively working with
its advisers to assess its current financial and
operational conditions, with a view to formulating
a holistic solution that is in the best interests
of all stakeholders and facilitate a long term
sustainable capital structure of the Group. The
Company has been constructively engaging with
its offshore creditors and their respective advisers
towards a consensual restructuring of the Group’s
relevant offshore indebtedness. Please refer to the
announcement dated 28 November 2024 for further
details;

(b)  The Group will continue to seek for re-financing or
extension of its existing bank and other borrowings
and secure new project development loans for
ensuring the delivery of property projects;

(0 The Group timely adjusts its sales strategy to
accelerate pre-sales and sales of properties and
speed up collection of sales proceeds; and

(d) The Group will continue to search for potential
buyers for disposal of certain investment properties
and non-core businesses in order to generate
additional cash inflows.

e IR R AR Y R

31 December 2024 —E-&E+—-HA=+—H
2. BFtHXR @
21 RBEEEE)
FEREER (B)

LFRIERKRA FEZEANT
EHE EAHAKBEEE A
NFBEREELEEREE - A
Kb AEBEE QKRR T — L5
EMBERRERRDESTEN
REAESENBBRR Hbh e
BETRRIATEEIFEG

@) ARA—EEEREALERB
fl B ATEY 1 7% R 2 @A
EEBENGMBRNE R
EMB Y RERNEE R A
FEEAANEBNEREAR
o ARA-—HEHEEIME
RAREZEWEMETRE
RS NEK—HEA
REEREEIMERS - #—
FHBE FL2HBEHMA=FT
—HWHE+—AZ+NA\BKHA

£t .
=1

b) AKBKEESKERENX
EERBEEHRITMEME
R WEESHNERFER
R ERIMNWEER

O AEHEERFRBREHFER
B RMETREMBEE
I AN PRUCER 35 & TR - &

d) AREKEESHKEEER
HERTREWMEMIEZL
15 WEGEZHERA -

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2024
REREBIERERAR / — T _MFFR

121



122

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R MR

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Going concern basis (Continued)

The Directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow
projections prepared by management, which cover a
period of not less than twelve months from 31 December
2024. They are of the opinion that, taking into account
the abovementioned plans and measures, the Group will
have sufficient working capital to finance its operations
and to meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due within twelve months from 31 December
2024. Accordingly, the Directors are satisfied that it
is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties
exist as to whether the Group is able to achieve its plans
and measures as described above. In the opinion of the
Directors whether the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern would mainly depend upon the following:

(@  successfully completing the holistic restructuring of
its offshore indebtedness;

(b)  successfully negotiating with banks and financial
institutions on the re-financing or extension of
its bank and other borrowings and securing new
project development loans;

() successfully implementing sales strategy to
accelerate pre-sales and sales of properties and
speed up collection of sales proceeds; and

(d) successfully disposing of certain investment
properties and non-core businesses.

Should the Group be unable to achieve the
abovementioned plans and measures and operate as a
going concern, adjustments would have to be made to
write down the carrying values of the Group’s assets to
their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets
and current liabilities, respectively. The effects of these
adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
HKFRS 16
Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as
HKAS 1 Current or Non-current
(the 2020 Amendments”)
Amendments to Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
HKAS 1 (the 2022 Amendments”)
Amendments to Supplier Finance Arrangements

HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7

The nature and impact of the revised HKFRSs are
described below:

(@  Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements
that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease
liability arising in a sale and leaseback transaction
to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any
amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right
of use it retains. Since the Group has no sale and
leaseback transactions with variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate occurring
from the date of initial application of HKFRS 16,
the amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a BRI

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

(b)

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements
for classifying liabilities as current or non-current,
including what is meant by a right to defer
settlement and that a right to defer must exist at
the end of the reporting period. Classification of
a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the
entity will exercise its right to defer settlement.
The amendments also clarify that a liability can be
settled in its own equity instruments, and that only
if a conversion option in a convertible liability is
itself accounted for as an equity instrument would
the terms of a liability not impact its classification.
The 2022 Amendments further clarify that,
among covenants of a liability arising from a loan
arrangement, only those with which an entity must
comply on or before the reporting date affect the
classification of that liability as current or non-
current. Additional disclosures are required for
non-current liabilities that are subject to the entity
complying with future covenants within 12 months
after the reporting period.

The Group has reassessed the terms and conditions
of its liabilities as at 1 January 2023 and 2024 and
concluded that the classification of its liabilities as
current or non-current remained unchanged upon
initial application of the amendments. Accordingly,
the amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

()

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 clarify the
characteristics of supplier finance arrangements and
require additional disclosure of such arrangements.
The disclosure requirements in the amendments
are intended to assist users of financial statements
in understanding the effects of supplier finance
arrangements on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows
and exposure to liquidity risk. As the Group does
not have supplier finance arrangements, the
amendments did not have any impact on the
Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective,
in these financial statements. The Group intends to apply
these new and revised HKFRSs, if applicable, when they

become effective.

HKFRS 18

HKFRS 19

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 21
Annual Improvements

to HKFRS Accounting
Standards — Volume 11

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2025

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2026

2 Effective for annual/reporting periods beginning on or after 1

January 2027

& No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for

adoption

Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements®

Subsidiaries without Public Accountability:
Disclosures®

Amendments to the Classification and
Measurement of Financial Instruments*

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*

Lack of Exchangeability'

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9,

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 72
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rRa MR R AR M T

31 December 2024 —Z—UE+— A=+—H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. ETBUR @)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong 23 BEMERKRERNERR

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.

HKFRS 18 replaces HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements. While a number of sections have been brought
forward from HKAS 1 with limited changes, HKFRS 18
introduces new requirements for presentation within the
statement of profit or loss, including specified totals and
subtotals. Entities are required to classify all income and
expenses within the statement of profit or loss into one
of the five categories: operating, investing, financing,
income taxes and discontinued operations and to present
two new defined subtotals. It also requires disclosures
about management-defined performance measures in
a single note and introduces enhanced requirements
on the grouping (aggregation and disaggregation) and
the location of information in both the primary financial
statements and the notes. Some requirements previously
included in HKAS 1 are moved to HKAS 8 Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors,
which is renamed as HKAS 8 Basis of Preparation of
Financial Statements. As at consequence of the issuance
of HKFRS 18, limited, but widely applicable, amendments
are made to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows, HKAS
33 Earnings per Share and HKAS 34 Interim Financial
Reporting. In addition, there are minor consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 18 and the
consequential amendments to other HKFRSs are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2027 with earlier application permitted. Retrospective
application is required. The Group is currently analysing
the new requirements and assessing the impact of HKFRS
18 on the presentation and disclosure of the Group’s
financial statements.
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31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

HKFRS 19 allows eligible entities to elect to apply
reduced disclosure requirements while still applying
the recognition, measurement and presentation
requirements in other HKFRSs. To be eligible, at the end
of the reporting period, an entity must be a subsidiary as
defined in HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements,
cannot have public accountability and must have a parent
(ultimate or intermediate) that prepares consolidated
financial statements available for public use which comply
with HKFRSs. Earlier application is permitted. As the
Company is a listed company, it is not eligible to elect to
apply HKFRS 19. Some of the Company’s subsidiaries are
considering the application of HKFRS 19 in their specified
financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 clarify the date on
which a financial asset or financial liability is derecognised
and introduce an accounting policy option to derecognise
a financial liability that is settled through an electronic
payment system before the settlement date if specified
criteria are met. The amendments clarify how to assess
the contractual cash flow characteristics of financial assets
with environmental, social and governance and other
similar contingent features. Moreover, the amendments
clarify the requirements for classifying financial assets
with non-recourse features and contractually linked
instruments. The amendments also include additional
disclosures for investments in equity instruments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial instruments with contingent
features. The amendments shall be applied retrospectively
with an adjustment to opening retained profits (or other
component of equity) at the initial application date. Prior
periods are not required to be restated and can only be
restated without the use of hindsight. Earlier application
of either all the amendments at the same time or only
the amendments related to the classification of financial
assets is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rRa MR R AR M T

31 December 2024 —Z—UE+— A=+—H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. ETBUR @)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong 23 BEMERKRERNERR

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10
and in HKAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of
a gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction
when the sale or contribution of assets constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective
date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 was
removed by the HKICPA. However, the amendments are
available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 21 specify how an entity shall
assess whether a currency is exchangeable into another
currency and how it shall estimate a spot exchange rate
at a measurement date when exchangeability is lacking.
The amendments require disclosures of information that
enable users of financial statements to understand the
impact of a currency not being exchangeable. Earlier
application is permitted. When applying the amendments,
an entity cannot restate comparative information. Any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments
shall be recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits or to the cumulative amount
of translation differences accumulated in a separate
component of equity, where appropriate, at the date
of initial application. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R MR

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting Standards
— Volume 11 set out amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS
7 (and the accompanying Guidance on implementing
HKFRS 7), HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10 and HKAS 7. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the

Group are as follows:

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: The
amendments have updated certain wording in
paragraph B38 of HKFRS 7 and paragraphs 1G1,
IG14 and 1G20B of the Guidance on implementing
HKFRS 7 for the purpose of simplification or
achieving consistency with other paragraphs
in the standard and/or with the concepts and
terminology used in other standards. In addition,
the amendments clarify that the Guidance on
implementing HKFRS 7 does not necessarily illustrate
all the requirements in the referenced paragraphs of
HKFRS 7 nor does it create additional requirements.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rRa MR R AR M T

31 December 2024 —Z—UE+— A=+—H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. SBETHBUR #®)
2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong 23 BEMERKRERNERR
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued) B EER ()
e HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: The amendments s EBEXRUMBHRESEANFRINRS
clarify that when a lessee has determined that a BTA: ZZEEEE &

lease liability has been extinguished in accordance
with HKFRS 9, the lessee is required to apply
paragraph 3.3.3 of HKFRS 9 and recognise any
resulting gain or loss in profit or loss. In addition,
the amendments have updated certain wording
in paragraph 5.1.3 of HKFRS 9 and Appendix A
of HKFRS 9 to remove potential confusion. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the
Group's financial statements.

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements: The
amendments clarify that the relationship described
in paragraph B74 of HKFRS 10 is just one example
of various relationships that might exist between the
investor and other parties acting as de facto agents
of the investor, which removes the inconsistency
with the requirement in paragraph B73 of HKFRS
10. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: The amendments
replace the term “cost method” with “at cost”
in paragraph 37 of HKAS 7 following the prior
deletion of the definition of “cost method”. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are
not expected to have any impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R MR

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity, in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it has significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group's share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is
included in profit or loss. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint
venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s investments in the associates or joint
ventures, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part of
the Group’s investments in associates or joint ventures.

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2024
PEREEIERERAR / — T NFEFR

BEARGRTBUR
RBEQARREAEAANRE

BtE NP EEFE R DR20%
MM ERZENRERS  YHEE
FENER BEAXER2HEWERE
NE R EEBRRKOED - B3F
22 1) o 2 [R5 il 5% F BUR

BERRAR/—HAERH B #A
ARG ROALHERZTERE
REHFEE - AREH KA R EE
18 e BEE B4 - Aﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁ
AREEEGIENALT - BRESFE -

AEERBERTREERAANKRER
B EANAKBEGFEER M
EER BN RS M AR RIIR

HRAEFET BN RREFH
AR AEHE—2

g

AEBERGHEAR RS ERARWER
FENEMEPEW ST AR - B
HEZRNBE AR KA E QA A E
REEZEY  AAKESRFBERNE
ERDEHREIAEERETAEY - K
SEEEBERRRELERRRRZH
ARERWmMEBEBARNEEREZ R
ARAERRMRERREH - HERK
ERBESMEREERENER - I
BHMENRHIBERRMEERE G
AMERAERERBZRTREERAR
BHED ©




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted
for under the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of
significant influence over the associate or joint control over the
joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or
loss.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BB HmRNEE

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of
this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair
value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for non-financial asset is required (other
than properties under development, completed properties
held for sale, contract in progress, deferred tax assets and
investment properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a
cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building)
is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to
the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R MR

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same

group,

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property and equipment and depreciation

Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which
it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property and equipment are required to
be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a BRI

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) BAETBER @)
Property and equipment and depreciation MERBBEBRTE @)
(Continued)
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off MENEREGE  REEMERRKB

the cost of each item of property and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

A B W AEHEAFRMEERAEER
BEE -FIEANEENEFENT

Leasehold land under Over the lease terms EEMEE T 1278 %) F B
finance leases
Buildings Over the lease terms gF R A 5
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease MEMEEE LA F Bk 20%
terms and 20% (& EH)
Furniture, fixtures and 19% to 25% B KER 19% E 25%
office equipment MAEHRE
Transportation equipment 10% to 25% EHTA 10% & 25%

Where parts of an item of property and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Changes in the values of revalued property and equipment are
dealt with as movements in the property revaluation reserve.
If the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on
an individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to
profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to
profit or loss to the extent of the deficit previously charged.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land
Buildings

Over the remaining term of the lease
two to 20 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term of the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value and comprise land costs, construction
costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and other costs directly
attributable to such properties incurred during the development
period.

Properties under development are classified as current assets
unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond the normal
operating cycle. On completion, the properties are transferred
to completed properties held for sale.

When the right-of-use assets relate to interests in leasehold land
held as properties under development, they are subsequently
measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value in
accordance with the Group’s policy for properties under
development.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by an
apportionment of total land and construction costs attributable
to the unsold properties. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to the sales proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses,
or by management estimates based on prevailing market
conditions.

When the right-of-use assets relate to interests in leasehold
land held as completed properties held for sale, they are
subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net realisable
value in accordance with the Group’s policy for completed
properties held for sale.

Service concession arrangement

The Group has entered into a service concession arrangement
with a government body in Quanzhou, the PRC, for the
operation and management of certain sports and recreation
facilities. The transactions related to such service concession
arrangement are accounted for by the Group as follows:

Consideration paid by the Group

An intangible asset (operating concession) is recognised to
the extent that the Group receives a right to charge users of
the public services. The intangible asset (operating concession)
is accounted for in accordance with the policy set out for
“Intangible asset (other than goodwill)” below.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Service concession arrangement (Continued)
Operating services

Revenue relating to operating services is accounted for in
accordance with the policy for “Revenue recognition” below.

Contractual obligations to restore the sports and
recreation facilities to a specified level of serviceability

The Group has contractual obligations which it must fulfil as a
condition of its licence. The obligations are (a) to maintain the
sports and recreation facilities it operates to a specified level
of serviceability and (b) to restore the sports and recreation
facilities to a specified condition before they are handed over to
the grantor at the end of the service concession arrangement.
These contractual obligations to maintain or restore the sports
and recreation facilities, except for the upgrade element, are
recognised and measured in accordance with the policy set out
for “Provisions” below.

Intangible asset (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an intangible
asset recognised in profit or loss in the period is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant intangible asset.
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31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible asset (other than goodwill) (Continued)
Operating concession

Operating concession represents the right to operate certain
sports and recreation facilities and is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is provided on the straight-line basis over
the period of the operating concession granted to the Group of
30 years.

Investment properties

Investment properties include both completed investment
properties and investment properties under construction.

Completed investment properties are interests in land and
buildings (including right-of-use assets) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end
of the reporting period.

Investment properties under construction or development for
future use as investment properties are classified as investment
properties under construction. Such properties under
construction are measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs, and stated at fair value, subsequent to initial recognition,
at the end of the reporting period when the fair value can be
determined reliably.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
completed investment properties and investment properties
under construction are included in profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of a completed
investment property or an investment property under
construction are recognised in profit or loss in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
"Property and equipment and depreciation” up to the date of
change in use, and any difference at that date between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted
for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property and equipment and depreciation” above.

When the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property, it is included in investment properties. The
corresponding right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost,
and subsequently measured at fair value, in accordance with the
Group's policy for “Investment properties”.
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31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and lease of
low value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.

(@) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a
purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by
the Group and payments of penalties for termination of
a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
the option to terminate the lease. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

The Group’s current portion of lease liabilities were
included in other payables and accruals whereas the non-
current portion of lease liabilities were separately disclosed
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of properties (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). Lease payments on short-term leases
are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either
an operating lease or a finance lease.

Lease in which the Group does not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease term and is included in
revenue in the profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee
are accounted for as finance leases. When the Group is an
intermediate lessor, a sublease is classified as a finance lease or
operating lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising
from the head lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease
to which the Group applies the on-balance sheet recognition
exemption, the Group classifies the sublease as an operating
lease.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group’s business model for managing them. With
the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group initially measures
a financial assets at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs.
Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient are measured at the transaction price determined
under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows
will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured
at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income are held within
a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace are recognised on the trade date,
that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on the equity investments are also recognised as
other income in profit or loss when the right of payment has
been established.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated

statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either

(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks

and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither

transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the

asset.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the

rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that
result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts
in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified

approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month

ECLs

Stage2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial
assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime

ECLs

Stage3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased
or originated credit-impaired) and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an amount

equal to lifetime ECLs
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a
significant financing component and lease receivables, the
Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
accruals, due to related parties, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings and senior notes and domestic bonds.

3.

e IR R AR Y R

31 December 2024 —E-&E+—-HA=+—H
BEAGHBR @
THMEERE®)

IGR (P2

R BEAMEK D RAEEC EAA
TRETNA(THABRERRERDITE)
MESERKFRERAREE  AEER
AERAEEERREAGEE R
BRI AEBEYEEREERR
e MERESHRSEHNZHES
EEBRERERERE ARECRY
REEBEEEBRERAEZBERE
fE - WIREHS A EATE MR = RE
BEIRBELFE -

REABEABEK D K E Z EYGRIA M
EREEAREBWHENE AEEZE
BRAM AR DR ERHE
EEE-

EMEE
DEZEN S8

TRABBERNVSERARIEE W E
DREAREFABENEHEE &
REBE BN BT RERE
PR T AMITETA -

FrBEEBMABUAREETSRE
maBER LR E MEMNK - RINGRE
BERIEXSHMA -

AEENEREBEERREI NEMBEN
HIE - EEER - ETRAR T 3R - &
BRITREMERIELERERFERNE

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2024

REREEZRARAR/ — T _MFER

155



156

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a BRI
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade and bills payables,
other payables, and borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and bills payables, other payables,
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and domestic
bonds are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Senior notes

Senior notes issued by the Company that contain both liability
and early redemption option (which is not closely related to the
host contract) are classified separately into respective items on
initial recognition. At the date of issue, both the liability and
early redemption option components are recognised at fair
value.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the senior
notes is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The early redemption option is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the senior notes
are allocated to the liability and early redemption components
in proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction costs
relating to the early redemption option are charged to profit
or loss immediately. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of the liability
portion and amortised over the period of the senior notes using
the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is
recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance
of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i)
the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the policy as
set out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (i) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally
designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the
Group wishes to apply hedge accounting, the risk management
objective and its strategy for undertaking the hedge.

The documentation includes identification of the hedging
instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk being
hedged and how the Group will assess whether the hedging
relationship meets the hedge effectiveness requirements
(including the analysis of sources of hedge ineffectiveness and
how the hedge ratio is determined). A hedging relationship
qualifies for hedge accounting if it meets all of the following
effectiveness requirements:

o There is “an economic relationship” between the hedged
item and the hedging instrument.

3 The effect of credit risk does not “dominate the value
changes” that result from that economic relationship.

o The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same
as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item
that the Group actually hedges and the quantity of the
hedging instrument that the Group actually uses to hedge
that quantity of hedged item.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (Continued)

Hedges of a net investment

Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation, including a
hedge of a monetary item that is accounted for as part of the
net investment, are accounted for in a similar way to cash flow
hedges. Gains or losses on the hedging instrument relating
to the effective portion of the hedge are recognised in other
comprehensive income while any gains or losses relating to the
ineffective portion are recognised in profit or loss. On disposal
of the foreign operation, the cumulative value of any such gains
or losses recorded in equity is transferred to profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position
comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-term highly
liquid deposits with a maturity of generally within three months
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value and held for the
purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
and short-term deposits as defined above, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity
or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which the
Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or
services to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated
at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(a)  Sales of properties

Revenue from the sale of properties is recognised at the
point in time when the purchasers obtained the physical
possession or the legal title of the completed property and
the Group has present right to payment and the collection
of the consideration is probable.

(b)  Rendering of services

Revenue from the provision of property management
and project management service is recognised over the
scheduled period on a straight-line basis because the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group.

(¢)  Land development

Revenue from land development is recognised at a point
in time, when the customer obtains control of the assets
upon the completion of the related construction work and
the Group has present right to payment and the collection
of the consideration is probable.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income and facilities rental income is recognised on a
time proportion basis over the lease terms.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Contract assets

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to
a customer before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the contract terms, a contract asset is
recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.
Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment, details of
which are included in the accounting policies for impairment of
financial assets. They are reclassified to trade receivables when
the right to the consideration becomes unconditional.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfer the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfer control of the related goods or services to
the customer).

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as properties under
development and property and equipment, costs incurred to
fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all
of the following criteria are met:

(@)  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future.

(©)  The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to
profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which the
asset relates. Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Land development contract

The Group has entered into a land development contract (the
“Land Development Contract”) with the local government of
Nan’an City (the “Nan’an Government”), the PRC, to carry
out the construction and preparation works in respect of land
infrastructure and ancillary public facilities on certain land
parcels in Nan'an City.

Pursuant to the Supplemental Contract (as defined in note 19),
upon completion of the necessary construction and preparation
works of each land parcel, the Nan’an Government will pay the
Group the construction and other related cost plus a margin.
Such amount will be paid by the Nan’an Government upon
the related land parcels to be sold by the Nan’an Government
through public auction.

Revenue from the Land Development Contract is recognised at
a point in time when the Nan’an Government obtains control
of the assets and the Group has present right to payment and
the collection of the consideration is probable and the amount
of revenue can be measured reliably, which occurs upon the
completion of related construction and preparation works as
well as the sales of the relevant land parcel. The timing of sales
of each land parcel by the Nan’an Government is uncertain and
out of the control of the Group.

Costs incurred by the Group in connection with the Land
Development Contract comprise the aggregate costs of
construction, materials and supplies, capitalised borrowing costs
on related borrowing funds during the period of development
and other costs directly attributable to such Land Development
Contract and are classified as “Contract in progress” before the
relevant land parcels are sold.

Contract in progress is stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value takes into account the
Group'’s revenue derived from the construction and preparation
work carry out less costs to completion and the costs to be
incurred in realising the revenue based on prevailing market
conditions.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“Equity-Settled
Transactions”).

The cost of Equity-Settled Transactions with employees for
grants is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an
external valuer using a binomial model, further details of which
are given in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

The cost of Equity-Settled Transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to profit or loss for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end
of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is
assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated
service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions.
Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award
and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are
also service and/or performance conditions.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition
is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme")
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme (the “Pension Scheme”) operated by the local municipal
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentages of their payroll costs to the Pension Scheme.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the Pension
Scheme is to pay the ongoing contributions under the Pension
Scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the Pension
Scheme.

Under the MPF Scheme and the Pension Scheme, the Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed and no contribution may be forfeited and used
by the Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of
contributions.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Group's presentation currency. The functional currency of the
Company is Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") while RMB is used as
the presentation currency of the financial statements of the
Company for the purpose of aligning with the presentation
currency of the Group. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss with the exception of
monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of
the Group’s net investment of a foreign operation. These
are recognised in other comprehensive income until the
net investment is disposed of, at which time the cumulative
amount is reclassified to profit or loss. Tax charges and credits
attributable to exchange differences on these monetary items
are also recorded in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on
which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or
non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates operating outside the PRC are currencies other
than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are translated into RMB at the exchange rates that
approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve, except to the extent that the differences are
attributable to non-controlling interests. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the cumulative amount in the reserve relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of non-PRC entities are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of non-PRC entities which arise
throughout the year are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Classification between investment properties and
properties held for sale

The Group develops properties held for sale and properties
held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. Judgement
is made by management on determining whether a property
is designated as an investment property or a property held for
sale. The Group considers its intention for holding the properties
at the early development stage of the related properties.
During the course of construction, the related properties under
construction are accounted for as properties under development
included in current assets if the properties are intended for sale
after its completion, whereas, the properties are accounted
for as investment properties under construction included in
investment properties if the properties are intended to be held
to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. Upon completion
of the properties, the properties held for sale are transferred
to completed properties held for sale and are stated at cost,
while the properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation are transferred to completed investment properties.
Investment properties, both under construction and completed,
are subject to revaluation at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R MR

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Judgements (Continued)

Valuation of properties under development and
completed properties held for sale

Properties under development and completed properties
held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The cost of each unit in each phase of development is
determined using the weighted average method. The estimated
net realisable value is the estimated selling price less selling
expenses and the estimated cost of completion (if any), which

are estimated based on the best available information.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in
net sales value, the net realisable value will decrease and this
may result in a provision for properties under development
and completed properties held for sale. Such provision requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, the carrying value and
provision for properties in the periods in which such estimate is

changed will be adjusted accordingly.

Allocation of construction cost on properties under
development

When developing properties, the Group typically divides the
development projects into phases. Costs directly related to
the development of a phase are recorded as the cost of such
phase. Costs that are common to each phase are allocated to
each phase based on the saleable floor area of each phase as a
percentage of the total saleable floor area of the entire project.
The cost of the unit sold is determined by the floor area in
square metres sold during the year multiplied by the average
cost per square metre of that particular phase of the project.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Whether the presumption that investment properties
stated at fair value are recovered through sale is rebutted
in determining deferred tax

The Group has investment properties located in the PRC which
are measured at fair value. Investment property is property held
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. In considering
whether the presumption in HKAS 12 Income Taxes that an
investment property measured at fair value will be recovered
through sale is rebutted in determining deferred tax, the Group
has developed certain criteria in making that judgement, such
as whether an investment property is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time or through sale. The presumption is rebutted only in the
circumstance that there is sufficient evidence such as historical
transaction, future development plan and management’s
intention to demonstrate that the investment property is held
with the objective to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits over time, rather than through sale. Continuous
assessments on the presumption will be made by management
at each reporting date.

Consolidation of entities in which the Group holds less
than majority of voting rights

The Group considers that it controls certain entities, even
though it owns less than 50% of the voting rights of these
entities, because the Group is entitled to appoint a majority of
directors in the board of directors and accordingly, the Group is
able to control and direct the financing and operating activities
of these entities.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

an\

BB HmRNEE

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainties

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainties at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties, including completed investment
properties and investment properties under construction, were
revalued at each reporting date during the year based on the
appraised market value provided by independent professional
valuers. Such valuations were based on certain assumptions,
which are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ
from the actual results. In making the estimation, the Group
considers information from current prices in an active market for
similar properties and uses assumptions that are mainly based
on market conditions existing at each reporting date.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., customer type and service type).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainties (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
(Continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s
actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs
on the Group's trade receivables is disclosed in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the businesses of property
development, property investment, property management,
project management and land development. For management
purposes, the property development and property investment
businesses are monitored as one operating segment on a project
basis to allocate resources and assess performance. For financial
reporting purposes, the property management segment,
project management segment and land development segment
are combined with the property development and investment
segment as their reported revenue, results and assets are less
than 10% of the consolidated revenue, consolidated loss and
consolidated assets of the Group.

The Group’s revenue from external customers from each
product or service is set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R MR

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. REDHER
(Continued)
The Group’s revenue from external customers is derived solely AEERBINSEPHREERGER
from its operations in the PRC, and the non-current assets of REEETR  MAKBENEBRE D IER
the Group are substantially located in the PRC. BEEIMRPEH -
During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December BHE_Z_NF+_A=+—HEZ-Z
2023, no revenue from transactions with a single external =+ A=t+—"HIFER ©E
customer was accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s total BB IR PR FE £ E G AR
revenue. EEBIRZEA10% kA £ o
6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6.
An analysis of the Group's revenue is as follows: REENRZEDITAT
2024 2023
—ECoNFE O —F-_=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®BTRE AR®ETT

Revenue from contracts with customers X B & F & B MUK

Sales of properties Y iHE 38,843,471 19,095,549
Property management fees MEEEE 1,201,595 1,164,184
Project management income THE EEBWA 103,727 171,555
Land development income T Hb BB 42,648 -
Subtotal NEE 40,191,441 20,431,288
Revenue from other sources H 3R & R &=
Gross rental income from investment I E Y& HEPTIER R

property operating leases: MW AL

Variable lease payments that do not KHX?RW?E%I‘JZW% &)

dependon anindexorarate A& FHEE 30,969 26,782

Other lease payments, including

&%ﬂ&%ﬁﬁ A E B E MR

fixed payments 547,665 502,898
Subtotal IR 578,634 529,680
Total revenue Wk 4BEm 40,770,075 20,960,968
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2024 —E W&+ —-HA=+—H

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. Wz - A A KE @)
(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFERMN KR
(i) Disaggregated revenue information () WEHIFER
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE—FT-pmFEF+=-_H=+—H
LEFE
Property Project Land
Salesof management management development
properties fees income income Total
NEHE NEEEE HATERA THEZMA o

RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
AR®TR ARRTR ARMTR ARMTR ARWT:R

Timing of revenue recognition: ~ WEBRNEE

Goods transferred ata pointintime ~ EX-KRSEEENER 38,843,471 - - 42,648 38,886,119
Services transferred over time R R RN R - 120159 103,727 - 1305322
Total Bg 38,843,471 1,201,595 103,727 42,648 40,191,441
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE—_F-_=F+=-H=4+—H
LEFE

Property Project

Salesof  management management
properties fees income Total
MEHRE YEEEZ BEEEKA Bt

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTRE ARBTT ARETR AREBTL

Timing of revenue recognition: N BRI -

Goods transferred at a pointin time £ £ — BB EENE R 19,095,549 - - 19,095,549
Services transferred over time BEREZNRE - 1,164,184 171,555 1,335,739
Total k] 19,095,549 1,164,184 171,555 20,431,288
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R MR

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(i) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)

W~ WA KR Mas )

/

REEFERMKE#)

() WEDHFER(E)

2024 2023
—T_NFE —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREF T
Revenue recognised that was FABREHBYESRAEEN
included in contract liabilities 2Rk :
at the beginning of the
reporting period:
Sales of properties VI E 38,386,160 21,700,353

(ii) Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is

summarised below:
Sales of properties

The performance obligation is satisfied when the physical
possession or the legal title of the completed property is
obtained by the purchaser.

Property management fees and project management
income

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and short-term advances are normally
required before rendering the services. Management
service contracts are for periods of one year or less, and
are billed based on the time incurred.

Land development income

The performance obligation is satisfied when the land
development is completed.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI

IJF

31 December 2024 —Z—UE+— A=+—H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. Wz Hlh A RKRes @)
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEFERMKE &)
(Continued)

(i) Performance obligations (Continued) (i) BHEEE)

The amount of unsatisfied performance obligation

principally comprises the balance of contract liabilities,

which are expected to be recognised in one to three years
as of 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023.

HE-_Z_MOMF+-_A=+—H
R=ZFE-_=F+=ZA=+—H ®©
RARETHRBEAOETSETERE
cRBEHA  EARKR—
FRER -

2024 2023
—E-EF B =
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 ARBTRT AREBTET
Other income and gains H g A R 2

Bank interest income ER1TH BUL A 29,998 98,096
Consultancy service income JBR B AR 755 A 27,078 28,727
Forfeiture income on deposits received 2 3% & HYUR A 22,911 25,993

Gain on disposal of items of HEY R REEB W TR
property and equipment, net 1,008 1,471
Gain on disposal of joint ventures, net & & & A & H U F58 71,402 =
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net  H &K E R 78Uk s F 58 39 = 169,817
Foreign exchange differences, net PE W = E)FE 65,158 62,589
Gain on repurchase of senior notes B EEEBENKE - 131,496
Government grants BT B 21,628 33,672
Others HAh 47,647 108,957
Total other income and gains E A R ke 4258 286,830 660,818
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HmR M

31 December 2024 —E - ¥+ —-_HA=+—H

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. MFER
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MBERSTET
2024 2023
—EWE ZE-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT
Interest on bank and other borrowings, RITREMER  BLEEEK
senior notes and domestic bonds RANEHFE 2,800,896 2,703,922
Interest on lease liabilities (note 16(b)) HEBBENFE (Hix16(b)) 959 1,490
Increase in a discounted amount of B 80 7 34 T 2 A O K S B 4
provision for major overhauls arising IR EILEE (F7E33)
from the passage of time (note 33) 4,420 3,950
Total interest expense on financial liabilities JEE AR EFF ABZHEREERN
not at fair value through profit or loss N B 4EEE 2,806,275 2,709,362
Less: Interest capitalised B BRI T E (912,648) (1,217,019)
Total FEEy 1,893,627 1,492,343
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
nﬂ‘ :ﬁi%#&gﬁﬁﬁﬁzz

31 December 2024 —Z—UE+— A=+—H

LOSS BEFORE TAX 8. KRTiRIEE

AEROKRBABREE NG GEA)T

The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting): P EIR -
2024 2023
—E-EF —E-=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5E ARBTRT ARBTT
Cost of properties sold EEWEKAR 33,412,335 17,475,980
Cost of services provided B ARTE A AR 1,122,036 853,829
Depreciation of property and MERZEITE
equipment 14 52,726 80,427
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEEEMNTE 14, 16(b) 7,493 22,145
Amortisation of an intangible asset*  #Ef& & # §4 * 17 167 167
Provision for major overhauls INEEEL 33 6,809 6,515
Lease payments not included inthe ~ Rirt AHEBEFTEM

F==3 a:;,

measurement of lease liabilities HEEHE 16(b) 902 8,121
Direct operating expenses (including ~E4A % E’U?xﬁ%%ﬁﬁ

repairs and maintenance) arising EENEERLERY

from rental-generating investment (BRREH#ERRE)

properties 17 78
Auditor's remuneration ZEETEN & 4,700 7,250

Employee benefit expenses (including EE®EMHESZ (BIEES

directors’ remuneration (note 9)): B < (FsE9)) :

Salaries and other staff costs Iﬁ&ﬁ@%lﬁzﬁ 556,217 837,385
Pension scheme contributions** RIREBFTEIHEFR ** 103,845 106,104
Less: Amount capitalised B BER e (129,656) (217,611)
Total @t 530,406 725,878
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

8. LOSS BEFORE TAX (Continued) 8. BRTAIEE @
2024 2023
—E_NE —E-=%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Fff 5 ARBTRT AREBTET
Foreign exchange differences, net fEH =R F5 (65,158) (62,589)
Fair value loss on financial assets BARBEFE BEEEHTA
at fair value through profit or BaleREENARE
loss, net EE 5 36,965 45,774
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, HEKEB A A MRS
net R R 39 - (169,817)
Loss on disposal of investment HEREMENEE
properties, net FEE 26,253 87,356
Impairment losses of trade B 5 W GRIE R EE R FE
receivables, net 23 43,198 2,948
Impairment losses recognised on RE &N R KB E R E )
investments in joint ventures HE BB R ***
and associates*** 695,043 172,392
Impairment losses recognised on JE Wi [ Bk 75 RR IR Y
due from related parties*** B E 18 +** 773,845 705,307
Fair value loss on reassessment BN ERNGEARIMNIRE
at investments in joint ventures Z AN EEE = 61,356
Loss on disposal of associates HERE QR A EE = 29,107
Loss/(gain) on disposal of joint PESERARINER (W
ventures, net R (71,402) 93,273
& The amortisation of an intangible asset for the year was included in o FRNERMEERHET AGEERREAM

“Cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income.

*x There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group
as the employer to reduce the existing level of contributions.

***  This item was included in “Other expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS” REMUNERATION

<)

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong

BRI

n'/'ﬁ

31 December 2024 —E W&+ —-HA=+—H
S5

FRN-BELETRA - BERRKEHE
383(1)@) * (b) QR OERAT FHE

Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure EENRERROIZE MO RENE
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as EMemT
follows:
2024 2023
—EmEF —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETFTT
Fees e 924 906
Other emoluments: HEa < -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMMREYAE 7,160 7,169
Pension scheme contributions RAREFIFT B 5K 228 239
Subtotal NEF 7,388 7,408
Total fee and other emoluments we M EH b5 2% 8,312 8,314
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR

31 December 2024 —E - ¥+ —-_HA=+—H

9. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) Independent non-executive directors

9. EEM

\

T (&)

(a) BYFHTES

Salaries, Discretionary
allowances  performance Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expense contributions Total
B BER FERE REES BIER
ik BN RETAL BREFRX TR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREBTR ARMTR AR%Trn AR®TR ARETR
2024 —omE
Independent non-executive BIFHTEE :
directors:
Mr. Ting Leung TRERE
Huel Stephen 308 - - - - 308
Mr. Dai Yiyi AN—%4E 308 - - - - 308
Mr. Mao Zhenhua ERERE 308 - - - - 308
Total it 924 = > > . 924
Salaries,  Discretionary
allowances  performance  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expense  contributions Tota
Hé 2R E3El it RIRTEH
ik ENfla RERL  BREFX st 2B @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE  ARBTT ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR
2023 It St
Independent non-executive B FFH{TES :
directors:
Mr. Ting Leung TRE%SE
Huel Stephen 302 - - - - 302
Mr. Lu Hong Te* mBEEE 124 = - - = 124
Mr. Dai Yiyi 1) 302 = - - = 302
Mr. Mao Zhenhua** ERERE 178 - - - - 178
Total st 906 - - - - 906
& Mr. Lu Hong Te has resigned as an independent non-executive @ EREEEEBREARARAIBIYIE

director of the Company with effect from 30 May 2023.

*x Mr. Mao Zhenhua was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 30 May

2023.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2024 —Z—UE+— A=+—H

9. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 9. EEMET @
(b) Executive directors (b) HITEE
Salaries, Discretionary
allowances  performance Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expense  contributions Total
e 2R E3 Ll RELE RIRBET
e BNH & METL BRERX FHE @5t

RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR  AR®TR AR®TR ARMTR ARMTR  ARETR

2024 —E-omE
Executive directors: BES:
Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung =3l 7% 4
("Mr. Wong") ([EEE]) - 1,363 - - 16 1,379
Mr. Chen Yuanlai***  BRTTIRSE A **+ - 1,108 - - 16 1,124
Mr. Cheng Hiu Lok Bdsr i - 1,108 - - 16 1,124
Mr.Huang Youquan SR A - 1,824 - - 169 1,993
Mr. Wong Lun* AREL - 1,229 - - 11 1,240
Ms. Zhang Haitao**  RIEEL L ** - 528 - - - 528
Total @t - 7,160 - - 228 7,388
Salaries,  Discretionary
allowances  performance  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees inkind _bonuses expense contributions Total
\ e RER ES Vil RIEHE RINER .
ilka BNl BMERL BRERI S Bzt
RMBOOO  RVBO00  RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBT:
2023 —BC=
Executive directors: WIES:
Mr. Wong Chiu Yeung =314
("Mr. Wong") ([&xE]) - 1339 - - 16 1,355
Mr. Chen Yuanlai RTALE - 1,089 - - 16 1,105
Mr. Cheng Hiu Lok Hrart = 1,089 = - 16 1,105
Mr. Huang Youquan  E{RELAE = 1816 = = 175 1,991
Mr. Wong Lun ElRLE - 1,836 - - 16 1,852
Total H = 7,169 - - 239 7,408
* Mr. Wong Lun has resigned as an executive director of the @ EREEEREARRNTES
Company with effect from 29 August 2024. %@:%:Eiﬂﬁ:+ﬂﬁﬁ
%
**  Ms. Zhang Haitao was appointed as an executive director of > REBBZITEEEZEARERRDA
the Company with effect from 29 August 2024. MITEEFEITR _T_WFNA
ZtHNABRER
**%  Mr. Chen Yuanlai has resigned as an executive director of the ko ROTRGEEBBERDRMITE
Company with effect from 24 January 2025. SYHN_FT_AF-A=+WA
REAER
No emoluments were paid by the Group as an REZ - REBREA AT E (7 B
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or to any SESIMAREE S MARE R
of the directors as compensation for loss of office during BHERE MR A XN EANNE
the year (2023: Nil). EREMNEENHEBRAEE (ZF
T=FE)
There was no arrangement under which a director waived FR - MEESRENR B ME
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year ERNENTEE(ZE==F &) -

(2023: Nil).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R MR

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included one
(2023: one) director, details of whose remuneration are set out
in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining
four (2023: four) non-director, highest paid employees for the
year are as follows:

= o
VN

FR AfNEREFALTF R (ZF
T=F R)RARAEF 2HF
BN EXE - B TR (ZF
= NR)FEEERSTHERN
B

2024 2023

—T_NFE —T-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R ARBEF T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e REREDH=R 6,426 5,938
Discretionary performance related bonuses 245 A B8 B9 5 1L 4L 880 2,546
Pension scheme contributions RIREFET B 5R 521 613
Total Bt 7,827 9,097

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:

e BRIA T HEEHIEES RIFTRAR
HERFEEMNBBIIIMT

Number of employees

EE®A
2024 2023
—E_ME —E—=
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7 7t &= 2,500,000 78 7T 4 3
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7% 7t 2 3,000,000 78 7T =
No emoluments were paid to the five highest paid individuals REESBERAZ RS HMALTZAE

as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the year (2023: Nil).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. INCOME TAX

Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland China have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the cities in which
the Group's subsidiaries operate. No provision for Hong Kong

e BRI

31 December 2024 —Z—UE+— A=+—H
1. TR

B A R B R B s M O B IR iR AN R
MEBARKEMERTHTEREHE - i
RAKRBRFALBETSELEME

profits tax has been made as the Group did not generate any b A B AR E B NGB E LB
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year (2023: HBZEZ=F: &) -
Nil).
2024 2023
—E_ME —E-=4F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTRT AREKTE
Current charge for the year: FRENEARY :
PRC corporate income tax (“CIT") Bl EE PTG ([ SR 899,301 633,137
PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT") AR+ IR ([ LI (E R ) 534,762 90,588
Under-provision in prior years, net: BEFERETRFE
Mainland China A 217,080 136,626
1,651,143 860,351
Deferred tax credited for the year (note 32) A&t AEIEFRIE (Ff5E32) (713,291) (670,847)
Total tax charge for the year FABIBER 25 937,852 189,504
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R MR

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

1. INCOME TAX (Continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory/applicable rates for the jurisdictions in which

1. FTS8 #)

RIBARE REKED M B 7
&/i?&%‘ﬁﬁ&ﬂii%lﬁﬂ@ﬁim/k%

the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled
and/or operate to the income tax expense at the effective

T4 2R 5t SRR 0 AL e V) 8 AR A 75 TR A S £
REBEERVRFEORIRFRSERET :

income tax rate is as follows:

2024 2023
ZED@E T =F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTT
Loss before tax R F5 A ES 18 (6,996,620) (8,211,620)
At the statutory/applicable rates of BRARBNERREREE, A
different jurisdictions METHE (1,749,155) (2,052,905)
Lower tax rates for specific cities I TE T RO B =R (78,502) (58,645)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of BB A BRI B PR SA
previous periods 217,080 136,626
Profits and losses attributable to BE N R E R R G R A R
joint ventures and associates E518 (86,733) (21,286)
Income not subject to tax BARB A A (105,209) (75,328)
Expenses not deductible for tax AT H03 B B 32 1,464,515 1,504,380
Tax effect on unrealised profits arising HEERANARM B’JEZ%EZ )
from transactions within the Group REIR G PTG 5 2 (59,655) (183,898)
LAT TR (E R 534,762 90,588
Tax effect of LAT deductible for PRC CIT ~ AI7EHP Bl EFT/S BLH0IR L i
BEMNHETZE (133,690) (22,647)
Tax loss not recognised RERH T IEEE 934,439 870,134
Effect of withholding tax at 10% RASBE R E 2B A A
on the distributable profits of A RAETENET10%
the Group’s PRC subsidiaries 2B - 2,485
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate BRASBEERBEFER
i IA R ST 937,852 189,504

The share of tax charge for the year ended 31 December 2024

HE_Z

“mE+ A=+ —RIETE

=

attributable to joint ventures amounted to approximately
RMB238,731,000 (2023: tax credit of RMB24,429,000).
The share of tax charge for the year ended 31 December
2024 attributable to associates amounted to approximately
RMB4,264,000 (2023: tax charge of RMB10,143,000). Both are
included in “Share of profits and losses of joint ventures and
associates” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
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12.

13.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIVIDENDS

The board of directors of the Company has resolved not to
declare any final dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2024 (2023: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is based
on the loss for the year attributable to owners of the parent,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
4,222,986,126 (2023: 4,222,986,126) in issue (excluding
treasury shares) during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share
amount presented for the year ended 31 December 2024 and
for the year ended 31 December 2023 in respect of a dilution as
the impact of share options outstanding had no dilutive effect
on the basic loss per share amount presented.

12.

13. &

e BRI

31 December 2024 —E W&+ —-HA=+—H
I% B
AAMEFEARTERBE=F =M
F+ A=+ —HLEFENTAKRER
B(ZEZ=F 1) -

a) &
JﬂEHﬁJ’éﬂ%

BREABBCENEFATILGHESE
ABLEBBERFREBITE R Z MNiE
T F4,222,986,126 B% (EEIFREADERSN)
£ 1 4,222,986,126 %) 51 & -

(====

BE_ZT_WNFT-_A=1+—HLHFE
&_?__i-i— A=+t—BHLHFE"
AT Z AR AT 25 M B RER
FERYEBEEZE RYEHRAZTW
BRENEBETEMARAE -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IR R AR EE

nJI§

31 December 2024 —ZE— U+ —-F=+—H

14. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

14. Y% N &K

Property and equipment Right-of-use assets
NERRE FRERE
Furniture,
fixtures and
Land Leasehold office Transportation Leasehold Office
and building improvements  equipments  equipment Subtotal land buildings Subtotal Total
B
HE RER
THREF NEEE  BAERE ERIR it A 3 At Eh)
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARMTR ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  AR%TR
At 1 January 2024 RZB=ME-F-R:
Cost A 347,702 99,556 322,802 48,588 818,648 250459 47933 498,392 1,317,040
Accumulated depreciation 2iHE (54,781) (95,023) (142,382) (46,082) (338,268) (27,550) (225,965) (253,515) (591,783)
Net carrying value REFHE 292,921 4533 180,420 2,506 480,380 222,909 21,968 24811 725,257
At 1 January 2024, R-E-mE-A-A
net of accumulated depreciation NE2:TE 29291 4533 180,420 2,506 480,380 22,909 21,968 24877 725,57
Additions hE 9,351 28,040 4,69 740 42,825 - 578 578 43,403
Depreciation & (12,192) (10,304) (27,890) (2,340) (52,726) (5,009) (2,484) (7,493) (60,219)
Disposals i (57) (19 (1,170) (100) (1,346) - - - (1,346)
At 31 December 2024, RZB-RET=A=1-A
net of accumulated depreciation NREHHE 290,023 2,250 156,054 806 469,133 217,900 20,062 231,962 707,095
At31 December 2024: R-B-META=+-R:
Cost A 356,965 127,392 323,091 49113 856,561 250459 248,511 498,970 1,355,531
Accumulated depreciation 2iHHE (66,942) (105,142) (167,037) (48,307) (387,428) (32,559) (228,449) (261,008) (648,436)
Net carrying value RHFE 290,023 22,250 156,054 806 469,133 217,900 20,062 237,962 707,095
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

e BRI

31 December 2024 —E W&+ —-HA=+—H

14. W% N & #)

Property and equipment Right-of-use assets
EYEL fEREEE
Furniture,
fixtures and
Land Leasehold office Transportation Leasehold Office
and buiding ~ improvements ~ equipments equipment Subtotal fand buildings Subtotal Total
il
HE KER
THEET Mg BRERB EHIR It HELH BT It &
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTR  ARETT ARETR  ARETT  ARBTR  ARETrT  ARETR  ARETR
At 1 January 2023: RZB-=§-A-R:
Cost A 352,833 103,062 277,332 103,519 836,746 250,459 246,652 497,111 1,333857
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (44,081) (52,932) (131,090) (98,642) (326,745) (22,541) (208,829) (231370) (558,115)
Net carying value FAFE 308,752 50,130 146,242 4817 510,001 221918 31833 265,741 715,742
At 1 January 2023, RZEZZE-A-8
net of accumulated depreciation TREHTE 308,752 50,130 146,242 4817 510,001 227918 31833 265,741 715,742
Additions WE 2,417 5,484 45,688 13 72,602 - 1,281 1,281 73,883
Acaquisition of a subsidiary (Note 38) W& —FEMB A (KisE38) = = 17 = 17 = = = 17
Depreciation it (20,115) (47,100) (11,470) (1,742) (80,427) (5,009) (17,136) (22,145) (102,572)
Disposals -3 (17133 (3981) (57) (642) (21813 - - - 21813
At 31 December 2023, RZE-=%+-fA=1-H
net of accumulated depreciation TRETE 292,91 4533 180,420 2,506 480,380 22,909 21,968 244877 725,257
At31 December 2023: RIBZ=F+A=+-8:
Cost S 347,102 99,556 322,802 48,588 818,648 250,459 247,933 498,392 1,317,040
Accumulated depreciation ZitHE (54,781) (95,023) (142,382) 46,082) (338,268) (27,550) (225,965) (253,515) (591,783)
Net carrying value REFE 292,921 4533 180,420 2,506 430,380 222,909 21,968 204,877 725,257

At 31 December 2024, certain of the Group’s leasehold
land and buildings with an aggregate carrying amount of
RMB469,188,000 (2023: RMB483,629,000) were pledged to
banks to secure certain bank and other borrowings granted to
the Group (note 42).

The Group has lease contracts of land and buildings used in its
operations. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire
the leased land from the PRC Government with lease periods
of 40 to 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be made
under the terms of these land leases. Leases of office buildings
generally have lease terms between two and 20 years.

RZZE_MF+=ZA=+—0 &EH
FREIEA £ A AR 469,188,000 T (=
T — =4 : AR#¥483,629,00070) HF&
FHELHREFERT TRITURG
BYAEEMNE TRITREMME K (M

F42) o

AEERERANEEN T REFHE
AR BEBEZZF I HBEKRR - AR
BAKEEE 1 (FAEB40E504F)
AIEEH — KRR WEIEEETHD
R MAERE—RBPR2E20F -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. IE W5
Under
Completed construction Total
BEK w2 @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT

Carrying amount at 1 January 2023 R-_ZE-_=F—H—H

REFE 24,128,242 15,088,000 39,216,242

Additions NE 234,496 1,377,727 1,612,223
Disposals HE (351,321) - (351,321)
Transfer L= 2,137,777 (2,137,777) -
Transfer to completed properties ERERENED RN ME

held for sale (2,097,100) - (2,097,100)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) HERTB A ) (FT5E39) (745,860) = (745,860)
Net loss from a AAEARERTE

fair value adjustment (3,489,934) (264,150) (3,754,084)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2023 R=ZE==F+=-H=+—H

and 1 January 2024 RZZZmE—-A—HE@A

FE 19,816,300 14,063,800 33,880,100

Additions NE 4,704 773,334 778,038
Disposals & (32,912) - (32,912)
Transfer =3 3,430,000 (3,430,000) -
Transfer to properties under BEHEREREPYE

development - (2,301,420) (2,301,420)
Transfer to completed properties ERERHENED RN ME

held for sale (473,000) - (473,000)
Net loss from a AR EARERTE

fair value adjustment (3,976,007) (1,075,699) (5,051,706)

Carrying amount at 31 December 2024 R-ZT=MF+=-H=+—H
REFE 18,769,085 8,030,015 26,799,100
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

All of the Group's investment properties are situated in
Mainland China.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on
31 December 2024 based on valuations performed by
Shenzhen Deginhang Asset Appraisal Co., Ltd., independent
professionally qualified valuer, at RMB26,799,100,000 (2023:
RMB33,880,100,000).

At 31 December 2024, the Group's investment properties with
an aggregate carrying amount of RMB17,329,400,000 (2023:
RMB18,597,900,000) were pledged to secure certain bank and
other borrowings and domestic bonds granted to the Group
(note 42).

The Group's completed investment properties are leased to third
parties and companies controlled by Mr. Wong and his family
members (together with Mr. Wong, the “Wong Family”) under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included
in note 16.

e IR R AR Y R

31 December 2024 —Z—UE+— A=+—H

15. IRE W Z )

RERE PR A MR B MRS Bk -

REBOREMERBBEIEXEER
fﬁﬁﬁm&%ﬂll*ﬁiébﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁBﬁﬁﬂ
RZZE-_NMFE+—A=+—HEHEE
&AEM26,799,100,0007@(;;;5
F: AR#33,880,100,0007T) °

RZZEZNFE+=—A=+—H ' ' &x5H
EEE@:.A/\EMWQMOOOOOE(—

T — =% : AR¥18,597,900,000 L)
WIREWMEDET  UERERTAER
WETRITREMEREIREAES (M
5£42) °

AEENEERREMEARBEEH
WHETF= AN RBEREREREXE (&
REEERHEEKK]) FAEHZ A7
E—THBERMEHNHE16 -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

liﬁ

BRI

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December
2023, the fair value measurements of all investment properties
of the Group were categorised within Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy and details of their movements are disclosed above.

In the opinion of the directors, for all investment properties that
are measured at fair value, the properties have been used in
their highest and best use.

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement of the
Group's investment properties:

15. IRE W Z )

DIREER

HE—_Z2-_NWFE+_-_A=+—HEK=-Z
=+ A=+—HIEEE *t5£H
FEREDENAABIFESEEAR

EFME=GF  MEZBFER L H
o

EXZRR MANRREFENKREY
¥ BRWEANERSRREER -

RTRBIFARBEREMEN R E

e

Fair value measurement
using significant
unobservable inputs

(Level 3)
RAEX
FAEERABEN
AREFTE
(BE=4%)
2024 2023
SECNE O —F-=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTRT ARETET
Recurring fair value measurement for: T SENEEEQLBETE
Office and commercial properties N YSESELYES 24,087,602 30,956,460
Car parking spaces (S 2,711,498 2,923,640
Total K 26,799,100 33,880,100

During the year, there were no transfer of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfer into
or out of Level 3 (2023: Nil).
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15.

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the

key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

Valuation techniques

fli5H%

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

31 December 2024 —Z—UE+— A=+—H

KEYE &)
NREEBHKE)

AT REEDEAFEBMEETERGE
TEHABEBEHE

Range
Significant unobservable EE
inputs 2024 2023
EXTABREBAZE —E-mE “Eo=fF

Office and
commercial
properties

WMRER

Car parking spaces

FES

Income capitalisation
approach and market
comparison approach
(refer to below)

Wik K % L BUE
(T30

Income capitalisation
method and market
comparison approach
(refer to below)

etk kG 8ok
(RTx)

Estimated rental value per
square metre and
per month (RMB)

22-660

BYHRREBAGHESEE

(ARET)
Capitalisation rate

BARE®

Price per square metre (RMB)

BF T AER(ARET)

Estimated rental value per
car parking space and

4.8%-6.0% 4.6%-6.1%

8,500- 7,800-
28,000 37,500
400-2,200 250-1,500

4.3%-6.0% 3.5%-4.0%

per month (RMB)
BEFELRFAMGAEESER
(AR¥TT)
Capitalisation rate
B (X

Price per car parking space (RMB)
BEFELER (ARET)

65,000-
250,000

18,000~
170,000
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

an\

BB HmRNEE

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The valuations of completed investment properties and
investment properties under construction were based on either
the income capitalisation approach by capitalisation of net rental
income derived from the existing tenancies with allowance for
the reversionary rental income potential of the properties or
the market comparison approach by reference to comparable
market transactions.

Significant increases (decreases) in estimated rental value per
square metre or per car parking space or price per square
metre in isolation would result in a significantly higher (lower)
fair value of the investment properties. Significant increases
(decreases) in the capitalisation rate in isolation would result
in a significantly lower (higher) fair value of the investment
properties.

Generally, a change in the assumption made for the estimated
rental value per square metre and the price per square
metre is accompanied by a directionally similar change in the
development profit and an opposite change in the capitalisation
rate.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

31 December 2024 —Z—UE+— A=+—H

16. LEASES 16. HE
The Group as a lessee rEEEREBEA
The Group has lease contracts for properties used in operations. rEERERANEENMERESR

Leases of properties generally have lease terms between two
and five years.

(a) Lease liabilities (a)

The carrying amount of lease liabilities (included under
other payables and accruals) and the movements during

MEHE-—RERF2ESF -

HESE

ﬁ%aJr;%?ﬁHIETE’JTHfE\E\ﬁ) B BR

the year are as follows: BERFAZEBMOT
2024 2023
ZEDmE T =F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AREBTT
Carrying amount as at 1 January R—A—BWEEE 14,727 26,750
New leases FHE 578 1,281
Accretion of interest recognised FABRBHON EEE
during the year 959 1,490
Payments E- (9,194) (14,794)
Carrying amount as at 31 December R+=—A=+—HH
(note 29) FRmEE (F5E29) 7,070 14,727
Analysed into: DT
Current portion mENE D 3,977 8,346
Non-current portion ERBNEL D 3,093 6,381
Total B 7,070 14,727
2024 2023
ZEBEDmE T =F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AREBTT
Analysed into: DT :
Within one year —F R 3,977 8,346
In the second year F-F 3,093 2,147
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E=FRF
(BREERMT) - 4,234
Total =t 7,070 14,727

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note

47 to the consolidated financial statements.

HEREBEMNZIMA
BYBWKRMEEALT -

DR AR
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R MR

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

16. LEASES (Continued)

16. HE ®)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

REBEREBEA &)

(b) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to (b) REZEREBEFBEMNSEN
leases are as follows: ™
2024 2023
SED@E T =F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ihg=3 AREBTT ARETT
Interest on lease liabilities HEAERE 7 959 1,490
Depreciation charge of FRAEEENERX
right-of-use assets 8 7,493 22,145
Expense relating to short-term HEHMEERENFAX
leases (included in administrative (5t ATTE R SX)
expenses) 8 902 8,121
Total amount recognised in RESERNE S
profit or loss 9,354 31,756
(c) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 40(c) (0 HEMBEARLLHHNGEEY

to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) consisting

of various office properties, commercial properties and car

parking spaces in Mainland China under operating lease

arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the

tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent

adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions.

Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was
RMB578,634,000 (2023: RMB529,680,000), details of which
are included in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. LEASES (Continued)

17.

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the undiscounted lease

payments receivable by the Group in future periods under non-

cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

e SRR MR

31 December 2024 —E W&+ —-HA=+—H
16. HE (@)
AEBEAEHBA B

R|BEHR - AEERARKHRBRES
Al H AR 2 T A Y R AT 3R R MR B A R

BRI :

2024 2023
—E-ME =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREF T
Within one year —F R 168,125 167,179
INTANGIBLE ASSET 17. ML & E
Operating concession BHRER
2024 2023
—E-UE —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
Cost at 1 January, R—A—BZHA -

net of accumulated amortisation bR 2T R 2,486 2,653
Amortisation provided during the year FATEREEE (M)

(note 8) (167) (167)
At 31 December R+=—B=+—H 2,319 2,486
At 31 December; R+t-_A=+—8:

Cost DN 4,861 4,861

Accumulated amortisation RFrEEH (2,542) (2,375)

Net carrying amount REFE 2,319 2,486
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R a BRI

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

17. INTANGIBLE ASSET (Continued) 17. BIE B E (8)

Operating concession (Continued)

On 28 March 2006, Quanzhou Straits Sports Centre Co., Ltd.
(“Straits Sports Centre”), a subsidiary of the Group, entered
into an operating right concession agreement (the “Operating
Right Agreement”) with the Quanzhou Sports Bureau (the
“Sports Bureau”), a local government body in Quanzhou, the
PRC, at a cash consideration of RMB5,000,000. Pursuant to the
Operating Right Agreement, Straits Sports Centre is granted
with an operating concession (the “Operating Concession”)
to operate and manage certain sports and recreation facilities
(the “Facilities”) in Quanzhou for a period of 30 years (the
“QOperating Period”).

This service concession arrangement involves the Group as
operator (i) paying a specified amount as consideration to
obtain the Operating Concession of the Facilities; (ii) operating
and maintaining the Facilities at a specified level of serviceability
on behalf of the Sports Bureau for the Operating Period; and
(iii) receiving a right to charge users using the Facilities. The
Group is entitled to operate and manage the Facilities, and is
entitled to all the income associated with the operation of the
Facilities. However, the relevant government bodies as grantors
will control and regulate the scope of services provided and
the prices charged by the Group during the Operating Period,
retain ownership, and be entitled to any residual interest in the
Facilities at the end of the Operating Period.

The cost of the Operating Concession is being amortised over
the Operating Period.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

e BRI

31 December 2024 —Z—UE+— A=+—H

18. BEF Y

2024 2023
—ECNE —T-o=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T ARET T
Properties under development expected TEHA I 7 R 51 BARR T4 Ak /Y B & R
to be completed: LE
Within normal operating cycle included FEIEEEERBANIIERE
under current assets BE 58,834,211 83,747,682
Beyond normal operating cycle included B3 IE % &8 B 2912 51| {E
under non-current assets EMBEE 5,843,494 8,625,734
Total #Et 64,677,705 92,373,416
Properties under development expected TEHIK R EF & ER A AERK
to be completed within normal operating 2k I ZEE R % -
cycle and recovered:
Within one year —F R 5,942,598 41,009,599
After one year —F1& 52,891,613 42,738,083
Total #Et 58,834,211 83,747,682

At 31 December 2024, certain of the Group’s properties under
development, including the relevant land use rights, with an
aggregate carrying amount of RMB44,598,089,000 (2023:
RMB42,754,679,000), were pledged to secure certain bank and
other borrowings granted to the Group (note 42).

Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leased
land from the PRC Government with lease periods of 40 to 70
years, and no ongoing payments will be made under the terms
of these land leases.

RZZEZNFE+=—A=+—0 ' ' &A5E
KR EE S £ A R % 44,598,089,000 7T
(ZZF==%: AR¥42,754,679,000 7T.)
WETERPWE (RIERE L HER
B)EER UERERTAEENET
RITREMER (FFeE42) °

BRIFEZE T A E R - R BT
BHELH (HEA40ZE70F) AIE 1E
H— R R FR - WEEEEITHNER
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an\

BB HmRNEE

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

19.

CONTRACT IN PROGRESS

19. T2 IT1EER

2024 2023

—E-NE T =fF

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

g AR T ARBEF T

At 1 January Rn—H—H 153,627 129,132
Additions 1 n - 158,605
Charged to profit or loss MEFAER (42,648) =
Disposal of subsidiaries o E KT E AR 39 = (134,110)
At 31 December ®R+=—A=+—8H 110,979 153,627

On 18 August 2009, the Group entered into the Land
Development Contract with the Nan‘an Government to carry
out the construction and preparation works in respect of land
infrastructure and ancillary public facilities over certain land
parcels in Nan’an City. Pursuant to the Land Development
Contract, although the Group does not have the ownership title
or land use right to such land parcels, when the land parcels
are sold by the Nan‘an Government through public auction, the
Group is entitled to the sales proceeds arising from such land
sales.

Contract in progress represents costs incurred by the Group in
connection with the construction and preparation work of the
relevant land parcels under the Land Development Contract and
comprises relocation and demolition work, costs of construction,
materials and supplies, capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of development and other
costs directly attributable to the Land Development Contract.

On 22 February 2016, the Group entered into a supplemental
Land Development Contract (the “Supplemental Contract”)
with the Nan’an Government, pursuant to which certain terms
and conditions of the Land Development Contract were revised.
In accordance with the Supplemental Contract, the Group
continues to carry out the construction and preparation work in
respect of land infrastructure and ancillary public facilities over
certain land parcels in Nan’an City. The Nan‘an Government
will pay the Group the construction and other related costs plus
a margin. Such amount will be determined and paid by the
Nan’an Government upon the related land parcels to be sold by
the Nan’an Government through public auction.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2024 —E W&+ —-HA=+—H

20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. REZEANTIRIIRE
2024 2023
—E_ME —_E-=
RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®BTRE AR®BTE

Share of net assets (note) e & EFRE (M) 2,077,866 3,130,882
Due to joint ventures Bt & &R RIFKIE = (11,913)
Total HEt 2,077,866 3,118,969
Note: Mz -

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of share of net assets is R-ZZE-—NE+-—A=+—H BLHEELH
approximately RMB2,077,866,000 (2023: RMB3,130,882,000), net of HEREELN A AR 2,077,866,000C (ZFE ==
accumulated impairment loss of approximately RMB755,663,000 (2023: £ AR#3,130,882,0007T) © F1k R 3R (E B
RMB130,806,000). BH AR B T755,663,000TT (ZT==4 : AR¥

130,806,000 7T) ©

Due to joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free and repayable ERNEE AR RERERR 28 K%
on demand. TREE -
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e R MR

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

4N R E

(&)

Particulars of the Group’s material joint ventures are as follows: AEEEARALEARIMFRBLOT -
Percentage
Place of of beneficial
Particulars of incorporation/ interest
issued and registration attributable  Principal
Name paid-up capital and business to the Group  activities
BRTR M, AEBERL

£ BREAHEE MR EELS THAML FEER

Sure Source International Limited US$118,018,100 BVI 45 Investment
("Sure Source") holding

IERERER AR 118,018,100 % 7T REBRLES 45 REZK
(TMEHR])

Hangzhou Juli Enterprise RMB100,000,000 PRC/Mainland China 32 Investment
Management Co., Ltd.** holding
("Hangzhou Juli”)

MMEBLEERARAR AR 100,000,000 7T hE/hEARE 2 REERRK
(TMEED

Hangzhou Junxing Property Co., Ltd.** RMB9,900,000 PRC/Mainland China 31 Property
("Hangzhou Junxing”) development

MMBEREXERAT AR 9,900,007 hE/hEAR 31 MERE
(MM Bk )

* Registered as limited liability companies under the PRC law 3 BREPEEEEIMAEREEAF

# The English names of these companies in the PRC represent the 3 ZEPRERAMNENEEEHARAE

best effort made by the management of the Company to directly
translate their Chinese names as no official English names have been

registered.

The above investments are held indirectly by subsidiaries of the

Company.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Notes:

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information in
respect of Hangzhou Juli and its subsidiary (collectively, “Hangzhou Juli
Group”), Sure Source and its subsidiaries (collectively, “Sure Source Group”)
and Hangzhou Junxing, adjusted for any differences in accounting policies
and reconciled to the carrying amount in the financial statements:

(a) Summarised financial information in respect of Hangzhou Juli Group,

e BRI

31 December 2024 —E W&+ —-HA=+—H

20. REZERNTIHEKRE (&)

GEX

TRITEERBERAAREEERSELQAH
MMBERENBLR (REMEESEE]D) -
TR e LB B 2 R) (e 788 [ NIRIR = B 1) B Amu o Bk
NS ER B ST B G BR ENER=E
F N B IR R P O RRE E SR

(@ AERTIMNBEEE - IRIRS® M

Sure Source Group and Hangzhou Junxing 5 B () B 75 R ARE At
2024
—EC-QNE
Hangzhou Sure
Juli Source Hangzhou
Group Group Junxing
MNBREEE JIE TR 55 LN Bk B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR TR ARBT T
Cash and cash equivalents e kReEEY 7,444 28,348 8,123
Other current assets Hitymeh B E 1,374,645 398,552 924,125
Current assets mBEE 1,382,089 426,900 932,248
Non-current assets EMENEE 20 1,994,075 17,331
Other current liabilities HEimEasi (1,104,573) (419,138) (863,897)
Current liabilites B K (1,104,573) (419,138) (863,897)
Non-current liabilities EREBAE - (738,252) =
Net assets BERE 277,536 1,263,585 85,682
Reconciliation to the Group's directly held HBALERZEEQFH
interest in the joint venture: BEEREER Z%TEE
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEEREEE D 32% 45% 31%
Share of net assets fELEEFRE 88,812 568,613 26,587
Carrying amount of the investment ZIR AR REAE 88,812 568,613 26,587
Revenue & 10,532 66,468 326,508
Bank interest income |RITHEHA 11 32 -
Depreciation e - (189) (16)
Tax credit/(expense) FREE SR, () (2,037) 4,402 =
Profit/(loss) for the year FRm Al (E18) 6,096 13,663 (180,571)
Other comprehensive income Ht2mKA - - =
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR

31 December 2024 —E - ¥+ —-_HA=+—H

> Y
20. REZ A

208

. = JL > =
20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) Z2NRIMIRE @
Notes: (Continued) M : (&)
(b)  Summarised financial information in respect of Hangzhou Juli Group, by BEAMMNBEEE-IERER KM
Sure Source Group and Hangzhou Junxing 5k B &) B 75 5 R ARE
2023
—E-=4
Hangzhou Sure
Juli Source Hangzhou
Group Group Junxing
MINEEE J[EDEES o B4 £
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARET T
Cash and cash equivalents HeMkReEEY 3,455 5,872 56,379
Other current assets Htnsh & E 1,371,996 414,405 2,473,684
Current assets mEBEE 1,375,451 420,277 2,530,063
Non-current assets SEmEBEE 27 2,049,943 17,347
Other current liabilities HfishaE (1,104,038) (576,333) (2,281,157)
Current liabilities BN A fE (1,104,038) (576,333) (2,281,157)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE - (643,965) =
Net assets BEFE 271,440 1,249,922 266,253
Reconcdiliation to the Group's directly held HEAREENZE SN EH
interest in the joint venture: BEEREER ZﬁTE‘E
Proportion of the Group's ownership AEEREEE D 32% 45% 31%
Share of net assets BIhEEFE 86,860 562,465 82,618
Carrying amount of the investment ZEENERmE 86,860 562,465 82,618
Revenue Uz 9,261 49,224 307,498
Bank interest income |ITFEWA 44 53 =
Depreciation e (30) a1 (22)
Tax expense BIES H (319) (19) (33,281)
Profit/(loss) for the year FRm Al (E18) 949 6,484 (32,089)
Other comprehensive income Ht2mEmBA - 820 =
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

31 December 2024 —E W&+ —-HA=+—H

20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) ~ 20. A& & A AIHIIR & (@)
Notes: (Continued) Msx : (&)
() The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of (© TRITAEEGFERNERHEER
the Group’s joint ventures that are not individually material: RIAETHBI S &
2024 2023
—EF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARKETF T
Share of the joint ventures’ income/(loss) EiEE &R RIKFER
for the year, net WA (1) F58 355,096 (184,560)
Share of the joint ventures’ other ElhEERRIMEMEE
comprehensive income/(expense) WA (FR) (6,978) 38
Share of the joint ventures’ total BEEEARNEERA(EBE)
comprehensive income/(loss) k) 348,118 (184,522)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s REBREERAANRERTATE
investments in the joint ventures 1,393,854 2,387,026
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 21. REEE R A mRE
2024 2023
—F-mE  ZT=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AREKTE
Share of net assets (note) FEMLEEF 5 () 832,847 864,167
Note: Bt 5 -

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of share of net assets
is approximately RMB832,847,000 (2023: RMB864,167,000), net of
accumulated impairment loss of approximately RMB111,772,000 (2023:
RMB41,586,000).

RZZ-—NMFE+=—A=+—0 BIEEELSE
MEmMELN A ARKS32,847,000t (ZE ==
F: AR¥864,167,0007T) * Bk & 518 (B #
HBHOARE111,772,000T (ZE==ZF: AR
¥ 41,586,0007T) °
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BRI

31 December 2024 —E - ¥+ —-_HA=+—H

21.

22.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s associates that are not individually

B2 R RINRE @)

B 7R A 4 T 30 S (B 2 A A
RIA MBS E R -

material:
2024 2023
—EmEF —Eo=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETF T
Share of the associates’ profit for FE (R B & A B A 5 A g
the year 39,766 276,431
Share of the associates’ total FEAG B2 N B M 2 WA
comprehensive income wE 39,766 276,431
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s AEBEREE A RHIEE
investments in the associates R4 832,847 864,167
COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 22. FEHEE B =

All the completed properties held for sale are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

At 31 December 2024, certain of the Group’s completed
properties held for sale with an aggregate carrying amount of
RMB1,041,000,000 (2023: RMB1,743,000,000) were pledged
to secure certain bank and other borrowings granted to the
Group (note 42).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES

e IR R AR Y R

31 December 2024 —Z—UE+— A=+—H

3. B 5 RN FA

2024 2023

—EmEF —E=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R AERET T

Trade receivables =Y e e 328,056 201,278
Less: Impairment losses of trade receivables 35 : & 5 & Uk FIB R B 518 (46,146) (2,948)
281,910 198,330

The Group'’s trade receivables arise from the sales of properties,
leasing of investment properties and provision of property
management services.

Consideration in respect of the sales of properties is payable
by the purchasers in accordance with the terms of the related
sale and purchase agreements. The Group normally requires its
customers to make payment of monthly/quarterly charges in
advance in relation to the leasing of investment properties and
provision of property management services. The Group generally
grants a rent-free period of three months to the lessees of the
Group's investment properties, extending up to six months for
major customers.

Since the Group’s trade receivables are related to a number
of diversified customers, there is no significant concentration
of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. All trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the revenue recognition date and
invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

AEENE S RUKIERBHEDE
HEREMERRERMEERRS -

BAMFXHEHENKERETRRIEHEE
BERONGRXN AEBEHERE
MERBEHDEEERERBER - —BREXK
BEEEA/SERANK - FEE—K
MREMEERBART=EAANEH
%‘Iggﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ?%A“ﬂ°

HRARENE S EURRE D4
EPEH HUBEAREESETAR-
ZKE@]T*E‘JEE?:%@?HEEH?KW

W HEBEREMINRESRERE - AR
%JE%Z,\ HHRRE °

RI|BEHR - B ZRBERIENRE DT
(CARARER B 2 B R A Bt E Y
BREERE T

2024 2023

—ENF —E=F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARE T ARET T

Current to 90 days BIEAZ 90 H 52,746 113,710
91 to 180 days 91 H= 180 H 62,299 60,892
181 to 365 days 181 H= 365 H 61,140 20,956
Over 365 days 365 HIA 105,725 2,772
Total 1T 281,910 198,330
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an\

BB HmRNEE

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

23.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in provision for impairment losses of trade
receivables are as follows:

3. E 5 RIE

N IE ()

B2 RWFRREERRENEEIT

2024 2023

—EWE ZE-=F

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B 5 ARBTRT ARETET

At beginning of the year REA) 2,948 =
Impairment losses, net BB E B F R 8 43,198 2,948
At end of the year RER 46,146 2,948

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type and
service type). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and

REHRE A RRBBEHREETRESD
o At EEMEEER - BEEDE
REGRUEBERANZ EE P RAS
BEa s A HEE (AREP AL MRS
BE) - LT ERBRIAERMELER
EE¥REMNBSEMAISNERETE

I8 - B AT BOR SR AR R A4 TRUAI Y
BERFEDIFHER

supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure LATHEHYEAFERREEEAENRE
on the Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix: BEZZRENBFEEFERBROHER
Current to 91to 181 to Over
90 days 180 days 365 days 365 days Total
BHZE0X 91ZE180K 181FE365K 365KMNLE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT AREBTT ARBTT AREBTT
As at 31 December 2024 R-B-MF
t=A=t-AH
Expected credit loss rate HHEEEEE 6.166% 8.477% 11.675% 21.425%
Gross carrying amount EHeE 56,212 68,069 69,222 134,553 328,056
Expected credit losses HHEERBE 3,466 5,770 8,082 28,828 46,146
As at 31 December 2023 R-BZ=f
+t=A=t—H
Expected credit loss rate BEHEEBEX 1.576% 1.635% 0.309% 1.772%
Gross carrying amount REAE 115,531 61,904 21,021 2,822 201,278
Expected credit losses BHEEERE 1,821 1,012 65 50 2,948
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23.

24.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the business and
customer risk portfolio of the Group remained stable and there
were no significant fluctuations in the historical credit loss
incurred. In addition, there is no significant change with regards
to economic indicators based on an assessment of forward
looking information.

. B 5 EIGK

e BRI

31 December 2024 —Z—UE+— A=+—H

NI (48)

ARREERR  AEEXBREFPRE
REASRFERTATERLEBECES

TE%?(/BZ@J o BEHM - ARIBEIATIE M E

MEHE KBRS THLESEAE

PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND FENTFRIE ~ H R YUK IE K
OTHER ASSETS H A ,éfF
2024 2023
—E-NEF —E-=4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AREBTT
Prepayments (note) BT FRIE (M 5E) 4,848,849 6,425,250
Deposits i 343,667 336,451
Other receivables H b W I8 5,076,548 5,818,375
Proceed from pre-sales of properties T A5 BUT &
deposited in account of local HEREBRPNEE
governments and related agencies ) 2 P15 58 1,481,258 2,331,137
Cost of obtaining contracts ESERAKA 544,065 857,436
12,294,387 15,768,649
Non-current portion FERBIEL D (663,056) (705,926)
Current portion mENE 11,631,331 15,062,723

Note: The balance included prepayments for the acquisition of land
use rights in Mainland China amounting to approximately
RMB657,626,000 as at 31 December 2024 (2023: RMB699,953,000).

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default and
past due amounts. As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December
2023, the loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.

e R—ZE-—mWFE+-_A=+—HHNEHE
FE A R B Atk i B - b {5 R A MO TE A
HIB A AR #657,626,000T (— T ==
F: AR#699,953,0007T) °

BRABREN S RE E E I &I
fﬁ( RAC % Ko K 28 B O R UL SRR A A o
R-E-_MFE+_A=+—HEK_-F
“=FFTZA=1T—H ZEBEERER
AR RIRD -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI

an\

31 December 2024 —E - ¥+ —-_HA=+—H

25. BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES 25. FE W, 1<t B BGE 75 R IE
An analysis of the balances with related parties is as follows: ERRAEE S AR AT
2024 2023
—EmE —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTR ARBTx
Due from related parties: PE Uk BA B 5 TRIR -
Companies controlled by the Wong Family @& K KKEZE B A 933 328
Joint ventures CR-WNC 2,464,686 3,954,967
Associates ok /N 68,711 109,936
Total et 2,534,330 4,065,231
Due to related parties: FE 1 BRI 5 TRIR
Companies controlled by the Wong Family & K &K & %'J AN 102 33,639
Joint ventures e/ 1,712,984 1,820,027
Associates 5L/ 693,998 734,750
Total #Et 2,407,084 2,588,416
The balances are non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free ZEZKBRTIEBESINE BEAR BE
and are repayable on demand. RBRERER -
None of the due from related parties is either past due or 3 4 R W B Bk O SRIE 8 BRSORE o bt
impaired. The financial assets included in the above balances *%W@?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ?iﬁiﬁﬁLﬁﬁT@
relate to receivables for which there was no recent history of REBHEWRFIEESHE R -OF
default. As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the TZA=+—HERZ=Z 4_¢+ A
loss allowance was assessed to be minimal. =+—H  ZEERBETERAMD -
26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 26. IR 2 BT 8 H K EE)ar
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS AERNETREE
2024 2023
gl 11 - 3 —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTR ARETx
Unlisted investments, at fair value JEEMEE  ZARE 158,339 344,135

The above unlisted equity investments were classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as the Group
has not elected to recognise the fair value gain or loss through
other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2024 —E W&+ —-HA=+—H

27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, 27. Be NIREEEY - XRH
RESTRICTED CASH AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS He it BHEFER

2024 2023

—EE —E=4F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBTRE AR®TE

Cash and bank balances R RRITERER 3,741,817 5,496,426

Time deposits TE BifFE 3K 303,200 952,500

Subtotal /NEE 4,045,017 6,448,926

Less: Restricted cash (note) W ZREIEE® () (1,124,479) (1,564,401)

Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEED 2,920,538 4,884,525

Note: Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the PRC and agreement with iz - B P RBE ER L EFEITHN T - B
banks, certain subsidiaries of the Group are required by banks to TEXRKREBRETHERATE — 4%
place certain amounts of guarantee deposits at designated bank HREBELFAETCRITERE - XKL E
accounts. The deposits can only be used for purchases of construction AARESREME R Y NBEY %
materials and payments of construction fees for the relevant property BREEERANEMIEERSE

projects and other designated purposes.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B MR

an\

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, 27. R MReZEY - R
RESTRICTED CASH AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS RBE OB TR @)
(Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances REBER - AEBUARBIENSR
and time deposits of the Group denominated in RMB amounted ERIBITFREHRREHRTFRAARKE
to RMB3,975,285,000 (2023: RMB6,405,803,000). RMB is 3,975,285,000c (ZE - =F: AR
not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under 6,405,803,0007T) > A R T B A K%
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and BRBHMEY AW - BB E R
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign PEE IR IR MA(HEE - EERMNEEE
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange BE) NEEAERBEEETINESE
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct BHRITHARE KRS HMER
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily RITFHIRBEE BRITERNEIRE LR
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for BREIAE - R ERFER R —
varying periods of between one day and three months NF—RE=BAATE FER/RFTAXE
depending on immediate cash requirements of the Group, and B2 BNRIR e H/RiMmE - WiLARERS
earn interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. E B RATE 2 P RBREA S - FRAER
All the bank balances and time deposits are deposited with TSR NOE B E B9 17 R I A R
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. BHESEMAGEERNIRIT

28. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 28. BZRNHIBALREE
An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end R|EHR - BHRMNKEREENER
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: RIREZAMASTAT :

2024 2023

“BoNE T =F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTRT ARETET

Within 1 year —F R 13,487,076 11,103,591
Over 1 year —FEME 506,201 546,927
Total Bt 13,993,277 11,650,518

The trade and bills payables are unsecured and non-interest-
bearing and are normally settled based on the progress of
construction.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F AR MR

an\

31 December 2024 —E W&+ —-HA=+—H

H i f& N IR N AT E A
&éﬂ%ﬁ

29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS AND
CONTRACT LIABILITIES

2024 2023

—EolmFE T =F

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 ARETR AREKTE

Contract liabilities aR&RE (@) 48,082,677 80,838,861

Deposits received B L& 1,355,105 1,296,947

Accruals fEztE 2,778,710 894,570

Advances from non-controlling FEVEAR AR SR B K

shareholders 1,698,260 2,353,077
Other payables S FOE (b) 4,193,973 4,254,914
Lease liabilities HERE 16(a) 7,070 14,727

58,115,795 89,653,096

Non-current portion — lease liabilities JERBNEHH — HEE(E (3.093) (6,381)

Current portion mENEE D 58,112,702 89,646,715

Represented by: (A

Contract liabilities aRARE 48,082,677 80,838,861

Current portion of other payables Hih e RIERETERN

and accruals mEE D 10,030,025 8,807,854

Total #Et 58,112,702 89,646,715

Notes: B aE -

(@)  Contract liabilities include advances received from buyers in (@) AREEEEEAEEEEYEEBM
connection with the Group’s pre-sales of properties. The net increase ERPWBHRIE - aRBEFGINTDE
in contract liabilities was mainly due to the increase in advances ZHRFERBIEEVEHE RS IER
received from customers in relation to the sales of properties at the BRIEE MK EE A ESHENXEY
end of the year, offset by the decrease in advances received from HERREEMERERENEFEERR
customers upon recognition of revenue in the current year when the I ) & P W GRIEDR A AR 4 -
purchasers obtained the physical possession or the legal title of the
relevant properties.

(b)  Other payables are non-interest-bearing and repayable on demand. (by HiENKREARERERERKERE-
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B MR

nVT\

31 December 2024 —E - ¥+ —-_HA=+—H

30.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 30. 5T B3R HMER
BORROWINGS
2024 2023
“E-NE —T-=F
Contractual Contractual
interest interest
rate (%) rate (%)
per annum Maturity RMB’000 per annum Maturity RMB'000
HES HES)
EFIE (%) WA ARETR  ERE%) HEA  ARETR
Current ik
Bank loans —secured  SRITEFR —B#HAE  3.10-11.67 2025 8,732,065  4.30-11.88 2024 8,151,188
Other loans —secured  Ef & —FHF  2.80-13.50 2025 2,509,490  8.50-12.00 2024 1,666,788
Total — current mERE 11,241,555 9,817,976
Non-current EIinE)
Bank loans — secured  $R{TE N — H A 3.10-8.05  2026-2038 8,032,034 320-820  2025-2038 9,577,784
Other loans —secured  H &7 — BHF  2.80-13.50  2026-2027 530,510 280-930  2025-2026 697,800
Total —non-current ~ FEREN A% 8,562,544 10,275,584
Total by 19,804,099 20,093,560
2024 2023
—ENEF —E==
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBEF T
Analysed into: DI
Bank loans repayable: FEEEIRITER :
Within one year or on demand —FRHIFEK 8,732,065 8,151,188
In the second year FEZF 4,839,350 5,649,905
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FZEhF (BEERWE) 2,299,307 2,576,084
Beyond fifth years EREF 893,377 1,351,795
Subtotal IR 16,764,099 17,728,972
Other borrowings repayable: JEEEAEMERR
Within one year or on demand —FRHIFEK 2,509,490 1,666,788
In the second year EZE 470,510 697,800
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FZERhF (BIEERWTE) 60,000 =
Subtotal INEF 3,040,000 2,364,588
Total P 19,804,099 20,093,560

REREBZERERAR/ — T _MFER
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30.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(@]

Certain of the Group's bank and other borrowings are secured by the
Group’s property and equipment, investment properties, properties
under development and completed properties held for sale, details
of which are disclosed in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2024, certain of the Group’s bank and
other borrowings with an aggregate amount of approximately
RMB11,738,156,000 (2023: RMB5,951,819,000) were secured by
share charges of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Except for certain bank and other borrowings of approximately
RMB1,173,585,000 (2023: RMB1,147,471,000) and approximately
RMB3,335,996,000 (2023: RMB3,567,969,000) as at 31 December
2024 which were denominated in HK$ and United States dollars
(“US$"), respectively, all of the Group’s bank and other borrowings
were denominated in RMB.

At the end of the reporting period, except for certain bank and
other borrowings of approximately RMB5,520,773,000 (2023:
RMB4,487,860,000) with fixed interest rates, all of the Group’s bank
and other borrowings bear interest at floating interest rates.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group's bank borrowings of
approximately RMB4,567,712,000 (2023: RMB4,488,890,000) were
secured by a specific performance obligation imposed on the Wong
Family and pursuant to which (i) the Wong Family must remain the
single largest shareholder in the Company; (ii) the Wong Family must
hold legally and beneficially and directly or indirectly 35% or 40% or
more of all classes of the Company’s voting share capital and/or must
directly or indirectly control the Company; and (iii) Mr. Wong or a
member of the Wong Family must remain to be the chairman of the
Board of the Company.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had not repaid certain principal
and/or interest amount of certain borrowings, which constituted
defaults on certain bank and other borrowings in the total amount
of approximately RMB6,762,337,000 (31 December 2023:
RMB4,715,440,000). The above-mentioned borrowings that under
events of default were presented under current liabilities.

e IR R AR Y R

31 December 2024 —Z—UE+— A=+—H

CETRERIT R EME R @)

Wi

(@ AEEMNETHRTEREGMETRHEAEE
MMERSE REME BEPYE
&%—%f’ﬁﬁ*ﬂ%ﬁi%%f’ﬁﬁﬁ B

RERE TS RERMT 42 B 58 -

b) M-ZTE-_NMF+-_A=+—8 %%
EMETRTREGBEREODARE
11,738,156,000 T (— T - =4 : AR
5,951,819,0007t) A AL EE TH B A
AR AL 1R I8 o

© BRR_ZE-_mMF+_A=+—HWET
SRITREME K AR 1,173,585,000
T(ZTZ=%: AR%1,147,471,000)
N #) AR #3,335,996,0007T (& — =
&£ AR #3,567,969,0007T) 2 Bl A
TRET([ETD BN REBHFT
BRITEREMEFRHUAARESE -

(d) RB|BEHPR BETRITREMBERD
AR #5520,773,0000C (Z B - =4
AR ¥ 4,487,860,000 7T) LA B 7E ) & 5t
BoN REERARITREMERY
RIZEFIEGTE -

() MR-ZZE-_WMFE+=—_A=+—8 4A5%H
HRITERH AR 4,567,712,000 7T (=
T =4 AR¥4,488,890,0007T) &
KRENFTERAE EERE - BB ()
ERRGEVBEEBERBARNRIE—FAR
B (W ERKRENBRERERZNEE
SHBEREARARMEENARERER
AN35% K 40% A E KRB EEEL
R ESIART &(ul)ﬁf‘iiiﬁfﬁ%
EER— IR BN BRERETAR
EEERE -

f) %:::@¢+*HE+*EI*$§ER

YTAREBEETERNE TAS R HF

ﬁﬂ%ﬁ%?ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ?xmé

4 BeBEH A ARKE,762,337,0007T

—E_=F+-A=+t—H:ARK

4,715,440,0007T) ° HiiEHN BB TIHE
RE2FNAERBDEE -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR

31 December 2024 —E - ¥+ —-_HA=+—H

31. SENIOR NOTES AND DOMESTIC BONDS 31. BAEREBEMRRES
2024 2023
ZRIRE = s
Principal  Contractual Principal -~ Contractual
at original interest at original interest
currency rate (%) currency rate (%)
‘million  per annum Maturity RMB'000 'milion~ per annum Maturity RMB'000
HEY Bk
R¥AE £z RERS £HE
BER (%) %R ARETR BET (%) 88 ARETR

Senior Notes duein ~~ —E-IFMAH|H

0

April 2024 BEEE US$500£ 7 1375 2004 3588250  USSS00%TT 1375 2004 3509732

Senior Notes duein ~~ —E-MFAAHH

September 2024 BAZE US$450 £ 7T 5.95 004 320945 US$AS0ET 5,95 2024 3,087,553

SeniorNotesduein ~~ —E-RERANE

May 2025 BxE US$500 £ 1 2005 3585290  US$S00ETT 7 2005 3,499,267

Senior Notes duein ~~ —E=/F-AHIH

February 2026 BEEE US$350 57 6 20 2505483 US§350%TT 6 2006 2446319

Domesticbonds duein ~ R=F-HE+A5H RMB

October 2025 BERESR - - - - ARES6S 55 2025 564,669

Domestic bonds duein R =E =+ &+ A5H RMB RMB

July 2027 KERRS AR¥506 45 2027 506019  AKH506 55 2024 506,019

Mediumtermnotes =B AF-FEH RMB RMB

dueinJanuary 2026 KR HZE AE%1,500 41 2% 1500000 AR%1500 41 2006 1,500,000

Mediumtermnotes B =E=A~F/\BHH RMB RMB

dueinAugust 2026  KIFEIRE AR¥700 428 2026 700000  AR%700 428 2026 700,000
15,614,467 15,813,559

Non-current portion B A (2,706,019) (2,200,000)

Current portion eIk 12,908,448 13,613,559
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. SENIOR NOTES AND DOMESTIC BONDS

e IR R AR Y R

31 December 2024 —Z—UE+— A=+—H

3. BAEBNEBERNES @)

(Continued)
2024 2023
—E-NF —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®EFTT
Repayable: FEfE -
Within one year or on demand —FRHIFEK 12,908,448 13,613,559
In the second year FEZF 2,225,300
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FZERhF (BEEREWE) 480,719 2,200,000
Total et 15,614,467 15,813,559
(a) Senior Notes (a) BLREHE

The Company, at its option, can redeem all or a portion of
the Senior Notes due in April 2024, the Senior Notes due
in May 2025, the Senior Notes due in February 2026 and
the Senior Notes due in September 2024 (collectively, the
“Senior Notes”) at any time prior to the maturity date at
the redemption prices (principal amount plus applicable
premium) plus accrued and unpaid interest up to the
redemption date, as set forth in the written agreements
between the Company and the trustees of the Senior
Notes.

The Senior Notes are secured by share charges of certain
subsidiaries of the Company (note 1).

The fair values of the early redemption options of the
Senior Notes were not significant and therefore were
not recognised by the Group on inception and at 31
December 2024.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had not repaid certain
principal and/or interest amount of certain borrowings, which
constituted defaults on the Senior Notes in the total amount
of approximately RMB12,908,448,000 (31 December 2023:
RMB12,542,871,000).The above-mentioned Senior Notes
that under events of default were presented under current
liabilities.

BRARBE_ZT_MFMAZ
BEEE —T-_AFHAZ
BERE —T-R"EF_AF
BAEBEN _FT_NENLAE
BEER (RBIEERRE] X5
ARTZ ) EE BEE - A A
AEZREE B 2 /180 AT B
REOE (KL BEMNEREE) N
BEMED A MBES RN E
BOAAELBABERE -

H
H
H
H

BEEBHARTAETHEAR
B AR R (B aE) -

HRELEEERNIRERERDMNE
MAREBEEYTEN XEEREA
RETEER-_T_ME+_A
=t BRERZELAE-

RZE_WF+_A=+—H"
AEBITABEETERNSE

FTERER/KAE - WEKE
REBHNEN BREBEHOB/A

E%ﬁ%12,908,448,0007c (=%
—=FE+=-A=t+—H: AR#
12,542,871,0007C ° E#liE#)EIE
THELEZBHZAREBIE )
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R MR

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

31. SENIOR NOTES AND DOMESTIC BONDS
(Continued)

(b) Domestic Bonds

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the bondholders of
domestic bonds due in July 2024 on 12 June 2024, the
repayment pattern of the outstanding principal amount
of RMB506 million has been adjusted from repayable on
1 July 2024 to 5% on 1 July 2026, 5% on 1 January 2027
and 90% on 1 July 2027, respectively. The coupon rate
has been adjusted from 5.5% to 4.5% with effect from 1
July 2024.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, Xiamen
Zhongjun has redeemed the domestic bonds due in
October 2025 from certain bondholders. The domestic
bonds due in October 2025 were delisted from the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange on 21 October 2024.

In January 2023, Xiamen Zhongjun publicly issued the
first tranche of 2023 medium-term notes in the PRC, with
an aggregate principal amount of RMB1,500,000,000
for a term of three years and a coupon rate of 4.1%
per annum, which are fully guaranteed by China Bond
Insurance Co., Ltd. with irrevocable joint and several
liability.

In August 2023, Xiamen Zhongjun publicly issued the
second tranche of 2023 medium-term notes in the PRC,
with an aggregate principal amount of RMB700,000,000
for a term of three years and a coupon rate of 4.28%
per annum, which are fully guaranteed by China Bond
Insurance Co., Ltd. with irrevocable joint and several
liability.

The aggregate fair value of the Senior Notes and domestic bonds
as at the end of the reporting period was RMB3,145,270,000
(2023: RMB4,279,420,000).

The fair values of the Senior Notes and the domestic bonds
are based on price quotations from financial institutions at the
reporting date.
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(b) BRES

RE-ZZ-_MF+AFERAG
FREARZE-ZNFAATZ
HRBHRE  REELXEAR
BB THEEERNARZ
T-NE+A—REEAEAED
AR—_ZE_~ELtA—B T
TtF—A—HERZZE-tF+
A—HE&5%  5%&%90% - 5
—E-_NNFELA—HE Z@EF
EH55% HERL5% °

REE_Z_NF+_A=+—
BEFEA EFMFERRZFE
THETAIBENEAGEENS
FTESFFBEAETTEDRD K=
THFTAEBHNERESRE
RZZTEZWME+A=Z+—HRE
YFEHR D RERT °

RZZBEZ=F—F EMN+ER
FEARBIT S _=ZFEFE—
HHPHER AeBEAARE
1,500,000,0007C * BE=F =
HHNEAEFTF41% AP EER
HWHEKLERDBERARIRHEEEE
OB R REBER -

RZZFE_=FNA EMRHER
FEARBIT - E-_=FEE_
HPHER X B8EAEARE
700,000,0007t ' BHI=F  E@E
MNEEBGEL28%  BHEREH
HERERNDBERAGIREEEE
TR HEHEE B T IREBHER o

RIFEBR BAZEBEREBERESHA
RE#ET A ANRBE3,145,270,000 7T (=
T =4 : AR#¥4,279,420,0007T) °
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2024 —E W&+ —-HA=+—H

32. DEFERRED TAX 32. IRIEFRIB
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the RERN - EEHIEEEREENES N
year are as follows: T:
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIEEE
Revaluation
of properties
BEEWE
Note RMB'000
Bt ARBTT
At 1 January 2023 R-ZE-_=%—HF—H 4,435,996
Credited to profit or loss during the year SFAFERNIER (696,752)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEH B A A 39 (82,170)
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 R_E—_=F+=—A=+—HK
—T_NE—-HF—H 3,657,074
Credited to profit or loss during the year SFAFANER (1,330,727)
At 31 December 2024 RZZE_MFE+-_A=+—H 2,326,347
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HmR M

31 December 2024 —E - ¥+ —-_HA=+—H

32. DEFERRED TAX (continued) R FETRTE ()
Deferred tax assets EEBEEE
Losses
Unrealised available for
profits offsetting
arising from against future
intra-group Provision taxable
transactions of LAT profits Total
I AR
XHM T ES ARERH
REREF B vl pod i} #zt
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i3 ARBFT ARETFT ARBFT AREFT
At 1 January 2023 —2-=%—-H—H 81,115 295,176 1,095,975 1,472,266
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi —RMB AR 38 - - 57,741 57,741
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss A/ (B ERER
during the year 6,046 (101,202) 69,251 (25,905)
At 31 December 2023 and RZEZ=F+=-A=+—H
1 January 2024 R=ZZmE-H—H 87,161 193,974 1,222,967 1,504,102
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss A/ (N8) EREE
during the year (15,459) 71,706 (673,683) (617,436)
At 31 December 2024 RZZZmE+=A=1+—H 71,702 265,680 549,284 886,666
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of

32.

B IR R AR T

IJF

31 December 2024 —Z—UE+— A=+—H
EAETEIE ()

REINME  HETELEHBEEERAR
EREGEMBARRRATIAKE - AT

financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred RAEBERENRIBERD T - (BT
tax balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes: WERE
2024 2023
—BINE T o=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARSI AREBTT
Net deferred tax assets recognised RERE B AR R A TERHY
in the consolidated statement of BB IBEEFE
financial position 886,666 1,150,968
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised RERE B MRA R NHERE
in the consolidated statement of REHIBARFE
financial position 2,326,347 3,303,940

At 31 December 2024, the Group has tax losses
arising in Mainland China of RMB10,986,163,000 (2023:
RMB7,883,487,000) that will expire in one to five years for
offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognised in respect of certain of these losses of
approximately RMB8,789,027,000 (2023: RMB2,991,619,000)
as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making
for some time and it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which these tax losses can be
utilised.

The Group is liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in the PRC in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008. The
applicable rate is 5% or 10% for the Group.

RZZEZWNF+=ZA=+—H  £&5H
RABEAEEENRDAREBEAR
#10,986,163,000 L (ZE =% : AR
¥ 7,883,487,0007T) © % S IBEE A
HEBHRNFEREERFT  DIKH
3R B 18 ) B 18 B RS R SR A9 FE AR B A
e W AR B A AR ¥ 8,789,027,000 7T
—ZT-=%: AR¥2,991,619,0007T)
WETEERAERCHEBEEE  BARZ
ETEREMBARIFELS Mz SHE
AAEABEERE—BRER  ATR
ARl AR E N AR EEZER
IHE18 -

AREEA BTN B AL A B
RAR_FTENE-A—HEELENA
M2 R B IR BB TR - AR E /Y
BATER5%310% °
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R a BRI

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

32.

33.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

At 31 December 2024, no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute
such earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised totalled approximately RMB28,240,042,000 at 31
December 2024 (2023: RMB29,743,846,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

PROVISION FOR MAJOR OVERHAULS

As detailed in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group has contractual obligations to fulfil as a condition
of the Operating Concession under the Operating Right
Agreement. The obligations are (a) to maintain the Facilities
it operates to a specified level of serviceability and (b) to
restore the Facilities to a specified condition before they are
handed over to the Sports Bureau at the end of the Operating
Concession. These contractual obligations to maintain or restore
the sports and recreation facilities, except for the upgrade
element, are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, i.e., at the best estimate of the expenditure that would
be required to settle the present obligation at the reporting
date. The future expenditure on these maintenance and
restoration costs is collectively referred to as “major overhauls”.
The estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis, and
revised where appropriate.
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32.

33.

RAERLIA ()

R_ZE-_WNE+-_A=+—H @®A&E
Bz P B 2 B A B FE SR R E
Bz EAENRTE - WAREREMA
EEMBE - BEERR CAURER %
EWBRAETEDRZAT - R=F
—MFE+=—A=+—8 BRFEZH
BARIZKRERMAERIEE=2E5E (K
AERTAECHEBEEE HAARE
28,240,042,000TC (—E - =4F : AR¥E
29,743,846,0007C) ©

7R 22 ) i) BCER P I B O BB 08 A Y
EAIASERBIRRNTE

ZNCEiEE

IEMERA M RARM 7t - AR
BEBEGREMT  (FREREERIHE
MR IRE AT AN B IRIF - %F &R
IR HERKCENZERE  BRE
B — T A R AR 75 7K K (b) IR AT AR
RHERE  EBXZEFRBETETA
ZH SEEEEREMRR - HENXE
BEPRRER BN A RRE GREIM
FHREB D 51 BB @ 7 A R E 37 SR 4%
KRR ERAAREE T AR NG
B AiRmEABRTRBREEMNMAX
MREGF SRR BRZSHEESL
EENFRARKRREAIATREARIA
Bl MEEERBEEHRNKEES
R {EHERT



33. PROVISION FOR MAJOR OVERHAULS

34.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

The movements in the provision for major overhauls of the

Facilities for the year are as follows:

n‘/-ﬁ

BRI

31 December 2024 —E W&+ —-HA=+—H

33. KMg#E @®)

FR

P REREHORERBEESHNOT :

2024 2023
—E-_NFE T =F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARET T
At 1 January n—HA—H 88,648 78,614
Additional provisions (note 8) NN (B FES) 6,809 6,515
Increase in a discounted amount arising R B 80 7 44 1 2 A RO 3T 3R (B 38 &
from the passage of time (note 7) (KF5E7) 4,420 3,950
Amount utilised during the year FRNERSHE (535) (431)
At 31 December R+=—B=+—H 99,342 88,648
SHARE CAPITAL 34. I8N
Shares &)
2024 2023
—E-ME —_F-=
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Authorised: JETE ¢
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of FIREE0.108 T
HK$0.10 each 10,000,000,000 A% & 38 i% 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITREE
4,222,986,126 (2023: 4,222,986,126) HREEO10E T
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 4,222,986,126 f (=T = =4 :
4,222,986,126 %) A% 422,298,613 422,298,613
Equivalent to RMB’000 HERARETT 365,138 365,138
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR

31 December 2024 —E - ¥+ —-_HA=+—H

34. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 34. IR ()
Shares (Continued) R4 &)
A summary of movements in the Company's issued share capital RAREBITRAZEHHEZMT
is as follows:
Number of
shares Issued
in issue capital
81T
RO EE BRITRA
HK$
BT

At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023, W-ZT-_=F—H—H -
1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024 —Z_-=%+—-H=+—H -
—EoMFE-HA—HBRK
“EOmFE+-A=t+—H 4,222,986,126 422,298,613

Share options i iz 1
Details of the Company’s share option scheme are included in RAE| AR IR RARE &M
note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. FE35 ¢
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 23 April 2018
(the “2018 Scheme”) and has been terminated upon adoption
of the new share option scheme (the “2023 Scheme"”) on 30
May 2023. The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors and ends on a date which is not
later than 10 years from the date of offer of the share options.

There are no cash settlement alternatives. The Group does not
have a past practice of cash settlement for these share options.
The Group accounts for the Scheme as an equity-settled plan.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholder’s meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the 2018
Scheme during the year:

35.

BRI

an\

31 December 2024 —Z—UE+— A=+—H
i Ax i ET 2l

RARBRZZE-NFOAZ+=B&KHK
—Iﬁaﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁi‘ (T=ZE—N\F5t&ll) -
WHEZFE_=FHA="THARKRMIHE
BEAE(Z2=_=F5T8) 1% =%
—N\FErEBERIE - RIEBRERNT
FHARESETE  UATERBRES
ZIBHARRET10FE B4 LE ©

ZAtEPRAREMREEE TN - AKE
BETRENR S EEZ LB
e ZK%H%EZ%%H%EZ%%&%ZJ?U

R R T H R AR MR
FRBRRARE LIRE -

FAR T \FFEET HARITER
FERESSI T

2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
Exercise Number of Exercise Number of
price options price options
THEE BRERE TEE  BREHE
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT ) BTT %5
At beginning of year and RE RER
end of year 2.78 286,000 2.78 286,000
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR

31 December 2024 —E - ¥+ —-_HA=+—H

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (cContinued) 35. IBAHEETE ()

PSR ISR - R AT R AR A 1T 5
RATEMBIIMT -

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2024
Number of
options Exercise price Exercise period
—EI@F
BREZE TEE 171 5A
‘000 HK$
T4 BT
135,000 2.78 1 July 2019 to 11 December 2028
—NWE+rtA-BE_Z-_N\F+A+—H
151,000 2.78 1 July 2020 to 11 December 2028
—ECEFLA-RAEZE-N\F+=A+—H
286,000
2023
Number of
options Exercise price Exercise period
—E-=F
BREHE TEME 171 5A
‘000 HK$
T BT
135,000 2.78 1 July 2019 to 11 December 2028
—NFELtA-RE_Z-_N\F+A+—H
151,000 2.78 1 July 2020 to 11 December 2028
TETFLA-RAEZZEN\F+=A+—H
286,000
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The fair value of the share options granted in 2018 was
HK$137,017,000 (equivalent to RMB120,397,000) (ranged from
HK$0.33 to HK$0.38 each), of which the share option expense
was fully recognised in profit or loss in prior years.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted under the
2018 Scheme in 2018 was estimated as at the date of grant
using a binomial pricing model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted and the
following table lists the major inputs used:

35. IR

e IR R AR Y R

31 December 2024 —Z—UE+— A=+—H
1))

RZE—NEAREBRENQA
£137,017,000%8 7T (M8 E R AR
120,397,0007T) (B N F033BTE
03887L) F BIREMRZE 28N AT
FEERER -

R-F-N\FERE_FT—-N\FiFEME
HESEEBRENAAERRLAS
RA-—EAEEBREMGE LT EAR
o B S B 1R R R R A5 - T R R BUSIUR
PrE R E Ei ABUE

2018

—ZE-N\F

Dividend yield (%) % B I 2= 2 (%) 7.19

Expected volatility (%) i‘ﬁﬁ}%& 18 (%) 28.63

Risk-free interest rate (%) % ) &K (%) 2.7
Exit rates of the grantees of the options $E'<TJ§_?*)\¢5+¥|J T % HH BB AR &)

granted under the 2018 Scheme (%) AR R ZE (%) 0

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

8 HAOR 08 S BB R IR AT AR R R R B B
RR - TARUGREBRER -

AAEARERTEFADROERED
HAEE -
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an\

BB HmRNEE

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

35.

36.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
286,000,000 (2023: 286,000,000) share options outstanding
under the 2018 Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding
share options would, under the present capital structure of
the Company, result in the issue of 286,000,000 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital
of HK$28,600,000 (equivalent to RMB25,917,000) and share
premium of HK$766,480,000 (equivalent to RMB694,584,000)
(before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 286,000,000 share options outstanding under
the 2018 Scheme, which represented approximately 6.77% of
the Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

No option has been granted under the 2023 Scheme since the
adoption of the 2023 Scheme.

RESERVES
(a) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the year are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 105 and 106 of
this annual report.

(b) Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the difference between the

amounts of consideration and the carrying values of non-
controlling interests acquired or disposed of.

(c) Statutory surplus reserve

Transfers from retained profits to the statutory surplus
reserve were made in accordance with the relevant PRC
rules and regulations and the articles of association of the
Company'’s subsidiaries established in the PRC and were
approved by the respective boards of directors.
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35.

36.

AT E ()

RBEBHR AR E=ZT—NFit
2| T % 5 286,000,000 (=T = =4 :
286,000,000) 7 M) AR 17 {58 B AR 4 o 1£
RARBBRBERERT  BEITEZ
ERTEBERERGSI AR A ELT
286,000,000 iz 5B AN E B AR - W ZE £ 58
HNAR 75 28,600,000 7% 7T (A E KX A R
25,917,000 7T) & f% {7 4 B 766,480,000
BT (FAE W AR 694,584,000 7T) (K
HNBRBETER) o

PSR ER EBE - AQRIE
—%—J\E%iwﬁﬁﬁmeoooooof’\
BARITEERERE  HERARQFNZA
KB ZEITRIDA6.77% °

BRA_Z_=FHEZEE  HER
BT ZFral R T A REAE -

et

() =&H
AEEBRFANNMBEREEHZ
FAAE R E 105 B A 106 B HY
IRERE=BERNA -

(b) B
77 R 4 P B o 4 BE AR R
MR ERRE A A0S -

() ZEBRHE

BREGENBREELTRBRER
THAR 4% 7 B A0 B8 AR Rl AR AR A S
ZNYNCIR SR VA LN NGl )
MBERANGEL YEHBH
EEgE-



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. RESERVES (Continued)

(9]

(d)

(e)

Statutory surplus reserve (Continued)

For the entities concerned, the statutory surplus reserve can
be used to cover previous years' losses, if any, and may
be converted into capital in proportion to equity holders’
existing equity holdings, provided that the balance after
such conversion is not less than 25% of their registered
capital.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the excess of the
Company’s share of the nominal value of the paid-up
capital of the subsidiaries acquired over the Company’s
cost of acquisition of the subsidiaries under common
control upon the group reorganisation completed in
December 2007.

Share option reserve

Share option reserve represents the fair value of
share options vested which are yet to be exercised, as
further explained in the accounting policy of share-
based payments in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to the
share premium account when the related share options
are exercised, or transferred to retained profits should the
related share options lapse or be forfeited.

e IR R AR Y R

31 December 2024 —Z—UE+— A=+—H

(9]

(d)

(e)

6. EHE @

EEBEBRFE (2

NEHEBERMNS  ECRARH
A AERERTEEREE(E) -
MAlEEREAE ARBENFRLL
BlEE AR - R B RSk
MERDTEIREFMERT
25% °

BOHEE

B REEEAR TS (HRKEN
BRAEAMESRAEEELEE
REAFER _ZZLF+_H
STHK) 45 B 5 Ak B 42 ) Y /B 8 R A
WA

BIRERE

ﬁﬁﬁi%ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂiﬂﬁfmﬂ 5 B
BRENAR E—FHEBER
ERE B RS RER W sE 3 LARR (0 A LA
MRS ERANEL - %25
MR EREETERERS
AR s EBR - SR MR AR R K
sk 48 W s B =R BB T ©
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

an\

BRI

31 December 2024 —E - ¥+ —-_HA=+—H

37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-

7. BB ERIFER w2 IF
2EMBERA]

BREERFERERNASENE AR

controlling interests are set out below: FEHINNT
2024 2023
—EomE —FT-=
Percentage of equity interest held SEERERFTIEIRER
by non-controlling interests:
Chongging Junhuigongchuang EEREERE 53% 53%
Chongging Sanchengyihui HE - WiE 50% 50%
Xiamen Taiming EPIZRS 20% 30%
Shangrao Dongjun Real Estate Co., Ltd.¥ ~ FEEMREBEEBR QG
(“Shangrao Dongjun”) (T EEEE]) 66% 66%
2024 2023
—ECNE O —F_=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTRT ARETET
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to 57 B IE IR Y
non-controlling interests: FREA(EE) -
Chongging Junhuigongchuang EEREERE 418 (20,294)
Chongging Sanchengyihui EE = RE (17,596) (51,056)
Xiamen Taiming EPIZRS 147,316 269,065
Shangrao Dongjun R (609) 9,106
Accumulated balances of non-controlling ¥k B BiFE#E R fE 25 &Y
interests at the reporting dates: RS -
Chongging Junhuigongchuang = B [E KA 420,249 419,831
Chongging Sanchengyihui BE = phaiE 408,643 426,239
Xiamen Taiming EFIRS 2,331,239 2,183,923
Shangrao Dongjun LR 258,263 258,872
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(Continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of Chongging Junhuigongchuang, Chongging

BRI

n‘/-ﬁ

31 December 2024 —E W&+ —-HA=+—H

37. BB ERFFEERER 2 FE
BB AT @)

TRIIREEEELA BE=Ma
- [EPIENS K RSB0 15 A

Sanchengyihui, Xiamen Taiming and Shangrao Dongjun. The it o 5 BEFRIB TR (] A B K 8 AT 4
amounts disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations: B
Chongqing Chongqing Xiamen Shangrao
Junhuigongchuang Sanchengyihui Taiming Dongjun
2024 —E-NE EEREHA EE=HIE EMRRK FHERE
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T ARBT T ARET T
Revenue Wz 12,413 213,130 13,759,413 683
Other income E A 125 1,436 843 65
Total expenses B (11,750) (249,757) (13,023,675) (1,670)
Profit/loss for the year FRmF (EE) 788 (35,191) 736,581 (922)
Total comprehensive FREEBAS
income/loss for the year (E518) 1858 788 (35,191) 736,581 (922)
Current assets mENE E 880,359 1,139,689 7,326,054 403,808
Non-current assets EMENE E - 10 6 -
Current liabilities mEEE (53,205) (211,265) (1,302,929) (12,500)
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE — = = -
Net cash flows used in K EE T A
operating activities BeRhEF8 (837) (15,670) (282,211) (25,203)
Net cash flows from REIEEFTE
investing activities RemeFi = = = -
Net cash flows from BMEFBMSRE
financing activities mE e 1 8 27 60
Net decrease in cashand ~ H& KRS EEY
cash equivalents B F R (836) (15,662) (282,184) (25,143)
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an\

BRI

31 December 2024 —E - ¥+ —-_HA=+—H
37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 37. BE ERNEERER 2 IF
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 2EMNB AR @
(Continued)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TRINTEERERA EE=H=
information of Chongqging Junhuigongchuang, Chongging E B PR E K - 55 3R BA A B 75 & R R
Sanchengyihui, Xiamen Taiming and Shangrao Dongjun. The it o A B FIB T RAME(R A 7 K 85 AT 4
amounts disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations: = -
Chongaing Chongaing Xiamen Shangrao
Junhuigongchuang  Sanchengyihui Taiming Dongjun
2023 —E-=f EERELE BE-HRE EFIRE FERH%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARBFT AREFT AREFTT
Revenue Wz 2,824 804,185 967,200 25,312
Other income HdA 18 3 3,494 261
Total expenses BE X (41,475) (906,280) (73,811) (11,776)
Profit/(loss) for the year FRHEF/(E8) (38,633) (102,092) 896,883 13,797
Total comprehensive income/ R ZEW A,/ (E1E)

(loss) for the year Faks) (38,633) (102,092) 896,883 13,797
Current assets mEEE 892,452 1,279,611 21,543,475 420,391
Non-current assets FREEE = 12,440 10,833 1
Current liabilities mEAE (66,086) (328,426)  (16,267,758) (28,162)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE = = = -
Net cash flows used in BT

operating activities ReREFH (24,933) (33,342) (660,038) (47,817)
Net cash flows from REFBHHE

investing activities RengFsE - = 177 =
Net cash flows from/(used in) & EENETS,/ (FT )

financing activities BERE TR (42) 167 341 119
Net decreaseincashand ~ BRE&KREEEY

cash equivalents B (24,975) (33,175) (659,520) (47,698)
i The English name of the Company in the PRC represents the & ZHEARNEXZBELRAQAEE

best effort made by the management of the Company to directly
translate their Chinese names only for the purpose of these financial
statements as no official English names have been registered.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. BUSINESS COMBINATION

Year ended 31 December 2023

Acquisition of a subsidiary

In July 2023, the Group acquired an additional 49% equity
interest in Jinan Junquan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
("Jinan Junquan”), which was previously a 35.4%-owned joint
venture. Upon completion of the transaction, the Group held
84.4% of equity interest in Jinan Junquan and had obtained
control over the board of Jinan Junquan. Jinan Junquan
engaged in property development in Jinan, the PRC. The
purchase consideration for the acquisition was in the form of
cash of RMB13,700,000.

The acquisition of Jinan Junquan was completed in 2023 and
consequently, Jinan Junquan became a subsidiary of the Group.

e BRI

31 December 2024 —Z—UE+— A=+—H

38. EBE Gt

S =#+-A=t—H
JJ:fﬁJ;

Wi —BE AR

RZZZ=Ft A AEERKBEES
BREHEREAERAR (EEEE])
(ERA354%MEE AT BREINI%
IRIEFT Lk - RRHERE  AEE
BAEERRNGLA% BIENERER
BRNEFENEHE EEBRREE
THRREEETYERRER - 2K
BREARS AR 13,700,000 7T °

ﬁ%x%ﬂ&ﬁﬁa NZE_=FREK - K
1& EERRKASASERBAR -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 38. X5 & B @)
Year ended 31 December 2023 (Continued) BE—_Z-_=%+=-H=+—H
LEFEE#)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued) WiE—EWE LR (&)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the Yo bs — I B A R B B A BB &
acquisition of a subsidiary as at the date of acquisition was as follows: ENRBEARENAT :
Jinan
Junquan
BERR
Notes RMB’000
Bt 5 AR®T T
Property and equipment M RFAE 14 17
Properties under development BRAPME 530,000
Completed properties held for sale BIEHEEERYE 12,328
Deferred tax assets RIENIA A E 32 57,741
Other current assets Hinmeh&E 20,626
Cash and cash equivalents RERBREEED 200
Trade and bills payables B 513 AIE&TTF (210,986)
Other current liabilities HMmEha & (358,071)
Tax payable FERI A1 (28,348)
Non-controlling interests FEPE R R 2 33,945
Total identifiable net assets BAREFTERI AR
at fair value FEEME 57,452
Satisfied by: ATRHHEH AT
Cash e 13,700
Reclassification from pre-existing RN —HEE AT
investments in a joint venture to "EENEAR
investments in a subsidiary —ENB AR NRE 43,752
57,452
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition is as ZWENIRSRESNAT :
follows:
Jinan
Junquan
BEER
RMB’000
AR%T
Cash consideration ReENRE (13,700)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FriER e RIREEEY 200
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents ARNKE—HRBARMNES R
in respect of the acquisition of a subsidiary REEBYRLFR (13,500)
The result of Jinan Junquan acquired during the year had no FRMKREENEREER CEEHAREE
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated revenue or loss Eki_gi —F+-HA=1T—HILFE
for the year ended 31 December 2023. HirE N mk BRI EERTE -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2024 —E W&+ —-HA=+—H

39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. HEMWB AR
2023
—T-=F
Notes RMB’000
B &E AREFIT
Net assets disposed of: T E & EFE
Investment properties KREME 15 745,860
Contract in progress fERTR 19 134,110
Prepaid income tax AR IE 177
Other current assets HEmehEE 33,696
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 3,902
Other current liabilities e N=R (435,769)
Interest-bearing bank and FERIT R
other borrowings HMER (280,000)
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFTEMAE 32 (82,170)
Non-controlling interests SRR A (95,769)
Subtotal NEF 24,037
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries k=1 Ny NG 6,8 169,817
Exchange fluctuation reserve released upon B B 2 A R AR BR
disposal of subsidiaries O PE 5K B {7 6,355
Total consideration RERLR 200,209
Satisfied by: VAR 1) 75 =L AR
Cash Be 200,209
An analysis of the net cash inflow of cash and cash equivalents AREENBRARNRERESEEY
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: MAFER DT
2023
—EC=F
RMB’'000
ARET T
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FEERe RREEEY (3,902)
Cash consideration Be&RE 200,209
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in AREERBARNRE R
respect of the disposal of subsidiaries ReEFBYRANFE 196,307
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R MR

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

(@) Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB578,000
(2023: RMB1,281,000) and RMB578,000 (2023:
RMB1,281,000), respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for buildings.

40. iR EeRERM

N

(a)

T

b=112

TEFRERS
ilﬂq Ek%%fﬁ‘i*%étﬁﬁ = $§%

iﬁgn E'JZ%/\E%WS,OOOTE(_?
—=F: AR¥1,281,0007T) XA
R¥578000C (ZEZ=F : AR
#:1,281,0007T) °

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) BMEETEFIEENEEETH
activities
Interest- Senior notes
bearing bank and
Lease  and other domestic
liabilities borrowings bonds
FTERT BAERE
HEEE RHMER RERES
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
izt AR®TR AR®TR AR¥ETR
At 1 January 2023 R-E-_=F—HF—H 26,750 26,995,112 17,162,036
Changes from financing REZBHRERE
cash flows (14,794)  (6,789,899)  (1,720,029)
New leases HHEE 1,281 = =
Foreign exchange movement EHZREE = 139,004 400,296
Interest expense FEZH 1,490 29,343 102,752
Gain on repurchase of BEELERNRE
senior notes 6 - - (131,496)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKNBA A 39 = (280,000) =
At 31 December 2023 and R-E-=F
1 January 2024 +=ZA=+—-HkK
—T-mE—-H—H 14,727 20,093,560 15,813,559
Changes from financing REEHRSTED
cash flows (9,194) (437,179) (7,401)
New leases HHE 578 = =
Foreign exchange movement EHEREE - 136,733 275,034
Interest expense FEZ 959 10,985 90,543
Transfer to other payables EHEEMENRIER
and accruals [EEtE - = (557,268)
At 31 December 2024 R-_ZT-MF
+-A=+—H 7,070 19,804,099 15,614,467
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

40.

e BRI

31 December 2024 —Z—UE+— A=+—H

FERSRERMT @

(0 EEEHENRESREAE

2024 2023
—ENEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR®ETT

Within operating activities R &S ED 902 8,121
Within financing activities REEEE 9,194 14,794
Total st 10,096 22,915

41. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit

enhancements over the guarantees. The financial guarantee

contracts are measured at the higher of the ECL allowance and

the amount initially recognised less the cumulative amount

of income recognised. The ECL allowance is measured by

estimating the cash shortfalls, which are based on the expected

payments to reimburse the holders for a credit loss that it incurs

less any amounts that the Group expects to receive from the

debtor. The amount initially recognised represents the fair value

at initial recognition of the financial guarantees.

(a)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
financial guarantees which are not provided for in the
financial statements as follows:

BT TS PE R

AEEY BERERFBEMERRIE
EERE WBERSRZAREER
B IR B I 1) 25 FE AR 2 RRURL 2 FERR A
R cHENRSETE BAHEEER
BBLEBGAREERGE  BHER
REERNEERBAMELEEEEBEN
FEHS IR AN = E TR B B A W
T - T ERSBEVHERD
}/FEEM\ p ’D\ﬁ@

(@) MBEMR AEBEBHHBER
BRARAHBEREABELT

2024 2023
—EmEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRE AR®BTE

Guarantees in respect of mortgage MAEEETUEERN
facilities provided for certain RBERREOHER
purchasers of the Group’s (FF5E)

properties (notes)

27,020,673 27,163,103

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2024

REREEZRARAR/ — T _MFER

241



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R MR

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

41. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES (Continued) A1, BAFEEIR )

(a) (Continued)

Notes:

(i) As at 31 December 2024, the Group provided guarantees in
respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain banks relating
to the mortgage loans arranged for certain purchasers of the
Group's properties. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees,
in the event of default on mortgage payments by these
purchasers before the expiry of the guarantees, the Group is
responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage principals
together with the accrued interest and penalties owed by the
defaulted purchasers to the banks, net of any sales proceeds
as described below.

Pursuant to the above arrangement, the related properties
were pledged to the banks as collateral for the mortgage
loans, in the event of default on mortgage repayments by
these purchasers, the banks are entitled to take over the legal
titles and will realise the pledged properties through open
auction or other appropriate means. The Group is responsible
for repaying the banks when the proceeds from the auction
of the properties cannot cover the outstanding mortgage
principals together with the accrued interest and penalties.

The Group’s guarantee period starts from the dates of grant
of the relevant mortgage loans and ends upon the issuance
of real estate ownership certificates to the purchasers, which
will generally be available within one to two years after the
purchasers take possession of the relevant properties.

(i) The directors of the Company consider that the fair value of
the guarantees is not significant as in the event of default on
payments, the net realisable value of the related properties can
cover the repayment of the outstanding mortgage principals
together with the accrued interest and penalties and therefore
no provision has been made in the financial statements for the
guarantees.

In addition, the Group’s share of the joint ventures’ and
associates’ own financial guarantees, which are not
included in the above, is as follows:

(a)

(&)
B3

(0) RZE-_MNF+=—A=+—8"
AEERETROREAEEBST
MEBRNRBERZHEME L
WIZBE RIR AR - RIFER
B WZEERRERIEA
BRIZBMNZR AEEENBRT
MHEMSREREAEEES
R RBITHREMIRBASE
B 25 FI 8 A K EIFK -

RE L@ LHE - HEMESER
FTRITERZBERNWER  —
BEFRBREZBMNK  RITER
EREX®E YEEA ﬁméiﬁ
fAENTT BB E R EES

E%%mE%\ﬂETEMEH
P& RIRISAR £ R R 578 A
SR ARBABRERTRT

AEENERBEE THBRE
ERAHEERERELFELE
PRERERGBR MEMEMA
1% i‘L%EQ?E’i§1E%$EE§%¥f§
—EMFRNEAIRGE -

(i) ARAREETRRAEZFLEHBRNER
MIERT - Y X B F
BRAENAERZBASER
REFBARE R MZEER
MARBEILIFEXR - Bt - WER
BIEMRARZERERIELRE

BN REE RS 2 QR KB
ERAANEG N BHER (LRAA
ExOmT

2024 2023
—ENEF —Eo=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTE

Guarantees in respect of mortgage BEENGIIN AN
facilities provided for certain AETYMEERNIRE
purchasers of the joint ventures’ ERRENER

and associates’ properties

3,293,445 3,937,472
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41.

42.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES (continued)

(b) At the end of the reporting period, financial guarantees
given to banks in connection with loan facilities granted
to joint ventures and associates are not provided for in the

31 December 2024 —Z—UE+— A=+—H

A1. B FEER )

(b)

RBE R LER

B 75 R

BZERMRROTETEZERAR
ERNBERBERENMEE

financial statements is as follows: RUOR
2024 2023
—EomE =%
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AREBTT
Guarantees given to banks in METEE QR REE AR
connection with loan facilities ZERBE ML T HRIT
granted to joint ventures ZER
and associates 1,451,630 1,530,500
In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the guarantees EFRR REERRERBNANE

at initial recognition and the ECL allowance are not significant.
PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets of
the Group were pledged to secure certain bank and other

LEHEEBBRRELTEKX -

42. BEHRM

RBERR NEEHATEERR
DRGSR TASENE TRITREGE

borrowings and domestic bonds granted to the Group: HEFEAES
2024 2023
—E_FE T =F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
ks ARBTRT AR®TET
Property and equipment L E Y 14 469,188 483,629
Investment properties WEYE 15 17,329,400 18,597,900
Properties under development ERERAPYE 18 44,598,089 42,754,679
Completed properties held for sale BEHEEEKRYE 22 1,041,000 1,743,000
Total 5 63,437,677 63,579,208
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR

31 December 2024 —E - ¥+ —-_HA=+—H

43. COMMITMENTS 43, HEHE

The Group had the following contractual commitments at the REBERIRE R R AT B A AIE -
end of the reporting period:

2024 2023
—g-mE -—T-o=%
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTRT ARETT

Capital expenditure for properties under ~ 7EFRBIKEERZEEF Y K&

development and construction of B EYER
investment properties in Mainland China BARMR 17,080,583 17,337,202
In addition, the Group's share of the joint ventures’ and o - REBEMGEGE R R REEE QT
associates’ own contractual commitments, which are not RNE BB ELAE CRAALA EATa) 40
included in the above, is as follows: T ¢
2024 2023
—E-E —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETET
Capital expenditure for joint ventures’ A& NR REE QAT
and associates’ properties under FEAPERERFMER
development and construction of PR EYERN
investment properties in Mainland China EAMRE 1,096,209 1,367,857

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2024
PEREEIERERAR / — T NFEFR



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions and balances detailed in
note 25 to the financial statements, the Group had the
following transactions with related parties during the year:

e BRI

31 December 2024 —Z—UE+— A=+—H
A4, FAEE T X 5

() MHUBERMEAFLNRS
RSN RFER AEEHERH

BHBEANTIRS
2024 2023
—EEF —Eo=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

i AR®TRT ARBTT

Property rental income P=E=ave N 35 e ik

from companies controlled NAIMYERE S WA

by the Wong Family (i) 4,846 6,221
Property management fees received 2R B & FX 5% 1 Fr % )

from companies controlled NEINMEERE

by the Wong Family (i) 1,341 1,736
Advisory and operational service I FE L EFMIEH A

fees paid to companies S &S Eﬁﬁ%%’

controlled by Mr. Wong (i) 9,821 14,520
Property management NYEEEMESD

fees paid to companies MEBRE

controlled by Mr. Wong (i) - 465
Aircraft leasing expense paid to ¥ &L ARG A — M

a company controlled ANEINREE S E R

by Mr. Wong (ii) 1,368 2,092
Project management income REEE DA REEE AT

and property management 718 B BIEWA K

fees received from joint ventures ~ ¥MEEEE

and associates (iii) 101,229 198,278

Property rental income KE—MEEERAN
from a joint venture L EE A ON

(iii) - 3,116
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R MR

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) (Continued)

Notes:

(i) The transactions were based on terms mutually agreed
between the Group and the related parties.

(ii) The leasing expense was charged at a range of US$25,000
(2023: US$25,000) per month.

(iii) The transactions with joint ventures and associates were based
on terms mutually agreed between the Group and the relevant

joint ventures and associates.

(b) In the opinion of the directors, the directors of the
Company represent the key management personnel of
the Group. Further details of the compensation of key
management personnel of the Group are set out in note 9
to the consolidated financial statements.

Transactions of items (a)(i) and (a)(ii) above also constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
which are measured at fair value, other financial assets and
liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 were
financial assets and financial liabilities stated at amortised cost,

respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments,
other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and senior notes and domestic bonds, reasonably approximate
to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash, trade receivables, trade and
bills payables, financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets, financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals, the current portion of interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings and due from/to related parties
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short
term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate
the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings as at 31 December 2024
and 31 December 2023 was assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of unlisted equity investments as at 31 December
2024 and 31 December 2023 are based on price quotation
from the respective fund managers or estimates based on
enterprise value to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation (“EV/EBITDA™) multiple for similar companies
adjusted to reflect the specific circumstances of the investments.

46.

B IR R AR T

IJF

31 December 2024 —Z—UE+— A=+—H

N ERRTERR

AEBRARBEBMTA (EARER
EHEEHTAEENEREENRESL
ZBRRFREFRFRIN WEEEDAE

HENRERE -

EEEEHEREMASEFEY XR
HRE  EHEUKE  BHRENHIA
RZE - FTATRNFIR - b EURIA
REMEENSREE s AEMEN
RELEFERNERARE AR
REMERORE I D MY

Eﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁkﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ
HE EREHARZEIANIHERE
%ﬁo

TREEMBENARBELEERNAH
BREETREXZFABTANSE &
EHFREENEREERBRI

ATHERBRRIIAREFAAE

AERRITREMESIENABOH R
BIRBERLGR  FEERBREHT
ﬂ%%lﬁﬁﬁ%Tf@%ﬂ%ﬁﬁ
BEHRAKRRERESNE -AKER_-F
“HE+-_A=t-—BR-_FB_=F
T-A=+—-BEAFERRTREME
BTN TBEHNRREFEBIERK -

RZE_NMF+A=+—BE=ZE
—ZF+ZA=1+—R8 - ELmESEE
BEMNARNBENEBESCERERER
SAFERDCEBEEALRAFTND
EEERZREBFTNEERERA
B)MEBRTERBHNER ([DEE
{8, EBITDA]) &8k -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR

31 December 2024 —E - ¥+ —-_HA=+—H

46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 46. AR BN AREEL &
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy ARERER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement THRAALAEESHM T AN AR EFE
hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments: B4

Assets measured at fair value: BRANBEFENEE :

As at 31 December 2024 R-B-WE+ZA=1+—H

Fair value measurement using
DAREFEER

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

market inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

RERE EBEAXATBEE EATAHEER

5 W IE A BE WAEE
(B—& (B=4) (B=#) A5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR¥TR ARBT T ARBT T

Financial assets at fair value BRARBEFEBEHEZS)
through profit or loss ATABRNEREE - - 158,339 158,339
As at 31 December 2023 RZFZ=F+=ZA=+—H
Fair value measurement using
NREFEER
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
market inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RER BERAEE BANAHEER
Mi5HRE ) A\ BUE W A BUE
(B—#) (B=®) (F=#) #at
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT AR®TT ARETET
Financial assets at fair value RARBEFEEHE
through profit or loss FFABENEREE = = 344,135 344,135
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46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 46. Nt1E

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B IRAR R

31 December 2024 —E W&+ —-HA=+—H

MARERES®
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AREEBHRE)
The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 FRAE=ZRANRAABEFEZSHET
during the year are as follows:
2024 2023
—ENEFE —F=-=
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETRT ARETET
At 1 January Rn—H—H 344,135 378,539
Fair value loss recognised in RERERNALE
profit or loss, net Esi8F 5 (36,965) (30,374)
Disposal k= (151,141) (9,208)
Exchange realignment EHERES) 2,310 5,178
At 31 December Rt-—A=+t—H 158,339 344,135
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

an\

BB HmRNEE

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

47.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group'’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, senior notes and domestic
bonds, due from/to related parties, restricted cash and cash
and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such
as trade receivables and trade and bills payables, which arise
directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. Other than
deposits held at banks, the Group does not have significant
interest-bearing assets. Restricted deposits were held at banks
in the PRC at the same savings rate of unrestricted deposits
throughout the year. The Group’s exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s
bank and other borrowings with floating interest rates.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

31 December 2024 —E W&+ —-HA=+—H

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of

the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's loss

A7. M RREEBZRBK
()
=@ B ()
TRIFEMRE LT BEERE T

MERT  NBEHR MERHGEA
REFUAKERBABENTE - A

before tax. There is no material impact on other components of 78 B BN = 3 N 5 (B A L 4 s 4R BT
the Group's equity. DERERNTE -
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in loss
basis points before tax
2E BiRIE 8
i, CRd) i Crd)
RMB’000
ARBF
2024 —E_MEF
RMB AR 150 149,801
HK$ BIT 150 14,131
us$ ETT 150 50,040
RMB AR (150) (149,801)
HK$ BT (150) (14,131)
us$ P (150) (50,040)
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in loss
basis points before tax
A2 A1
#wmCRd) o Crd)
RMB’000
ARET T
2023 —EB-=F
RMB AR 150 166,752
HK$ BT 150 13,814
us$ ETT 150 53,520
RMB AR (150) (166,752)
HK$ BT (150) (13,814)
us$ ETT (150) (53,520)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R MR

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency risk

Under existing PRC foreign exchange regulations, payments of
current account items, including dividends, trade and service-
related foreign exchange transactions, can be made in foreign
currencies without prior approval from the State Administration
for Foreign Exchange Bureau by complying with certain
procedural requirements. However, approval from appropriate
PRC governmental authorities is required where RMB is to be
converted into a foreign currency and remitted out of China to
pay capital account items, such as the repayment of bank and
other borrowings denominated in foreign currencies.

The Group’s PRC subsidiaries may also retain foreign currencies
in their current accounts to satisfy foreign currency liabilities
or to pay dividends. Since foreign currency transactions on
the capital account are still subject to limitations and require
approval from the State Administration for Foreign Exchange
Bureau, this could affect the Group’s subsidiaries’ ability
to obtain required foreign currency through debt or equity
financing, including by means of loans or capital contributions
from the shareholders.

All the revenue-generating operations of the Group are
transacted in RMB. The majority of the Group’s assets and
liabilities are denominated in RMB except for the Company
and certain investment holding companies within the Group
operating in Hong Kong, in which bank and other borrowings
and senior notes were denominated either in HK$ or US$. The
fluctuation of exchange rates of RMB against other foreign
currencies will not have material adverse effect on the operating
results of the Group.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
RMB exchange rate against HK$, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's loss before tax.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

31 December 2024 —E W&+ —-HA=+—H

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 47. & R EEBZ M KE

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

(&)
ShEEELBR ()
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in exchange in loss
rate before tax

Ex BAIEER
2/ 08d) & (R)

RMB’'000
AR¥T T
2024 —E-F
If HK$ weakens against RMB ERBTHARKEE 3% (35,019)
If HK$ strengthens against RMB EATHARKAE (3%) 35,019
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in exchange in loss
rate before tax
fE & TRl EE
#an,Crd) &, CRid)
RMB'000
ARBETF T
2023 —EC-=F
If HK$ weakens against RMB EBTHARKEE 3% (33,624)
If HK$ strengthens against RMB BBTHAREAHE (3%) 33,624
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

an\

BB HmRNEE

31 December 2024 —Z— &+ - H=+—H

47.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

It is the Group's policy that all customers are required to pay
deposits in advance of the purchase of properties. In addition,
the Group does not have any significant credit risk as the credit
given to any individual or corporate entity is not significant. The
Group performs appropriate and sufficient credit verification
procedures for every credit sale transaction to minimise credit
risk. There is no significant concentration of credit risk within
the Group.

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain purchasers
of property units and provided guarantees to secure obligations
of such purchasers for repayments. Detailed disclosure of these
guarantees is made in note 41(a).

The credit risk of the Group’s trade receivables and other
financial assets, which mainly comprise restricted cash, cash and
cash equivalents, other receivables and due from related parties,
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are all classified
under stage 1 for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables which apply the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. The loss allowance provision for restricted cash, cash and
cash equivalents, trade receivables, financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets and due from
related parties were not significant as at 31 December 2024 and
31 December 2023.

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2024
PEREEIERERAR / — T NFEFR

MBRREREBRREE
(#)

FERR

AEENBRAEMERFHAEREER
WEMBMNIZE - W5 ARG T EM
fl/\‘i/\%ﬁﬁfﬁﬂégiT\%K * Bk
AEEWBERNBEAEERR - AEE
Z%IIE%ﬁﬁﬁg“%iﬁﬁi?S&ﬁEE’]
1é%$2§%§rJ«/{ﬁ—ﬂégﬂﬁﬁ'ﬁ/ﬁlgﬂg'{fﬁ°
AEEHEANEAETHEERR -

AEECHMEEMNE TERLHHR
TRERSZFEREREERHEE
* o RFERNVFBHRKE410)

AEEESRWRBEREBEREE
(TERREXRHIRE REMREF
B ~ it FEUGRIA K FE MR BA R 75 3008
MEERR  HTRETHERMEL &
SEBBEESENELT ANKREE -

BB 5 RWRE BB LR HEE
HEEBEN  REERATIRN S B
BERMOBRE1ERNEBEREES
B E -ARARIRHRE - HEMA

THFEY HEFREUFE - BERM
HE - HERREAREMEEANS

BbEE K EW A 5 B IB Y BIRBER
—ENEF+ZA=F+—AKRZZE==
F+-_A=+—HEFEK-



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

31 December 2024 —Z—UE+— A=+—H

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES HBEREREBIERBE
AND POLICIES (continued) (%)
Credit risk (Continued) EERE#)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging BERBRAMESRER
The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum TRINTERAEBEERRNEE
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, BEh&aEERR (FEZNBHER
which is mainly based on past due information unless other RERE  RIFAETEBBEXNALS
information is available without undue cost or effort, and year- NHERATRFEMER) RRZF
end staging classification as at 31 December 2024 and 2023. —HEFZA=T—HARZZE-=F
The amounts presented are the gross carrying amounts for T A=t+—HFEFRBEESE M
financial assets. 2INEELACHEENREAE -
As at 31 December 2024 R=ZB-WNFE+=A=+—H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{8AEHE
FEER REFENANGEFE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E—ER E-RR B L A% st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE AR¥TRT ARBTR AR®TR AR®TZR

Trade receivables* B 5 JEUTHE * - - - 328,056 328,056
Financial assets included in STABRMNEIE  BEK

prepayments, deposits and HMEYGIEN SR EE

other receivables** 4,360,459 - - - 4,360,459
Due from a related parties** JE UK B 7 R 2,534,330 = = - 2,534,330
Restricted cash — Not yet past due XRHHEE —RaH 1,124,479 - - - 1,124,479
Cash and cash equivalents Re kB eEEY — KaH

— Not yet past due 2,920,538 - - - 2,920,538
Total aar 10,939,806 - - 328,056 11,267,862

China SCE Group Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2024 255
REREBIERERAR / — T _MFFR



256

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR T

31 December 2024 —E - ¥+ —-_HA=+—H

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  47.

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023

(%)

%5 e g IR B AR MR

EEmRE#)

B 5 B B A T B 4R R B R (48)

R-EBE-_=%+=-A=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A 785
FEE# REFTENRHEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E-BER  EZBR EEME R pzs Fob
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR®TT ARBTT ARETR AR%TrR
Trade receivables* B 5 ENGIE * - - - 201,278 201,278
Financial assets included in FAERFKE BER
prepayments, deposits and H N RIA R £ B & >
other receivables** 8,594,243 - - - 8,594,243
Due from a related parties** FE M B B 7 R < 4,065,231 - - - 4,065,231
Restricted cash — Not yet past due RRHHEE — RBH 1,564,401 = = - 1,564,401
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReZEN — RaH
— Not yet past due 4,884,525 - - - 4,884,525
Total fast 19,108,400 - - 201,278 19,309,678
@ For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified * RAEEREAELTEZAERENE S

approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix
is disclosed in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

*x The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables and due from a related party is
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is
no information indicating that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit
quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk

As at 31 December 2024, the Group was in default or cross-
default for the payment of its certain borrowings, which
included interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and
senior notes as set out in notes 30 and 31, respectively, which
causes the Group in significant liquidity risk. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group has taken appropriate measures as
set out in note 2.1 to mitigate such liquidity risk.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

e BRI

31 December 2024 —Z—UE+— A=+—H

BRBREEBRSTREE
(%)

REBE SRR
R=Z2-mst=A=+-8" $El

RXMEETERAEFEREAKR

EBH - Edh B E: Jrgfﬂﬁ)}ﬁﬁﬁfam&
BEER (DRIHIRHFE30/%31)
BEASEEEREARDERRR - B
HREMAR  AEEEHEIRMFT21H
REEERIE - RS B@ERBESER -

RBEHR  AEEEREENZIHA
T DERFTORTRNNRERZ

undiscounted payments, was as follows:

51 -

2024
—B-mE
In the
Within third to
one year or Inthe fifth years, Over
on demand second year inclusive  five years Total
RE=ZE
R—FEUR ELE(BE
RERER AEZF HEWF) RREF @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE AR®TRT AR%TR AR¥TR ARETxR
Interest-bearing bank and other FHRRITREMER
borrowings 11,763,954 5,618,896 2,547,546 994,256 20,924,652
Senior notes and domestic bonds BERBIENES 13,022,679 2,270,103 491,535 - 15,784,317
Trade and bills payables B oRNTBERER 13,487,076 452,182 54,019 - 13,993,277
Financial liabilities included in other &t AE {1 5008 J2 fE 5t
payables and accruals BRAMSRERE
(excluding lease liabilities) (REAERIN) 10,026,048 - - - 10,026,048
Lease liabilities HEAE 4,236 3,294 - - 7.530
Due to related parties FEA A 2,407,084 - - - 2,407,084
Total st 50,711,077 8,344,475 3,093,100 994,256 63,142,908
Financial guarantees issued: BE B BER
Maximum amount guaranteed RaERHE 28,472,303 - - - 28,472,303
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR

31 December 2024 —E - ¥+ —-_HA=+—H

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 47. B %5 R fe & 12 B 12 M R

AND POLICIES (continued) (&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REES R 2
2023
—ET-=F
In the
Within third to
one year or Inthe  fifth years, Over
ondemand  second year inclusive five years Total
RE=Z
—FHUA ERF(RE
FEER  REZF BEWF) RREF st

RMB'000 ~ RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTE ARETL ARBTE ARETT ARETE

Interest-bearing bank and other FHRRITREMER

borrowings 10,670,316 6,700,783 2,924,167 1,835,959 22,131,225
Senior notes and domestic bonds BAZBRENGES 8,415,020 3,819,156 4,693,384 - 16,927,560
Trade and bills payables B RNFIERER 11,103,591 513,799 33,128 - 11,650,518
Financial liabilities included in other & A At FE T 5008 K FEAT

payables and accruals BRARNNERARE

(excluding lease liabilities) (HEE BRI 8,799,508 = = - 8,799,508
Lease liabilities HEBRE 9,305 2,562 4,510 - 16,377
Due to related parties &£t BB Bt 7 7RO 2,588,416 - - - 2588416
Total Bt 41,586,156 11,036,300 7,655,189 1,835,959 62,113,604
Financial guarantees issued: BB LA BER

Maximum amount guaranteed RaERHE 28,693,603 - - - 28,693,603
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares, or sell assets to reduce debt. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during
the years ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023.

The Group monitors capital using a net gearing ratio, which
is net debt divided by the total equity. Net debt includes total
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, senior notes and
domestic bonds (as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position) less cash and cash equivalents (including
restricted cash). Capital comprises all components of equity (i.e.,
share capital, non-controlling interests and reserves). The Group
aims to maintain a healthy and stable net gearing ratio.

e IR R AR Y R

31 December 2024 —Z—UE+— A=+—H

BRBREEBRSTREE
(4)

EXRER

AEFEAEENTEARERRER
SEFBECENENRERRRENER
R B FHEERREESARR
EE-

AREBERENRE  YRKHERRD
EReyRAREENR BT YEE
HAE - AEEXSHEABIRN TR
MBS  RABREREERN  BITH
Pl i E & EREER - M RFxiA
BEREBE -RBE_T_MNF+_-A
=t+—BARkRZE=Z=F+=ZA=+—H
FFEER - BMESER BERIEEE
RERIREL E R 28 o

AEBZFABL RNEEET §$

R ERIRFEERAE R BRBETE - F
EHBREAERITREMES &ﬁf‘ﬁf
BERBENEFER (MRS M BAR KA
MRRETRBECEEY (BRIRH
Be) - BABEESSAKED (B
AR RS M EE)  AKE
FHEERREIRSRNFEBLER -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR HmR M

31 December 2024 —E - ¥+ —-_HA=+—H

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The net gearing ratios as at 31 December 2024 and 31

December 2023 were as follows:

(&)

EXREE )

HHEREREBERBER

RZEBE-_WNF+—_A=+—HE=Z

T+ A=t BNFRELXRM

T
2024 2023
—E_NFE T =F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARETRT AREBTT

Interest-bearing bank and STRBITREMER

other borrowings 30 19,804,099 20,093,560
Senior notes and domestic bonds BRAEENBERES 31 15,614,467 15,813,559
Less: Cash and bank balances B Re MIBITTERERS 27 (4,045,017) (6,448,926)
Net debt FE 31,373,549 29,458,193
Total equity TR 10,569,873 20,482,326
Net gearing ratio FEENE 297% 144%
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

BB RRNETE

IJF

31 December 2024 —Z—UE+— A=+—H

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

48. AN 7]

Z BA B IR AR

RmEHR - NRB A BANKLAT

2024 2023
—EmEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—EWBRRMNEE 1 1
Due from subsidiaries JE LB /B A R FRIB 2,536,792 2,482,550
Total non-current assets ERBEERT 2,536,793 2,482,551
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments T RIR 525 427
Due from subsidiaries AP ENGIE O 35,874,689 34,935,042
Cash and cash equivalents B MBEEED 15,498 15,425
Total current assets MEVEEEE 35,890,712 34,950,894
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals HEMENZIEREREA 2,086,754 693,671
Due to subsidiaries AN ENGIE S 19,020,693 18,425,219
Due to a related party FE A A H 77‘?5(15 163 179
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings =t 88817 & H fth & 3% 3,612,124 3,525,619
Senior notes BREE 12,908,448 12,542,871
Total current liabilities mBaEEE 37,628,182 35,187,559
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEETE (1,737,470) (236,665)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRBERS
LIABILITIES 799,323 2,245,886
Net assets BEFE 799,323 2,245,886
EQUITY s
Issued capital BEITRA 365,138 365,138
Reserves (note) (I 5E) 434,185 1,880,748
Total equity FE AR 799,323 2,245,886

Wong Chiu Yeung
=HHE
Director

EF

Huang Youquan
=R
Director

EF
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR

31 December 2024 —E - ¥+ —-_HA=+—H

48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 48. WA B Z BITEAR AR ()
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note: BT
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: IATRARBFEERE
Exchange
fluctuation Share option Retained
reserve reserve profits Total
ERRE BB
& ] R F et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT AREFTT ARET T
At 1 January 2023 —E-=%—HF—H (210,573) 92,670 3,184,866 3,066,963
Total comprehensive FRNEERA(BEB) E5E
income/(loss) for the year 79,111 - (1,265,326) (1,186,215)
At 31 December 2023 and RZZE=_=F+=-A=+—H
1 January 2024 k=T FE—HA—H (131,462) 92,670 1,919,540 1,880,748
Total comprehensive FRZEBA(EE) L5
income/(loss) for the year 33,081 - (1,479,644) (1,446,563)
At 31 December 2024 RZTZWFE+=A=+—H (98,381) 92,670 439,896 434,185

49. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ 49. #t /& B 7 ¥ 3%

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue AUBHREERZZZRAEF=A=1+N
by the board of directors on 28 March 2025. HEESESHERERETE -

In case of any inconsistency between the English text and Chinese translation of the — ANM T $eE 2 # R P RANEE(ISLEHER -
financial statements, the English text shall prevail. BEA B SRR AN B2 o
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A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the published audited financial statements and

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hEMBEREE

THREAXEEBEZR AT BFRE 2 EER
BE- AENFERER  HREEE %
ZRBEAVHEHRR RGBS AFHEE

restated as appropriate, is set out below: ZEF o
RESULTS 5
Year ended 31 December
BZ+t-A=1t—-HALEE
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—E-ME —T-=F —T-_F —T-—F _—T_TF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARETFT ARETFRT AREFE
(restated)
(& E5)
REVENUE I 40,770,075 20,960,968 26,705,112 37,737,447 32,572,605
Cost of sales HEKA (34,534,538) (18,329,976) (21,294,804) (29,563,825) (24,708,788)
Gross profit EA 6,235,537 2,630,992 5410308 8,173,622 7,863,817
Other income and gains Hp WA R 286,830 660,818 820,387 769,663 1,252,155
Changes in fair value of REMELAEE
investment properties, net st} (5,051,706)  (3,754,084) (25,422) 223,071 596,565
Selling and marketing expenses  $H& Rk & HH L (707,896)  (802,420) (1,239,106)  (1,039,303)  (758,913)
Administrative expenses TRFEX (1,219,167)  (1,710,180)  (1,781,374)  (2,056,594)  (2,094,020)
Write down to net realisable value #H{EHEDTERMER
of completed properties held BRAWMERNES
for sale and properties under A 23R B
development (3,524,633) (2,951,850) (989,975) - -
Other expenses HbfL (1,468,888)  (877,699) = (149,251)  (255,414)
Finance costs HHER (1,893,627) (1,492,343)  (921,124)  (825,919)  (682,775)
Share of profits and losses of: ML TFIE BRI R ERE :
Joint ventures EX-NG] 307,164 (191,285)  (434,972) 570,209 607,657
Associates =N 39,766 276,431 (19,294) 70,427 33,975
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BREARR(BE) (6,996,620) (8,211,620 819,428 5735925 6,563,047
Income tax expense HERAZ (937,852)  (189,504)  (1,020,120)  (2,067,114)  (2,117,421)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR S RER], /(1) (7,934,472) (8,401,124)  (200,692) 3,668,811 4445626
Profit/(loss) attributable to: THI&EEE TR,
(B#)
Owners of the parent BRRHEA (7,863,349)  (7,991,050) 24,544 3,070,022 3,803,238
Non-controlling interests IR e (71,123)  (410,074)  (225,236) 598,789 642,388
(7.934,472) (8,401,124)  (200,692) 3,668,811 4,445,626
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

LFEHHRE

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING

BE

== N\ /
oo

BEMFERER
INTERESTS
As at 31 December
R+=B=+-H
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—E-ME —T-=€ =—FT--F —FT-—F =—E-FTE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRE AREBTT ARETT ARETT ARETRT
TOTAL ASSETS BEE 128,285,226 167,889,687 193,964,068 195,012,986 170,614,421
TOTAL LIABILITIES BaR (117,715,353) (147,407,361) (157,338,827) (152,305,875) (131,461,807)

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 3% it # 55

(8,873,845)

(10,758,577)

(16,914,552)

(20,920,751)

(18,154,211)

1,696,028

9,723,749

19,710,689

21,786,360

20,998,403
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